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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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(as at the Latest Practicable Date)
(MREBEMRATHER)

Shareholder Information Online

www.gwpaholdings.com

Our website contains up-to-date information about our Company
including financial information, corporate communications and
other corporate information

Authorised Representatives

Mr. Huang Wei
Ms. Foo Man Yee Carina

Company Secretary
Ms. Foo Man Yee Carina

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Agent in
Bermuda

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North, Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
17M Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, China

Registered Office in Bermuda

Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

Head Office and Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

21st Floor, Bank of America Tower
12 Harcourt Road

Central

Hong Kong

China

Stock Listing

Listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Stock Code: 583
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Principal Bankers

1. The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
1 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, China

2. Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
1 Garden Road, Hong Kong, China

3. Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
33/F, ICBC Tower, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong, China

4. China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
28/F, CCB Tower, 3 Connaught Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong, China

5. Agricultural Bank of China Limited Hong Kong Branch
25/F., Agricultural Bank of China Tower,
50 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, China

6. Bank of China Limited, Macau Branch
Bank of China Building, Avenida Doutor Mario Soares, Macau,
China

7. United Overseas Bank Limited
23/F, 3 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong, China

Hong Kong Legal Adviser

JunHe Law Offices

Suites 3701-10, 37th Floor
Jardine House

1 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

China

Auditor

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
25th Floor, Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

China
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ER#EE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the
annual report for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2023, for
our Group. We are delighted to report that we have continued to
successfully achieve our strategic objectives throughout 2023.

Financial Performance

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recorded a total revenue of approximately HK$121.8 million,
with shareholders’ attributable comprehensive net profit of
approximately HK$284.9 million, including a fair value gain
of approximately HK$74.5 million on investment properties.
Excluding this exceptional item, the shareholders” attributable
comprehensive net profit for the fiscal year ended 31 December
2023, was approximately HK$210.4 million, representing a
decrease of 40.3% compared to the shareholders’ attributable
comprehensive net profit of HK$352.6 million in 2022. The
decline in profitability was primarily due to an increase in finance
cost of HK$279.6 million in 2023, representing an increase of
HK$115.7 million or 70.6% as compared with HK$163.9 million
in 2022. Based on the weighted average number of issued shares
of 1,5667,745,596, the earnings per share for 2023 were 18.2 HK
cents, compared to 20.3 HK cents per share in 2022.

Considering the dynamic changes in the global economic
landscape in 2023, especially the continued impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on global supply chains and consumer
confidence, our Group and its associated companies’ investment
properties in Hong Kong have also experienced some degree of
disruption. Despite the complex and evolving market conditions,
we remain committed to our long-term investment vision and
are confident that our portfolio of investment properties and
investments in associated companies will continue to generate
stable rental income and investment returns for the group.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ER#EE

In 2023, our group maintained 100% occupancy rate for its
investment properties, attributed to our diversified property
portfolio and keen market insights into demand. Core properties
such as Kwai Fong Plaza, certain floors of the Bank of America
Tower in Central, and Yue King Building in Causeway Bay, as well
as Ko Fai Industrial Building in Yau Tong and the Seaview Estate
in North Point, all achieved full occupancy, generating stable cash
flow for the Group.

Furthermore, in order to strengthen our competitive position
in the Hong Kong property market, our Group has invested in a
diversified retail property portfolio through a joint venture. This
portfolio includes several shopping centers, malls, and parking
facilities located in key areas of Hong Kong. These properties
not only enjoy prime locations but also benefit from excellent
connectivity to transportation hubs, offering convenient shopping
experiences for retailers and consumers alike. With a total gross
floor area of 2.048 million square feet and over 7,760 parking
spaces, this portfolio has become an ideal choice for local
residents’ social and shopping needs.

In the face of the challenges and opportunities presented by
the current economic environment, our Group will persistently
monitor market dynamics, optimize investment portfolios,
and enhance property management efficiency. We believe
that through these measures, we will effectively respond to
the current situation and lay a solid foundation for the long-
term development of the Group. Hong Kong’'s economy is at a
crucial turning point in 2023, with the gradual control of the
global pandemic, the relaxation of immigration policies, and
the resumption of cross-border travel with the mainland. The
anticipated strong rebound in tourist arrivals is expected to
be one of the key drivers of economic growth. Furthermore,
various factors such as the gradual recovery of local economic
activities, ongoing infrastructure development driven by the
government, increased housing supply, and the optimization of
the business environment will provide strong support for Hong
Kong's economic recovery. Against this backdrop, we will continue
to monitor market dynamics and adjust our business strategies
flexibly. We will actively seek new growth opportunities and
expand our business areas to respond to market changes and
evolving customer demands.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Looking ahead, we are well aware of the challenges and
uncertainties that lie ahead. With the gradual recovery of the
global economy, particularly the rebound of the local economy
in Hong Kong, the property investment market is expected
to present new growth opportunities. We will closely monitor
changes in market demand and adjust our property portfolio
flexibly to meet the needs of different tenants and investors.
However, we firmly believe that through continuous innovation
and proactive efforts, we can seize opportunities, overcome
challenges, and create more brilliant performance for our
shareholders.

Mr. WANG Hai
Chairman of the Board

19 February 2024
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Hai, aged 54, was born in Beijing, holds a Master degree
in Business Administration from Tsinghua University and holds
the title of senior accountant. He has been an executive Director,
the Chairman of the Board and chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company since 20 August 2021. Mr. Wang has
engaged in finance-related work since July 1992 and has over 30
years of experience in finance field. From July 1992 to October
1999, he served as cadre of business department in Beijing
branch of Agricultural Bank of China, and served as cadre senior
staff member and principal staff member of capital planning
department in the headquarter of Agricultural Bank of China.
From October 1999 to March 2007, he served as cadre and deputy
director of capital operation division, deputy director of operation
planning division and director of capital planning division of the
finance department of GWAMCC. From March 2007 to November
2010, he served as Party member, leader of the significant project
team, deputy general manager and secretary of the commission
for discipline inspection in Shenyang branch of GWAMCC. From
November 2010 to January 2014, he served as deputy general
manager of significant project department, deputy general
manager of mergers and acquisitions department in GWAMCC.
From January 2014 to June 2021, he served as general manager,
chairman of the board and Party secretary of Great Wall (Tianjin)
Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd* (i (K3%) paE
KRERESEEARETAET). From October 2011 to December
2014, he served as chairman of the board of Hunan Tianyi Science
and Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 000908) (now known as
Hunan Jingfeng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a company listed in the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Wang has served as a director
and the Chairman of Great Wall International since June 2021
and June 2022, respectively. From June 2021 to June 2022, he
served as the general manager of Great Wall International.

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Huang Wei, aged 50, holds a doctoral degree in economics,
is a post-doctoral fellow majored in finance and a senior
economist. He obtained a doctoral degree in western economics
(international economics) from Huazhong University of Science
and Technology. He has been an executive Director, the Chief
Executive Officer and member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company since 1 February 2023. Mr. Huang has participated
in economic and financial research since June 2002 and
participated in financial work since October 2007, and has over
20 years of experience in economic and financial industry. From
October 2007 to April 2013, he served as a manager and senior
deputy manager of the development and planning department of
China Huarong Asset Management Corporation; from April 2013
to November 2016, he served as the senior manager and deputy
general manager of the Strategic Development Department
of China Great Wall Asset Management Corporation; from
November 2016 to February 2022, he served as the deputy head
of the office of board of directors (Introduction and Listing Office),
a member of the Party Committee, the deputy general manager
and the secretary of the Discipline Inspection Commission of
Hubei Branch of GWAMCC, a substantial shareholder of the
Company; from February 2022 to June 2022, he served as the
deputy general manager (general manager level) of Great Wall
International, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Since
June 2022, Mr. Huang served as the general manager and an
executive director of Great Wall International.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Yu Xianqing, aged 52, was born in Anging City, Anhui Province,
holds a Master degree in Engineering from Institute of Plasma
Physics Chinese Academy of Sciences. He has been a non-
executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company since 20 August 2021. Mr. Yu has engaged in finance-
related work since July 1997 and has over 25 years of experience
in finance field. From July 1997 to February 2000, he served as
cadre of technology department in Anhui branch of Agricultural
Bank of China. From February 2000 to March 2012, he served as
deputy division chief and division chief of finance department,
deputy director of assets operation department and senior
manager of business development department in Hefei office of
GWAMCC. From March 2012 to March 2015, he served as board
secretary, general manager of equity investment department
and director of business approval office in Great Wall Guorong
Investment Management Limited (RIFEIRREEEERA
&) *. From March 2015 to February 2018, he served as senior
manager of product promotion division Il of division synergy
department in GWAMCC. Since February 2018, Mr. Yu has served
as senior manager of division Il of subsidiaries management
department of GWAMCC.

*  For identification purpose only
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Song Ming, aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company on 5 November 2016.
Dr. Song graduated from Zhejiang University in July 1982 with a
bachelor degree in applied mathematics. Dr. Song obtained his
master degree in applied mathematics from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology (formerly known as Huazhong
Institute of Technology), and was awarded a doctorate by Ohio
State University. He has over 30 years of experience in the
research of bank regulation and management, financial market,
derivatives and macroeconomics. Between 1991 and 1997, Dr.
Song was the associate professor and assistant professor at
the department of economics, Cleveland State University. From
1997 to 2018, Dr. Song was employed by the school of economics
and finance of the University of Hong Kong, and he was a
professor, the director of Centre for China Financial Research
and the associate director of the Institute for China and Global
Development at the University of Hong Kong. From December
2017 to January 2023, Dr. Song was the Dean of the Economics
and Management School of Wuhan University and has been
heavily involved in various academic conferences, researches and
consultation projects, and he remains as professor of that School
from January 2023. He served as an independent non-executive
director of Wuzhou International Holdings Limited (previously
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1369
(delisted)) from May 2013 to December 2020. During the period
from June 2010 to May 2022, Dr. Song served as an independent
non-executive director of Guotai Junan International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1788), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. From December 2015 to July 2022, Dr. Song
was also an independent director of Tande Co., Ltd. (stock code:
600665), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Dr.
Song is currently an independent non-executive director of The
United Laboratories International Holdings Limited (stock code:
3933), which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Dr. Sun Mingchun, aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company on 5 November 2016. He is the senior economic
adviser of Tencent group (stock code: 700), a company listed on
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since June 20283, and during
the period from November 2019 to May 2023, he was the Chief
Economist of Haitong International Securities Group Limited
(stock code: 665), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. During the period from October 2014 to October
2019, Dr. Sun served as the chairman and chief investment
officer of Deepwater Capital Limited. Prior to joining Deepwater
Capital Limited, Dr. Sun held the positions as the senior partner
and chief economist at China Broad Capital Co., Limited, the
managing director, head of China research and chief Greater
China economist at Daiwa Capital Markets Hong Kong Limited,
the chief China economist, head of China equity research and
managing director at Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited
and the senior China economist, vice president at Lehman
Brothers Asia Limited. During the period from July 1993 to August
1999, Dr. Sun was also an economist of the State Administration
of Foreign Exchange of the PRC. Dr. Sun is currently the vice
chairman of the Chinese Financial Association of Hong Kong
and a member of the China Finance 40 Forum. He is also a guest
professor of the Finance EMBA program of Shanghai Advanced
Institute of Finance and the School of Economics of Fudan
University, and the honorary institute fellow of The Asia-Pacific
Institute of Business of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Dr.
Sun received a bachelor’s degree in international economics from
Fudan University in July 1993. He also obtained a master’s degree
in engineering economic systems and operations research and
a doctoral degree in management science and engineering from
Stanford University in June 2001 and June 2006, respectively.
From July 2014 to June 2020, Dr. Sun served as an independent
non-executive director of HJ Capital (International) Holdings
Company Limited (now known as Huafa Property Services Group
Company Limited) (stock code: 982), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. From July 2018 to January 2024, he served as an
independent non-executive director of Weimob Inc. (stock code:
2013), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

*  For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ERREmREHE

Ms. Liu Yan, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and the chairlady of the Audit Committee
of the Company on 26 November 2018. Ms. Liu obtained a
Bachelor degree in Economics from Central University of Finance
and Economics in 1992 and a Master degree in Business
Administration from University of Rochester in 2005. She is a
member of Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(CICPA) and passed all three levels for Chartered Financial
Analyst (CFA) Program. Ms. Liu has over 23 years of experience in
auditing, financial management, taxation and fund management.
From 1992 to 1994, Ms. Liu worked at Brilliance Group Holdings
Limited in Shanghai. From 1994 to 2001, she worked at
PricewaterhouseCoopers in Guangzhou. From 2005 to 2007, she
worked at the Global Financial Risk Management Department
at Barclays Capital in New York City. From 2007 to 2010, Ms. Liu
served as vice president at Angelo Gordon Asia Limited. From
2010 to 2015, she served as managing director of Investment
Management Department and Fund Management Department at
China Everbright Limited (Hong Kong). From June 2018 to August
2021, Ms. Liu served as an independent non-executive director of
Haitong International Securities Group Limited (stock code: 665),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From
November 2020 to November 2022, she was an independent
non-executive director of Planetree International Development
Limited (stock code: 613), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. From June 2015 to August 2023, Ms. Liu
served as an independent non-executive director of Tai United
Holdings Limited (stock code: 718), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EH R e

Senior Management

Ms. Zheng Yuanyuan, aged 45, was appointed as the Deputy
General Manager of the Company with effect from 15 March
2019. She was the company secretary of the Company from 31
October 2016 to 11 October 2019 and acted as head of the legal
department of the Company from the same date to June 2018.
Ms. Zheng has extensive experience in handling large investment
and transaction projects. She passed the National Judicial
Examination of the PRC and obtained the Legal Profession
Qualification Certificate in 2002. She acquired bar qualification in
the New York State of the United States in 2008 and qualified as a
practicing solicitor in Hong Kong in 2015. After obtaining a Master
degree in Common Law from the University of Pennsylvania in the
United States, Ms. Zheng worked in the Hong Kong office of Baker
& McKenzie from 2007 to 2015, and served as special counsel
prior to her resignation. From December 2015 to June 2018, Ms.
Zheng served as co-head of the legal department of Great Wall
International and acted as the Chief Administrative Officer of the
general affairs department of Great Wall International from June
2018 to March 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ERREmREHE

Mr. Zou Laiying, aged 47, was appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company with effect from 23 November 2021. He
graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
in 2000 with a bachelor degree in Finance and was awarded
a master degree in Financial Management from Newcastle
Business School in the United Kingdom in 2011. He is a Certified
Public Accountant of the PRC and holds the qualification of
Professional Risk Manager designated by the Professional Risk
Managers’ International Association. Mr. Zou has extensive
experience in financial analysis, risk management and audit.
From July 2000 to July 2002, he served as an office staff in
Qingdao branch of Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.. From July
2002 to July 2006, he worked at Shandong Huide Certified Public
Accountants as an auditor. From July 2006 to August 2009, he
served as a finance manager in the Bank of East Asia (China)
Limited. From May 2011 to January 2012, he served as the
manager of the financing department of China Universal Leasing
Co., Ltd.. From January 2012 to September 2015, he served as the
senior manager of Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited.
From October 2015 to December 2018, he served as the head
of compliance division of compliance and risk department of
GWAMCC. Since January 2019, Mr. Zou has served as the deputy
senior manager of finance management division of financial
planning department of GWAMCC. He has served as the head of
finance department of Great Wall International since September
2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

I R o b
Operating Results of the Group NEEZKERE

The Group's consolidated operating results forthe yearsended 31 #H®EBHE S =K _ZT_-_"F+_8
December 2023 and 2022 were as follows: —t+—HIEFEZFEAEREEEUNT .

For the year ended 31 December

HE+-A=+—BILEE

(HK$ millions, except percentages (BEAmT Bt 2023 2022 %Change
and per share amounts) RERSEERIN —E-= T2 EFEHt
Revenue Wz 121.8 120.9 07%
Rental and utilities & K i (11.7) (13.5) (13.3%)
Other operating expenses H& SR (34.7) (42.8) (18.9%)
Operating costs before depreciation REHTEZ RS M A (46.4) (56.3) (17.6%)
Depreciation e (6.9) (7.0) (1.4%)
Adjusted operating profit* AR R FIA 68.5 57.6 18.9%
Other income and gains or losses EAIK A e 2 B 5 18 0.3 0.5 (40.0%)
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment properties BEYENFERR

(#518) 745 (35.0) ok
Operating profit KSR 143.3 2311 *k
Net finance cost BAFS A 3 R (279.6) (163.9) 70.6%
Share of profits of associates FEILEE AR R 426.3 465.7 (8.5%)
Income tax expense FrigMBE> (5.1) (7.3) (30.1%)
Profit for the year 2ERA 284.9 3176 (10.3%)
Profit attributable to equity holders A AEERT) 284.9 3176 (10.3%)
Earnings per share (HK cents) SREF GBI 18.2 20.3 (10.3%)

~  Adjusted operating profit is defined as operating profit before other » KHABKCERIIAREAFRSTEMBRAKRIBZEY
income and fair value gain/(loss) on investment properties. ENTEWRE (G518 288 BA -

** Represents a change in excess of 100%. o REEBIE100%°
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEVEE VR

Profit attributable to equity holders for the year ended 31
December 2023 amounted to approximately HK$284.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 10.3% as compared
with profit attributable to equity holders of approximately
HK$317.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022. Earnings
per share was HK18.2 cents for the year ended 31 December
2023, based on weighted average of 1,567,745,596 shares in
issue (earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2022:
HK20.3 cents based on 1,567,745,596 shares in issue). Profit
for the year ended 31 December 2023 is mainly attributable
to the share of profits of associates and the fair value gain on
investment properties.

Excluding the revaluation gain of investment properties for
the year ended 31 December 2023 of approximately HK$74.5
million (revaluation loss of investment properties for the year
ended 31 December 2022: approximately HK$35.0 million), the
net profit attributable to equity holders for the year ended 31
December 2023 was approximately HK$210.4 million (net profit
attributable to equity holders for the year ended 31 December
2022: approximately HK$352.6 million), representing a year-on-
year decrease of approximately HK$142.2 million or 40.3%. The
decrease of the Group's profit was mainly due to the increase in
the finance cost of approximately HK$279.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (for the year ended 31 December 2022:
finance cost of approximately HK$163.9 million), resulting from
the rise in the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rates (“HIBOR”) on
which the borrowing cost of the Group’s loans are based.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEVRE Vi

Business Review

The Group principally engages in the operation of two segments,
namely, the property investment segment and the financial
services segment.

The positive results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 are primarily attributable to the contribution by the property
investment segment. The Group’s investment property portfolio
had no significant changes during the year and it has maintained
a diversified investment property portfolio in Hong Kong which
comprises Kwai Fong Plaza, certain floors of the Bank of America
Tower in Central, Yue King Building in Causeway Bay, Ko Fai
Industrial Building in Yau Tong and Seaview Estate in North Point.
The Group has also participated in the investment in the JV Group
(as defined in the paragraph headed “Significant Investment
in relation to the Investment in an Associate and Share of
Profit of an Associate” on page 24 of this report) which holds a
diversified portfolio of properties in Hong Kong. Details of the said
investment in the JV Group have been set out in the paragraph
headed “Significant Investment in relation to the Investment in
an Associate and Share of Profit of an Associate” in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

In 2023, the Group’s investment property business continued to
make good progress against an uncertain economic background.
In these challenging times, the Group focused on maintaining the
stability of its existing investment property portfolio, engaging
with its tenants and improving its balance sheet. Through its
diversified property portfolio, the Group’s investment properties
contributed a relatively steady income stream of approximately
HK$121.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2023, as
compared to HK$120.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2022. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s revenue
increased by 0.7% to HK$121.8 million (for the year ended 31
December 2022: HK$120.9 million) due to the increase of revenue
from property investment segment, despite the above, a profit
attributable to equity holders of HK$284.9 million was recorded
(for the year ended 31 December 2022: profit attributable to
equity holders of HK$317.6 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEVEE VR

The Group recorded a fair value gain on the Group's investment
properties of HK$74.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 (for the year ended 31 December 2022: fair value loss
of HK$35.0 million) and the decreased share of profits of the
Group's associates of HK$426.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 (for the year ended 31 December 2022: share of
profits of associates of HK$465.7 million). At 31 December 2023,
capitalisation rates range from 2.50% to 3.90% (at 31 December
2022: range from 2.75% to 3.90%) are used in the income
capitalisation approach for the investment properties which are
owned by the Group. With other variable(s) held constant, the
higher the rates, the lower the fair value. At 31 December 2023,
rental rates of HK$10.0 psf to HK$79.8 psf and HK$3,502.0
per car parking space (at 31 December 2022: HK$10.0 psf to
HK$89.0 psf and HK$3,470.0 per car parking space) are used for
investment properties and car parking space respectively in the
income capitalisation approach which takes into account market
information with reference to sales figures as available on the
market. With other variable(s) held constant, the lower the rental
rates, the lower the fair value. Given the unknown future impact
that the hike in interest rate might have on the real estate market,
management will keep the valuation under regular review.

The Group continues to leverage on the successful strategy in
diversifying its portfolio of investment properties as outlined
in its previous Annual Reports. This strategy has proven to be
successful in year 2023 and we are confident that it will continue
to succeed in the future so as to generate sustainable return for
our shareholders.

The Group also operates in the financial services segment
which comprises provision of asset management services
(licensed by the SFC to carry out Type 9 regulated activity).
The Group had ceased all business of Type 1 (dealing in
securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 6 (advising
on corporate finance) in 2023. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 28 April 2023 and 11 May
20283, respectively. Although the Group recorded a year-on-year
decrease in the revenue generated from the financial services
segment for the year ended 31 December 2023 given the volatile
financial market in year 2023, as more particularly discussed
in the paragraph headed “Financial Services” below, the Group
will continue to explore and seize opportunities to develop its
financial services segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEVRE Vi

Revenue

The consolidated revenue for the years ended 31 December #HE_Z
2028 and 2022 by business segments and for the Group were as

e

=

U

H

=FR-FE__F+-RB=+—H
IEFE 1% ¥?“ﬁﬁﬁ7§z$$@%‘5‘*zﬁf\u& Rl

follows: T
For the year ended 31 December
BE+B=1t—HILEE
2023 2022 % Change
(HK$ millions, except percentages) (BEEAT BRIy 2= “TTTF #Haott
Property investment MELE 121.8 120.6 1.0%
Financial services ERARTS - 0.3 o
Total revenue W A ER 121.8 120.9 0.7%
% Represents a change in excess of 100% s RTEFNBIB100%
Financial Review by Operating Segments EED B2 M4l

The Group’s reportable and operating segments during the year

ended 31 December 2023 are as follows:

FEERBE_T_=—F+_RB=1t—HILFE

ZRIEHAEEDEINT

(a) property investment segment which comprises the (a) YEKREHDPEERENEREWAZEE

investment in retail shops, office buildings, industrial

properties and car parking spaces for rental income; and

[ENARE TEREESEN; &

(b) financial services segment which comprises provision of (b) &RIARTFS DI EIEIRIETH RIS IEGIRMH

asset management services and corporate finance services

EEEERGREERMERT (BEMET

(licensed to carry on Type 1 (before 6 June 2023), Type 4 F188 (RS T=F/"A<88) ~H48E

(before 6 June 2023), Type 6 and Type 9 regulated activities)

under the SFO.

EEE) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEVEE VR

Property Investment MERE
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+—HLEE
2023 2022 % Change
(HK$ millions, except percentages) (BB AT ARtk —E-= “TTF  #2Haott
Revenue Wi 121.8 120.6 1.0%
Adjusted EBITDA* KRENRFSHIE
e Rz B 58.7 54.8 71%
Depreciation e (6.3) (6.3) -
Adjusted operating profit RS RT 52.4 485 8.0%
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment REMEATFENRE,
properties and other income (B518) R EMKRA 89.0 (20.0) ok
Net finance cost 5 2 H RE (54.5) (24.4) ok
Income tax expense PSRz (5.1) (7.4) (311%)
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders* A NG
BA, (BH)* 81.8 (3.3) ok

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation, other income and fair value gain/loss on investment
properties.

# Including fair value gain on investment properties of
approximately HK$74.5 million for the year ended 31
December 20283 and fair value loss on investment properties of
approximately HK$35.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2022.

whd Represents a change in excess of 100%.

Revenue of property investment segment for the year ended 31
December 2023 was approximately HK$121.8 million, compared
with approximately HK$120.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. The increase is mainly due to the increase in
revenue generated from the rental agreement relating to Kwai
Fong Plaza.

**

AR S B T ERBIE BT
RERREFEREFTE - HMRA KRR
BYEATERGBERZEF

BREEE_T=F+"A=+—HLFE
REMERNTERGEN748BBTREE
TECTE+TRA=+—HUEEEREYE
N EBBLN3K.0EERTT

FREHNBIR100% °

BEET_F+A=1+—HILFEYMERE
DEZ WEHAI121.8BR AT MEBaE T -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEVRE Vi

The profit attributable to shareholders from property investment
segment was mainly due to the fair value gain on investment
properties for the year ended 31 December 2023. An adjusted
operating profit of approximately HK$52.4 million was recorded
for the year ended 31 December 2023, compared to an adjusted
operating profit of approximately HK$48.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, which was mainly attributable to the
increase in revenue generated from the rental agreement relating
to Kwai Fong Plaza.

As at the date of this report, the Group's diversified investment
property portfolio in Hong Kong comprises Kwai Fong Plaza,
certain floors of the Bank of America Tower in Central, Yue King
Building in Causeway Bay, Ko Fai Industrial Building in Yau Tong
and Seaview Estate in North Point.

Revaluation gain on investment properties for the year ended 31
December 2023 was approximately HK$74.5 million, compared
with the revaluation loss of approximately HK$35.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022. The revaluation gain for the year
ended 31 December 2023 was mainly caused by the increase in
fair value of Kwai Fong Plaza of around HK$71.5 million, certain
floors of Yue King Building of around HK$4.0 million respectively
and the decrease in fair value of certain floor of Ko Fai Industrial
Building of around HK$1.0 million. The increase in appraised
value of the investment properties of the Group was attributable
to the resumption of normal economic activities in Hong Kong
after COVID in 2028.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31
December 2023 by independent professionally qualified valuers,
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited and CBRE
Advisory Hong Kong Limited (31 December 2022: Savills Valuation
and Professional Services Limited), which hold recognised
relevant professional qualification and have recent experience in
the locations and segments of the investment properties being
valued. For all investment properties of the Group, their current
use equates to the highest and best use. The revaluation gains
or losses are shown as “Fair value gain or loss on investment
properties” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Fair values of the retail shops, office buildings, industrial
properties and car parking spaces are derived using the income
capitalisation approach. There were no major changes to the
valuation techniques during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEVEE VR

Financial Services

T RUARTS

For the year ended 31 December

HE+-A=+—BILEE

2023 2022 % Change
(HK$ millions, except percentages) (BB AT ARtk ZTZ= “TTF  #2Haott
Revenue Wz - 0.3 *
Adjusted EBITDA* KRAENRFSHRIE
WEREHEZ B (17) (4.2) (59.5%)
Depreciation e - = =
Adjusted operating loss KB AR E51E (1.7) (4.2) (59.5%)
Net finance income R ONEE 0.6 01 i
Income tax credit PSRk R - 0/ %
Loss attributable to equity holders WEEE AELEE 1.1) (4.0) (72.5%)
" Adjusted EBITDA is defined as earnings before interest, tax, " BB RFTHERIE ITE R E#E > B F)

depreciation and other income.

xx Represents a change in excess of 100%.

There was no revenue derived from asset management for the
year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. There was no revenue
derived from corporate finance services for the year ended 2023
(31 December 2022: HK$0.3 million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 100%). The decrease of the financial services income
was mainly due to the decrease in the number of project under
corporate finance services as compared with year 2022 following
the cessation of all the business of the Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activity under the SFO in year 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEVRE Vi

Significant Investment in relation to the Investment in an
Associate and Share of Profit of an Associate

Significant investment in an associate represents the Group’s
35.78% equity interests in a joint venture, Everwell City Limited
(together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “JV Group”), which
owns 16 diversified commercial properties and shopping centres,
plazas and carparks across Hong Kong at Cheung Hang Shopping
Centre, Kai Yip Commercial Centre, Kam Tai Shopping Centre, Lei
Cheng Uk Shopping Centre, On Ting Commercial Complex, Shek
Lei Shopping Centre | & Il, Tai Wo Hau Commercial Centre, Tsz
Ching Shopping Centre, Yau Oi Commercial Centre, Yung Shing
Shopping Centre, Kwai Shing East Shopping Centre, Lai Kok
Shopping Centre, Lee On Shopping Centre, retail and car park
within Shun Tin Estate, Tsing Yi Commercial Complex and Lions
Rise Mall. The initial investment was HK$3,123.4 million in 2018.
The fair value of the investment was HK$5,387.0 million as at 31
December 2023 (31 December 2022: HK$4,960.7 million) and
represented around 56.8% of the total assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: 55.3%). The Group’s
share of profit of an associate from JV Group was approximately
HK$426.3 million in 2023 (share of profit for the year ended
31 December 2022: HK$465.9 million). The share of profit of
an associate of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 is mainly due to the fair value gain on revaluations of the
investment properties of the JV Group (which comprised of
commercial properties), which was attributable to the resumption
of normal business activities in Hong Kong after COVID in 2023.
Despite the road to market recovery is unpredictable, the Group
intends to hold the abovementioned equity interests in the JV
Group as long-term investment in order to generate sustainable
return for our shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEVEE VR

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group’s main source of liquidity is recurring cash flows from
the property investment and financial services businesses. The
Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were
as follows:

MEEERERKIR

FEBZFERBERREAREBMERE
PHRBER KBRS RE - AERBN T
TEFERIEICHFHTA=+—HZEBRR
W

31 December 31 December

2023 2022 % Change

+=B +=A
(HK$ millions, except percentages) (BE8EmT anttksyy =+—H =+—H #“FHEDL
Cash and bank balances RE MBI 232.5 209.7 10.9%
Shareholders funds REEE 4,001.5 3,716.9 77%
Current ratio TENLEE 0.05 0.05 -
Gearing ratio BEQMBILE 56.2% 57.2% (17%)

The Group’s cash and bank balances are held predominantly
in Hong Kong dollars. The Group has no significant exposure
to foreign exchange fluctuations. The Group has maintained a
strong cash position and expects its cash and cash equivalents,
and cash generated from operations to be adequate to meeting
its working capital requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEVRE Vi

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$232.5 million, as compared to
approximately HK$209.7 million as at 31 December 2022. The
Group's gearing ratio as at 31 December 2023 was 56.2% (as
at 31 December 2022: 57.2%), being calculated as total debts
(which includes the loans from an intermediate holding company
and amount due to an intermediate holding company) less cash
and bank balances (“net debt”), over the Company’s total capital
employed. Total capital employed is equivalent to the sum of
net debt and shareholders’ funds. The decrease in gearing ratio
is mainly due to the increase in shareholder’s funds as a result
of fair value gains of investment properties. As at 31 December
2023, the Group had outstanding principal of unsecured
shareholder loans of HK$5,370.0 million (as at 31 December
2022: HK$5,179.8 million). As at 31 December 2023, the Group
has no undrawn bank facility (as at 31 December 2022: no
undrawn bank facility). The Group actively and regularly reviews
and manages its liquidity position and financial resources and
makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions
and business development needs.

For the SFC licensed corporations under the Group, the Group
has ensured that each of the licensed corporations maintains
a liquidity level adequate to support the level of activities
with a sufficient buffer to accommodate increases in liquidity
requirements arising from potential increases in the level of
business activities. During the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2023, all the licensed subsidiaries have complied with
the liquidity requirements under the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEVEE VR

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, there are no
charges over assets of the Group.

Operating Activities

Net cash generated from operating activities for the year ended
31 December 2023 was HK$79.4 million, compared with net cash
generated from operating activities of HK$62.2 million in 2022.
The increase in operating cash flows was mainly due to higher
profit in the operation generated and decrease in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables by HK$8.3 million during the year
ended 31 December 2023 while there was an increase in such
balance by HK$1.3 million during the year ended 31 December
2022.

Investing Activities

Net cash generated from investing activities for the year ended
31 December 2023 was HK$37,000, compared with the net cash
generated from investing activities of HK$63.5 million in 2022.
The net cash generated from investing activities was mainly due
to the dividend income from associates of HK$66.2 million in
2022.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for the year ended 31
December 2023 was HK$56.4 million, compared with the net
cash used in financing activities of HK$245.4 million in 2022. The
cash outflow was mainly due to interest paid of HK$54.7 million
in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEVRE Vi

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 12 employees
(as at 31 December 2022: 14). As the Group’s businesses will
continue to grow, its remuneration philosophy is designed to
provide its employees with the opportunity to excel and grow,
while aligning with our business strategies and values.

The Group’'s remuneration and benefit policies, which are
structured in accordance with market terms and statutory
requirements, aim to recognise employees with outstanding
performance, motivate and reward employees in order to achieve
its business performance targets, retain and attract key talents
and ensure alignment with the interests of our businesses, and
thereby enhancing shareholder value. In addition, other staff
benefits such as medical insurance, medical check-up scheme,
mandatory and voluntary provident fund scheme and rental
reimbursement scheme are offered to eligible employees.

The Group’s employee recruitment and promotion are primarily
based on individuals’ merits, relevant experiences, development
potentials for the positions offered and performance.

Outlook

This fiscal year has been full of challenges and uncertainty in
view of the global macroeconomic. While signs of recovery in
China’s economy have been seen with enhanced resilience of
economic growth, it is still confronted with complex internal and
external situations. Numerous uncertainties in the investment
sentinels in the financial market have presented us with server
challenges. Nonetheless, the overall financial and business
positions of the Group remain healthy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEVEE VR

To cope with such challenges, the Board and management of the
Company will fully leverage on the competitive edges of the Group
to drive the performance of core businesses at a steady pace
and will also actively seize investment opportunities prudently
and thoroughly in order to generate favourable returns for our
Shareholders while maintaining strong cash position. The Board
considers that the overall financial and business positions of the
Group remain healthy.

Currently, the Group’s investment properties continue to
contribute stable stream of revenue. For the year under review,
the local economy has stabilized, however, the road to recovery
is still unpredictable. Overall, there are positive signs that
the economic recovery will maintain its momentum and our
management remains confident of the long-term economic
prospects of Hong Kong.

Looking ahead, in the complicated and constantly-changing
macro-economic environment with fierce competition, the Group
will seize the development opportunities arising from the China’s
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area strategic plan
and further strengthen the synergy effect by leveraging on the
substantial resources from China Great Wall Asset Management
Co., Ltd. ("GWAMCC”), our controlling shareholder, through
the integration of domestic and foreign capital markets, and
expanding its domestic business, to ensure the Group can
make full use of its role as the sole overseas listed platform of
GWAMCC.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRE

The Board and the Company’s management are committed to
upholding the Group's obligations to Shareholders. We regard the
promotion and protection of Shareholders’ interests as one of our
priorities and keys to success.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard
the interests of Shareholders and enhance corporate value,
formulate its business strategies and policies, and enhance its
transparency and accountability.

The Group has put in place sound corporate governance practices
to ensure it adheres to high ethical and business standards. The
key test of corporate governance practices is whether they can
align the interests of management with those of Shareholders
to adequately protect and promote Shareholders’ interests. The
Group is committed to the continuous improvement of corporate
governance practices to support the performance of our business
and enable effective oversight. The Group constantly reviews
these guidelines and policies and implements new ones to
ensure they remain relevant and practical in today’s fast changing
business environment and market expectations.

The Group has adopted and applied the applicable principles
and code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 (updated reference for financial years
commencing on or after 31 December 2023: Appendix C1) to the
Listing Rules as its corporate governance practices. The Group
also adheres to certain recommended best practices of the
Corporate Governance Code insofar as they are relevant and
practicable.

The Board is of the view that, throughout the year ended 31
December 2023, the Company has complied with the applicable
principles and code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code, save for the deviation from code provision F.2.2
as explained below and in this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Group believes that its current corporate governance
practices, which combine governance framework and practices
that develop over time and new practices set out in the Corporate
Governance Code, provide the Group with a sound and sensible
framework for balancing the business of the Group and the
interests of its Shareholders. The Group will continue to evaluate
its corporate governance practices in light of its business needs,
regulatory changes and new corporate governance philosophies.

Set out below are the Group’s current framework of governance
and explanations about how the provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code have been applied.

The Board of Directors

The Board recognises its responsibility to represent the interests
of Shareholders. As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board
comprises six Directors: two executive Directors and four non-
executive Directors (including three independent non-executive
Directors). Independent non-executive Directors represent more
than one-third of the Board.

The Directors of the Company during the year and as at the date
of this Annual Report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Hai

Mr. Xu Yongle (resigned on 1 February 2023)
Mr. Huang Wei (appointed on 1 February 2023)

Non-executive Director:
Mr.Yu Xianging

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr.Song Ming

Dr. Sun Mingchun

Ms. Liu Yan

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship) among members of
the Board. The biographies of all the Directors and the senior
management are set out on pages 8 to 15 of this Annual Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board’s main responsibility and purpose is to deliver the
long-term success of the Group and to create long-term value
for its Shareholders by providing strategic and entrepreneurial
leadership, and by exercising prudent oversight and control
over the Company. As the business continues to grow, the Board
needs to ensure that the Company has sufficient resources —
both funding and talent - to deliver success. The Board also
recognises the need for effective engagement by the Company
with its key stakeholders, including all its investors.

Each Director brings a wide range and years of business
experience to the Board to meet our long-term objectives. The
Directors’ combined knowledge, expertise and experience are
extremely valuable in overseeing the Group's business operations.

The Board sets the strategic direction and oversees the
performance of the Group’s business and management. The
principal matters the Board is responsible for include:

« approval of strategic direction, policies and objectives

« review and approval of business plans and budgets

« monitoring operational and financial performance

« review and approval of annual results and interim results

« review and approval of annual report and interim report as
well as the related financial statements

« review and approval of dividend policy and recommendation
of final dividend, and declaration of interim dividend and
where appropriate, special dividends

« appointment and re-appointment of auditor

« review and approval of significant acquisitions and disposals
and major financings, borrowings and guarantees

« approval of material contracts

« overseeing the risk management and internal control
systems and ensuring their effectiveness

In addition, the Board discusses major operating issues,
evaluates opportunities and business risks. Decisions and
conduct of matters other than those specifically reserved to
the Board are delegated to the management whilst structured
monthly updates on the Group’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient details are provided to the Directors to
enable them to discharge their duties.
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The Board reviews the arrangements between the
responsibilities of the Board and the matters delegated to the
management periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate
to the needs of the Group and its businesses.

Corporate Governance and Code of Conduct

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in code provision A.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code and adopted a revised Terms of
Reference of the Board on Corporate Governance Functions in
March 2017, including:

« develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance

« review and monitoring of the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management

+ review and monitoring of the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements

« development, review and monitoring of the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors

« review of the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report as specified under the Listing Rules

Key corporate governance matters reviewed by the Board during
the year were:

+ review of the Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements

« review of the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code

« review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group

« proposal on the re-appointment of the Company’s external
auditor, BDO Limited
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« appointment of Mr. Huang Wei as Executive Director, Chief
Executive Officer and a member of the Remuneration
Committee

« annual review of continuing connected transactions

« adoption of the revised Terms of Reference of the
Remuneration Committee and certain internal policies

« adoption of the amended and restated Bye-Laws

The Group has devised a Whistleblowing Policy (updated in
December 2020) on malpractice reporting and investigation
setting out specific procedures facilitating whistle-blowing
reports and investigation thereof. The purpose of formulating
the Whistleblowing Policy is to increase the awareness of
maintaining internal corporate justice and regard this as a kind of
internal control mechanism.

The nature, status and results of report received under the
Whistleblowing Policy are reported to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. No incident of fraud or misconduct that have material
effect on the Group’s financial statements or overall operations
for the year ended 31 December 2023 had been discovered.
The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed annually by the Audit
Committee to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company is also committed to upholding sound corporate
governance practices and complying with its obligations to
disclose inside information under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance as well as the Listing Rules. The Company had adopted
a Policy on Disclosure of Inside Information setting out specific
policies and procedures facilitating the Company’'s compliance
with these obligations.

Board Proceedings

The Board holds four regular meetings annually as a minimum,
usually quarterly, and also meets at such other times as
necessary. The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda
of regular Board and Board Committees meetings at least 14
days in advance. For other Board and Committees meetings,
notice is generally given pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws
and the respective Terms of Reference of the Committees.
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Agenda of Board meetings are prepared by the Company
Secretary in consultation with the Chairman of the Board, and
based on a forward calendar that helps to ensure that all relevant
matters for the year ahead are considered by the Board in a
timely manner. Each Director is encouraged to contribute to the
agenda setting process. The Board is provided with adequate,
timely and reliable information about the Group's businesses and
developments before each Board meeting at which the Directors
actively participate and make informed discussions. Each
Director is asked to review and comment on the Board minutes
within a reasonable time after each meeting to maintain accurate
records of Board discussions and decisions.

During the year, the Board held four Board meetings. The
attendance of each Director at Board and Committee meetings,
the annual general meeting is detailed in the table below.

NEWELERNEFTETFRIRBRRAER
REFERT UEFRZFENE N RMAHERER
i’%‘“%%‘ﬁ&ﬁ%)ﬁ ISR EREF2 AT

FENER -SREFETER EFTE
?mf#ﬁ%l%ﬁ‘%&ﬁéiizﬁﬁ BRADIEZE
kg L ERRB2EKARNBN® SRE
FEANGH B —RAERENEZMTZEETS
GECi LRI EZEF G HRIR
SRECHRAENE ©

FREEGERTIUNEETTEE SESRT
EEENREZETEH UAKREBEAZHER
EEZTI LN

Attendance/No. of Meeting(s)

HERB/EEHE
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Annual
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENZEE HMWZEE RRZEE  RREE

Name of Director s EXREE 23 25 2% AE
Mr. Wang Hai IBE%4E 4/4 -/- -/- 17 N
Mr. Huang Wei BERAD 4/4 -/- 17 -/- N
Mr. Xu Yongle? fRKgRED -/- -/- -/- -/- -/-
Mr.Yu Xianging REBTE 4/4 33 -/- -/- 0/1
Dr. Song Ming REHEL 3/4 3/3 " 10 0N
Dr. Sun Mingchun HhEAEEL 4/h -/- 1/1 1/1 0N
Ms. Liu Yan Figenn 44 3/3 /- /- 0/
Notes: M5E :

(1) Appointed as an executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and a (1) MIEBE_=F_H—BHESEFAPITEE 1TH

member of the Remuneration Committee on 1 February 2023.

BHEKRFNEEEHE -

(2) Resigned as an executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and a  (2) RIZTZ=F"_F—HEEHITEE TBHEH

member of the Remuneration Committee on 1 February 2023. No
Board meeting and Remuneration Committee meeting were held
before 1 February 2023.

FNEEERE - R_E-_=F "8 —HAI
BEAHESTZEENFTNEEE TS
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All the Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary to ensure all board procedures and
all applicable laws, rules and regulations are complied with.
The Directors update the Board regarding offices held in
public companies and organisations, and other significant
commitments once every half year. There are also procedures for
the Directors to obtain independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense.

Code provision C.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulated
that the chairman should at least annually hold meeting(s) with
the independent non-executive directors without the presence of
other directors. The meeting was held on 30 August 2023.

Board Diversity Policy

The Group recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of the Company’s
performance.

The Nomination Committee of the Board is primarily responsible
for leading the process for Board appointments and for
identifying and nominating, for approval by the Board, suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board. The
benefits of diversity continue to influence the succession
planning of the Board.

When identifying candidates for Board membership of the
Company, the Nomination Committee takes into account the
board diversity policy of the Company (“Board Diversity Policy”). A
range of diversity factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional and industry
experience, skills, knowledge and time commitments will be
considered in selection of each candidate to become member of
the Board. All Board appointments will be based on merits and
contribution that the selected individuals will bring to the Board.
The Company’s own business model and specific needs has
also been taken into consideration in setting the Board Diversity
Policy. External recruitment professionals might be engaged to
carry out the selection and recruitment process when necessary.
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In conducting the annual review of the effectiveness of the
Board, the Nomination Committee considers the balance of
talents, skills, experience and background and the diversity
representation of the Board. The Nomination Committee reviews
annually all measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board and recommends them to the Board for adoption. The
Nomination Committee reports annually on the process it has
used for Board appointments.

Measurable objectives include (i) at least one third of the Board
shall be independent non-executive Directors; (ii) at least
one Director is female and (iii) at least one Director shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualifications. For year
2023, the Group had fulfilled the above measurable objectives.

Gender Diversity

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors,
one of which is female. The Company targets to avoid a single
gender Board and will timely review the gender diversity of the
Board in accordance with the corporate governance practices
and business development of the Group. The Company believes
the gender diversity in the Board would bring more inspiration to
the Board and enhance the business development of the Group,
and thus, gender diversity is one of the essential factors for the
Company to select suitable successors to the Board.

As at 31 December 20283, the Group had 12 employees in total
comprising of 6 females and 6 males (that is, a female-to-male
ratio of 1:1 and the gender ratio in respect of senior management
is 1:3), reflecting a gender equality principle adhered by the
Group. Same as the gender diversity of the Board, the Company
targets to avoid a single gender workforce and will review the
gender diversity of all employees in accordance with the business
development of the Group when appropriate.

BFEETRNEFEN LIFMNE REEEE
REBEFERNZAS K KRk RES
T EZEREEHES IR RS S F RN ESR
SENZSTEZAAREEER WRESFER
HRMEZ - RREEEEFNERESTEERM
ZREFELER -

OEEEREFENEL =02 —NESFERER
BIFITES ; 12— YHEES; ED
—RESERFHAEMEEER R T "=
FE - AEEERELMATEEBR.

MERIZTTiE
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ERBRIENEFE MRS T ERE AT
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REREBEFER -FHIL ERZTEREA
AEECEEEGREIANCEBRERY —
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the Director Nomination Process and
Selection Criteria of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”),
which aims to set out the relevant selection criteria and
nomination procedures to assist the Nomination Committee
and the Board to ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to
the requirement of the Group's businesses. A summary of the
Nomination Policy is disclosed as below.

1. Criteria

The Nomination Committee and the Board shall consider the
following criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorships:

« Character and integrity.

« Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy.

« Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a Board member and other directorships and
significant commitments.

« Requirement for the Board to have independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

- Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee or the Board for

achieving diversity on the Board.

« Such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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2. Nomination Process 2. 1ERIBE

2.1 Appointment of New Director 2.1 IEFHZIT
211 The Nomination Committee or the Board shall, QNIRREEEREETTAERIEZE

upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new MEENEZRREEANBEAER
director and the biographical information (or relevant (SUAEREEEIB) 18 iR LB 300
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate Pl ZE BT sz (E 3 A LU R 5%
based on the criteria as set out in section 1 above to BEARSSBEREEES-

determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship.

2121f the process yields one or more desirable 2120038728 R — A LB & RaRE
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank N IRREEGERBRAATNSG
them by order of preference based on the needs of ERBAEEANEBRMEESLS W
the Company and reference check of each candidate ) B ENEA R F-

(where applicable).

213 The Nomination Committee shall then recommend QIRBLEEEHRRANEZESEBEE
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for AEAEENESGREESR

directorship.

2.4 For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder 2 4RI R RIZEA N A A B ER
for election as a director at the general meeting of ARELEEREENAL  ZELE
the Company, the Nomination Committee and the BEKREEEAKE MBS 1EMAFT
Board shall evaluate such candidate based on the AR ST ZEEEN » LISV ER 5%
criteria as set out in section 1 above to determine BREASESEEREBEIES &8
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship BORBEEGR /RNESGEAR
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee PREAE FHEEEERRERE
and/or the Board shall make recommendation to HEse

Shareholders in respect of the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.

RIBIRTIERABRAR —T_=FERE 39
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2.2 Re-election of Director at General Meeting

2.21The Nomination Committee and the Board shall
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director including his/
her attendance of Board meetings and, where
applicable, general meetings, and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

2.2.2The Nomination Committee shall also review and
determine whether the retiring director continues to
meet the criteria as set out in section 1 above.

2.2.3The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall
then make recommendation to Shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of director at the
general meeting.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board confirms the term of appointment and functions of
all non-executive Directors and Board Committee members
with formal letters of appointment. Non-executive Directors are
appointed for a term of three years.

Directors who are appointed to fill vacancies or as an addition to
the Board are subject to re-election at the next following general
meeting of the Company after his or her appointment. In addition,
every Director, including every non-executive Director, shall retire
from office no later than the third annual general meeting after
he/she was last elected or re-elected. One-third of the Directors
for the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, then a number not less than one-third, are required to
retire by rotation from office at every annual general meeting
under the Company’s Bye-Laws. A retiring Director is eligible for
re-election.
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The Company maintains procedures for Shareholders to propose
a person for election as a director of the Company. The details of
these procedures are published on the Company’s website.

Directors’ Remunerations

The Directors’ fees and all other reimbursements and
emoluments (if any) paid or payable to the Directors during the
year are set out, on an individual and named basis, in Note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report on
pages 227 to 231.

The remuneration policy of the Group is set out on page 28 of this
Annual Report.

Compliance with the Model Code and the Company’s
Guidelines

The Board has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code of
conduct for securities transactions by its Directors. Having made
specific enquiry with all Directors, all Directors have confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the
date of this Annual Report.

The Company has also adopted written guidelines (the
“Company’s Guidelines”), which are equally stringent as the
Model Code, in respect of securities transactions by relevant
employees of the Company who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company pursuant to code
provision C.1.3 of the Corporate Governance Code. No incident
of non-compliance against the Model Code or the Company’s
Guidelines by the Company’s relevant employees has been noted
after making reasonable enquiry.

FRBETIRRIERATEER R RABDESHE
o R BETIB R A AR

EEME

FR EXNSBNTFESZESAERAEH
T ERIERINE WA) @ ZEHEFELEHS
MRAFEEREE227 R 231 B 2R E M IRRMTEE
17

REEZ FHMBERE N A FEREH288

BT RETRIRATRESI

EXTERMNRETIEA AR ESETE
SR ZBRTHEL KR 2REFFLARSESN
B eREFHERIRSNBE_ZT =
T R=t—HIEREFEREEFFERSH
HIRIE —EETRETRIPTSHARERE

FLRIBESRI A R B RAMAREE Z T AE AR
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Independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Board has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules and is grateful for the
contribution and independent advice and guidance that they
have been giving to the Board and the Board Committees.

Directors are required to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at Board meetings and withdraw if appropriate.

The Board has adopted the board independence evaluation
mechanism (the “Mechanism”) which sets out the principles and
guidelines for the Company to ensure independent view and input
to be available to the Board in accordance with code provision
B.1.4 of the Corporate Governance Code, and the implementation
and effectiveness of such Mechanism is reviewed on an annual
basis.

Continuing improvement and development of the Board and
its committees processes and procedures through Board
independence evaluation provides a powerful and valuable
feedback mechanism for improving Board effectiveness,
maximising strengths, and identifying the areas that need
improvement or further development. The evaluation process
also clarifies what actions of the Company need to be taken
to maintain and improve the Board performance, for instance,
addressing individual training and development needs of
each Director. The Mechanism is designed to ensure a strong
independent element on the Board, which allows the Board to
effectively exercise independent judgment to better safeguard
shareholders’ interests.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated
briefings for Directors are arranged and reading materials on
relevant topics are distributed to Directors from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all the Directors
had participated in continuous professional development
programmes, including but not limited to internally-facilitated
briefings organised by the Company and qualified professionals
and trainings conducted by law firm and professional
parties, and reading materials relevant to directors’ duties
and responsibilities. A record of the trainings received by the
respective Directors are kept and updated by the Company. The
training areas that the Directors received during the year were as
follow

EENREERER

EENK T REERTADESZNBESIRTIU
RAEABNET EE R

KARXBESDEBEENFHEREERE U3
BREMBEENNH# R BREEEHS
EEEHABEREENEM KM FNERESR
BERBEN G EREFREERMZENZEE
#l o

BE_T_-—F+"RB=+—HLFE -FEE
FHE2RAFREXELRE BERENRIREA
FABREEREEANTRMOIABENE > K
FREN ST B R IR AR LUK FEE
FE SRS R EENME - R ERFTEZ ZI1E
SEETARREREN EFNFENFERZ
BRI EBHEN T o

Training A reas
123 SR B

Corporate Legal and Group’s
Governance Regulatory Business
EERK
Name of Director SFEHR TEER BEEMRE NERER
Mr. Wang Hai FieiE v v v/
Mr. Huang Wei @ BERTED v v v/
Mr. Xu Yongle @ RGBS A v v v
Mr. Yu Xianging REBSRE v v v
Dr. Song Ming REEL v v v/
Dr. Sun Mingchun HEREEL v v v
Ms. Liu Yan 28kt v v v
Notes: st :
(1) Appointed as an executive Director on 1 February 2023. (1) RIBZ=F"_F—HEZEARAIITES-
(2) Resigned as an executive Director on 1 February 2023. 2 RITEBE=F"_A—HBH#ANTES-
RIBIRTIERABRAR —E_=FERE 43
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Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting in
respect of Financial Statements

All Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Other matters relating to the Board

The Group has appropriate insurance in place to cover the
liabilities of the Directors and officers of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this report, Mr. Wang Hai is the Chairman of
the Board and Mr. Huang Wei is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. The primary role of the Chairman is to provide
leadership for the Board. He is responsible for the proper
functioning of the Board and for securing the application of
good corporate governance practices. The Chairman ensures the
Board has formulated the corporate goals and objectives, long-
term business model and strategy for delivering the corporate
strategy of the Group, and establishes an effective system for
monitoring the progress of their effective implementation and
achievement. He directs the corporate development activities of
the Group, and ensures that effective steps are taken to provide
effective communication with Shareholders and that their views
are communicated to the Board as a whole. The Chairman is
also responsible for setting the Board’s agenda and ensuring
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board
meetings and that adequate time is available for discussion of
all agenda items in particular strategic issues. He promotes a
culture of openness and debate by encouraging Directors with
different views to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time for
discussions fairly reflect board consensus, and facilitating the
effective contribution of non-executive Directors in particular
and ensuring constructive relations between executive and non-
executive Directors. Furthermore, the Chairman is responsible for
ensuring that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, accurate,
clear,complete and reliable information.

44  GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023

EEHMBHRRNOMBREEE

EREFEINSAEIRNEERGE_Z
T =F+ZA=t—HILEENGEMHRE

HEREAMCHMER

FEFEMTERESRESRITRAESZEEF
HEE AR

FRERATE AR

RAERESEE EBEEFESFEIRE MER
TEEAREDITBHRE - TFEN T ERHZRE
RESETAG TESESENLEEF ®
REGEXEELARERBUBT EEREEFS
RIEAEENEEERKRTE RAEH RN R
RESL B IRAE BB  WEI A IS
DB BT RT R BYER - BI55 | N EE
TEERIFRERCSRINE MR ELARRER
RANBME BEREEREEREEFE-
ITREITEE] TEFERE  BRE EARRE
mEiz LFTASR HHERRE LNEE TR
BEEBFTITAERNESFRERSH LI BT
RIS A T RIRES FRIHH ) LUK
EIFNTEFFHREER  BEARAITRIFRTT
ESHMERMERG  (EMHERERRRER I
Eollbsh TEE BRFRESBERIZWER B
B ~ S K FI SRRV E AT o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRE

The primary role of the Chief Executive Officer is to focus on
attending to the formulation and implementation of Group’s
policies and overseeing the implementation of the strategies and
objectives agreed by the Board. The senior management should
support the Chief Executive Officer in performing this. The Chief
Executive Officer has principal responsibility for overseeing day-
to-day management of the Group's businesses and operations,
maintaining the operational performance of the Group and
monitoring the operating and financial results of the Group's
businesses against plans and budgets.

Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees with mandates to deal with certain
corporate governance affairs of the Group. The Terms of
Reference of each of the above-mentioned Committees
are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company’s website.

From time to time, the Board will also establish other board
committee(s) to deal with specific aspects of its business.

Each Committee is established with written terms of reference
which are no less exacting than those set out in the Corporate
Governance Code, setting out its roles and functions. Each
member of the Committee has a formal letter of appointment
setting out key terms and conditions relating to his/her
appointment.

Each Committee meets as frequently as required by business
developments and the operation of the Group. Committee
members are provided with adequate and timely information
before each meeting or discussion. All Committee members are
asked to review and comment on the minutes of their meetings
within a reasonable time after the meetings.

The procedures and arrangements relating to the meetings of
the Board are applied to meetings of the Board Committees
whenever it is appropriate.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 with its defined
written terms of reference (which was revised in August 2018).
As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Liu Yan
(Chairlady of the Audit Committee) and Dr. Song Ming, and a non-
executive Director, Mr. Yu Xianging. A majority of Audit Committee
members are independent non-executive Directors, with Ms. Liu
Yan and Dr. Song Ming possessing the appropriate professional
qualifications and accounting and related financial management
expertise.

The Audit Committee members have professional qualifications
and experience in financial matters that enable the Committee
to exercise its powers effectively and provide the Board with
independent views and recommendations in relation to financial
matters.

The principal roles of the Audit Committee are to ensure that
the Company has formal and transparent arrangements for
considering matters relating to the Group’s financial reporting,
and risk management and internal control systems and for
maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Company’s
internal auditor (if any) and external auditor.

The duties of the Audit Committee, as set out in its terms of
reference, covering the relevant code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code.

The Audit Committee holds two regular meetings annually
and also meets at such other times as circumstances require.
Any Audit Committee member may convene a meeting of the
Committee. The external auditor may also request the Committee
Chairman to convene a meeting of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee may invite the external auditor and/or members of
management to attend any of the meetings. Special meetings
may be called at the discretion of the Committee Chairman or at
the request of management to review significant internal control,
risk management or financial issues. The Committee Chairman
reports to the Board at least twice a year on the Committee’s
activities and highlights any significant issues.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, Audit Committee held
three meetings and the individual attendance records of each
of the Audit Committee members are set out on page 35 of this
Annual Report.

The Audit Committee’s main works during the year included
reviewing:

« 2022 Annual Report, including the Corporate Governance
Report, Directors’ Report and the audited consolidated
financial statements, as well as the related annual results
announcement (with recommendations made to the Board
for approval)

« 2023 Interim Report and interim results announcement (with
recommendations made to the Board for approval)

« compliance with the Corporate Governance Code, the SFO,
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules

« in relation to the external auditors, their report on the review
of interim consolidated financial information and the audit
of the Group's consolidated financial statements, key audit
findings, audit services plan and letter of management’s
representation, and terms of engagement

« Internal Control Assessment Report (with areas of concerns
discussed and highlighted to the Board)

- effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems and associated
procedures within the Group

« annual review of the continuing connected transactions

During the year, the Board has not taken any view that is
different from that of the Audit Committee nor rejected any
recommendation presented by the Audit Committee.

There were no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which in turn
endorsed the view) that, subject to Shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, BDO Limited be re-
appointed as the external auditor for year 2024.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2000 with its
defined written terms of reference (which was revised in January
2023). A majority of its members are independent non-executive
Directors. As at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Song Ming (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Dr. Sun Mingchun, and an executive Director, Mr.
Huang Wei.

The Remuneration Committee reviews remuneration policies
and structure of the Group with the delegated responsibility to
determine the remuneration packages of executive Director(s)
and senior management of the Group (as defined in the terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee). It also makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors.

In conducting its work in relation to the determination of
remuneration of Directors and senior management, the
Remuneration Committee ensures that no individual (or any of
his/her close associates) was involved in determining his or her
own remuneration.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee, as set out in its
terms of reference, covering the relevant code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code.

The Remuneration Committee meets once a year and at such
other time as necessary. Any Committee member may convene a
meeting of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting and the individual attendance
records of each of the Remuneration Committee members are set
out on page 35 of this Annual Report.
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The Remuneration Committee’s main works during the year
included:

« review of the remuneration policy and structure of the Group

« review and determination of the remuneration package of
executive Directors and senior management

« review and recommendation of the Directors’ fees of all the
independent non-executive Directors for approval by the
Board

« review and recommendation of the terms of the service
contract of Mr. Huang Wei as executive Director for approval
by the Board

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2005 with its
defined written terms of reference (which was revised in March
2017). A majority of its members are independent non-executive
Directors. As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises an executive Director, Mr. Wang Hai (Chairman of the
Nomination Committee) and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Song Ming and Dr. Sun Mingchun.

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for
identifying suitably qualified individuals to become members
of the Board, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors and senior management, reviewing
the size, structure and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board, reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s Board Diversity Policy annually
and making recommendations to the Board on the measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board. It also assesses
the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

Before an appointment is made, the Nomination Committee
evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the
Board and, in the light of this evaluation, prepares a description
of the role and capabilities required for a particular appointment.
If deemed appropriate, external consultants may be engaged to
identify suitable candidates.

The duties of the Nomination Committee, as set out in its terms of
reference, covering the relevant code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code.
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The Nomination Committee shall meet at least annually or meet
at such time as the Committee Chairman shall require. Any
Nomination Committee member may convene a meeting of the
Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting and the individual attendance
records of each of the Nomination Committee members are set
out on page 35 of this Annual Report.

During 2023, the Nomination Committee completed the review of
the size, structure and composition of the Board and assessed
the independence of independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to code provision B.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code and made recommendations to the Board on the re-election
of retiring Directors. It also conducted a review on the diversity
of the Board and recommended to the Board for approval of the
appointment of Mr. Huang Wei as an executive Director of the
Company.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer and is responsible for ensuring there
is a good and timely flow of information to Directors, both in their
roles as Board members and as members of individual Board
Committees. He also assists with the continuing professional
development of Board members. The Company Secretary is
responsible for taking and keeping minutes of all Board and
Board Committee meetings.

The Company Secretary also plays an important role in advising
the Board on all corporate governance-related matters and is
also available to provide advice to the Board. Ms. Foo Man VYee,
the Company Secretary, has confirmed that she has undertaken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

Ms. Foo Man Yee of CS Legend Business Services Limited, an
external services provider, has been appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company since April 2022. Her primary contact
person at the Company is Mr. Zou Laiying, the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

All activities conducted and all decisions made by the Company
may involve risks to a certain extent. The Board plays a critical
role of monitoring the risk exposure of the Company. The Board
considers the risks in an active manner in setting of strategies.
The Board also considers the risks in assessing opportunities for
business development and growth so as to determine the risk
appetite of the Company.

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the
risk management and internal control systems and for reviewing
the effectiveness of these systems annually so as to safeguard
the Shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets.
Accordingly, the Company has established internal control and
risk management systems to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss and manage or mitigate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Company’s objective is to establish a comprehensive and
effective risk management and internal control systems. The
Board is aware of its responsibility to ensure that an appropriate
and effective risk management system is established and
maintained by the Company.

The Group has in place an Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”)
framework to effectively identify, assess, report, mitigate and
monitor key risks. The framework provides a proactive and
structured approach to identify, manage and monitor risks
on an on-going basis with a common framework across the
organisation to evaluate risk significance and likelihood of
occurrence.

Risks faced by the Company fall into a number of principal
categories: strategic risk, operational risk, compliance risk,
financial risk and information risk. The procedures of ERM
of the Company involve risk identification, risk assessment/
prioritisation, risk response and risk monitoring and reporting.
Risks and uncertainties associated with the business of the
Company may have an adverse effect on business, financial
conditions and results of the Company. The Company has
identified certain principal risks through risk identification and
assessment, and has developed risks monitoring mechanism to
facilitate risk monitoring and control.
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The Group operates a “Three Lines of Defence” risk governance
model to delegate and coordinate essential risk management
and control duties in a clear and cohesive manner:

(a)

52

First line of defence — Business units are responsible for
maintaining effective internal controls and for executing risk
and control procedures on a day-to-day basis. Operational
management identifies, assesses, controls, and mitigates
risks, guides the development and implementation of
internal policies and procedures and ensures that activities
are consistent with goals and objectives. Through a
cascading responsibility structure, mid-level managers
design and implement detailed procedures that serve as
controls and supervise execution of those procedures by their
employees.

Second line of defence - (1) Business Management
Department monitors the risk management system,
and facilitates the development, setting and effective
implementation of policies and guidelines. It provides
advice and guidance to the first-line functional units on
implementation of the risk management and internal
control systems; (2) Legal and Compliance Department
monitors various specific risks such as non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations; (3) Company Secretarial
Department monitors various specific risks such as violation
of applicable rules and regulations; (4) Finance Department
serves as a controllership function that monitors financial
risks and financial reporting issues.

Third line of defence — Internal audit function, which reports
to the Audit Committee, provides independent assessment
over the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems and makes recommendations based on the
audit findings.
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During the year, an independent professional advisory firm
has been engaged by the Company as the consultant of the
Group. It is responsible for conducting in-depth review on risk
management and internal control systems of the Group. Such
review is conducted annually. The advisory firm has issued a
report with its opinion that the Company has maintained effective
and adequate risk management and internal control systems,
which are compliant and align with the Company’s operational
and management systems.

The purpose of the internal control system of the Company is to
improve the operating effectiveness and efficiency, safeguard
assets against abuse and unauthorised disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and that the financial
statements give a true and fair view, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss,
and manages, rather than eliminates, risks associated with the
business activities of the Company.

The Board together with the Audit Committee have reviewed
the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company during the year.
The Board will upgrade the existing systems of the Company
with reference to the recommendations given by the above-
mentioned independent professional advisory firm, in the areas
of financial management, operation and corporate controls
and risk management. The Board is satisfied that effective and
adequate risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are maintained and align with the operational and
management systems of the Company. The Directors consider
that it is necessary for the Company to continuously improve its
internal control system to the extent that the risks preventing the
Company from achieving its objectives can be properly managed.
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Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company has established and implemented specific policies
and procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, including limiting employees’
access to inside information on a “need-to-know” basis and
ensuring that those who need to know understand their
obligations to maintain the confidentiality of any confidential
information of the Group. Appropriate confidentiality agreements
are put in place when the Company enters into significant
negotiations. All inside information is disclosed to the public
pursuant to the requirements under the SFO and the Listing
Rules and is kept strictly confidential before disclosure.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s business, financial
condition and operating results. Key risks affecting the Group are
identified below. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently
known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial may
also have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows. The Group
employs an ERM framework to identify current and foreseeable
risks at different levels of the organisation so as to take
preventive actions to manage and mitigate their adverse impacts.
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(1) Regulatory compliance risks (1) EESH R

The Hong Kong financial market in which the Group operates
is highly regulated. The Company, as a listed company in Hong
Kong, together with certain subsidiaries with SFC licences
to carry out relevant regulated activities, are required
to comply with the rules and regulations from various
regulatory bodies. The regulatory and compliance regime in
the financial industry of Hong Kong is changing constantly,
which increases the likelihood of regulatory non-compliance
as new rules are introduced and existing ones are tightened.
The Group may encounter challenges in keeping abreast
of the changes and managing regulatory compliance risks,
particularly in the areas of handling connected transactions,
notifiable transactions and managing the disclosure of inside
information, preventing money laundering transactions for
money lending business. In case of failure to comply with the
applicable rules and regulations, the Group may be subject to
fines, or even suspension or revocation of some or all of the
licenses for carrying on the business activities. Accordingly,
the Group's business operations and financial results might
be materially and adversely affected.
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The Group requires the right people, skills and
capability to manage growth and change

The Group has established an organisation structure to
address recent business changes and relevant regulatory
requirements. Staff roles and responsibilities, authorities
and limits, reporting lines and segregation of duties need to
be clearly defined. Since most of the Group’s core businesses
commenced operation with limited number of key personnel
in each business segment, the Group is required to review
the needs of staff resources in order to cope with the
business expansion and deliver success in the future.
Given that the competition for competent personnel in the
industry is intense, there is high likelihood that competent
personnel may leave the Company, therefore, the Group may
encounter difficulties in attracting or retaining the services
of the necessary key personnel for that business segment.
The Group should hire and retain highly skilled employees
with particular expertise or leadership capability in order
to remain competitive. The implementation of the Group’s
strategic business plans could be undermined by failure to
build a resilient corporate culture, failure to recruit or retain
key personnel, unexpected loss of key senior employees,
failures in the Group's succession planning and incentive
plans, or failure to invest in the development of key skills.

The Group is subject to a competitive and changing
industry

Financial services segment is one of the reportable and
operating segments of the Group. The financial service
industry in Hong Kong has a large number of participants
which makes the industry highly competitive. The Group has
to compete against competitors which may have greater
brand recognition in the market, more human and financial
resources, a wider range of services and longer operating
history than that of the Group. Apart from large multinational
financial institutions, the Group also faces competition from
local small and medium-sized financial services firms which
offer a similar range of services. Failure to maintain the
Group's competitive strengths by responding rapidly to the
changing business environment and intensified competition
may erode the Group’s market share and result in an adverse.
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(4) Risks related to strategic planning and reputation

GWAMCC, one of the four major state-owned financial
asset management corporations in the PRC, is engaged in
the businesses of acquisition, management and disposal
of non-performing assets, asset management, banking,
securities, insurance, trust, leasing, investment, etc. As a
result of changes in the Group's shareholding structure and
businesses in 2016 and 2017, GWAMCC became the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company. The Group is now
principally engaged in property investment and provision
of financial services including asset management. The
Board has formulated development plans and strategies
to accomplish the strategic objectives of transforming the
Group into a conglomerate with businesses in property
investment and integrated financial services, and developing
the Company as a major listed entity and an integrated
development platform of GWAMCC outside Mainland China.

The Group will leverage the solid foundation, strengths and
reputation that GWAMCC has formed in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, in order to constantly expand its businesses.
As such, the Group is exposed to inherent reputation risks,
failure to deliver quality services to clients could result in an
adverse impact on Great Wall's brand reputation.
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(5) Financial and regulatory reporting risks (5) HBEREERESEE

As a listed company, the Company has statutory and social
responsibilities to prepare accurate and timely financial
statements which provide objective and reliable information
for stakeholders to base their decisions upon. Inaccurate or
untimely reporting could seriously affect the Group’s position
such as a drop in share price, or impaired sourcing/financing
ability. The Group carried out asset management business,
which indicates that new financial reporting processes
are implemented and experienced finance staff would
be required to extract, assemble, aggregate and analyse
financial data to ensure accurate financial reporting. The
process of financial reporting becomes more complex and
frequent, and transactions may involve complex accounting
treatment or estimation. The Finance Department is required
to assess the impact of the new or revised standards upon
adoption from time to time. In addition, licensed corporations
are subject to various statutory returns (i.e. the Securities
and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules, Disclosure of
Interests, etc) under the requirement of the SFC and other
regulatory bodies.

The Group is exposed to various key risks including credit
risks, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. Details of the
aforesaid key risks and risk mitigation measures are
elaborated in Note 27 “Financial Risk Management” to the
consolidated financial statements included in this Annual
Report.
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(6) The Group requires a robust internal control system

and controls

The Group is operating under a highly regulated environment.
As a listed company with SFC licensed subsidiaries,
members of the Group are required to establish sound
and effective internal controls which are designed to
identify and manage the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, ensure reliable financial reporting, effective
and efficient operations, and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. Apart from the investment property
business, other core business, including asset management
was introduced in 2017. The Group has established
relevant policies and procedures to cope with the business
development. Strengthening of the internal control and
risk management systems is an ongoing process, the
Group is expected to continue designing and implementing
appropriate measures to meet the changing business
environment. Failure in delivering services in a proper
manner, the Group may result in facing a loss in market
share, reputation and sales revenue.

(7) Risks pertaining to investment properties

The prospects of the Group's property investment business
depend on the performance of the property market in
Hong Kong. The property market in Hong Kong is affected
by many factors, including but not limited to, changes
in local and international economic, political, social and
legal environments and changes in Hong Kong’s fiscal
and monetary policies, all of which are beyond the control
of the Group. The Group holds various commercial, retail
and industrial buildings in Hong Kong and derives revenue
through leasing out the properties. Being one of the Group’s
core businesses, any property market downturn in Hong
Kong may materially and adversely affect the financial
position, operations, businesses and prospects of the Group
and may lead to fair value loss of the Group’s investment
properties.
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External Auditor

BDO Limited was appointed as the Group's external auditor on 16
June 2021, following the retirement of PricewaterhouseCoopers
as external auditor with effect from the same date. Save as
disclosed, there is no other change in external auditor of the
Group in the preceding three years.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, BDO Limited provided
the following audit and non-audit services to the Group:

SMNEEAZ A

BRI ERSREAMEBMARARNN T "—
FRATRNBEZEARER ZINBIZRED > 8
VeZE R B g 5B S AT ISR B R IERINEZ
e R AR 2 NS IZRRET  FRINER
BN AEBINERBMERE=FRIREE
Al PR UGl

BETZ_=_F+_A=+—HILFER FTE
IEESREEBRARATRAEREHRT
S B RIEEIZRT |

2023

HK$’000

BT T

External audit SNEEEIZ 1,050
Tax services M FBARTS =
Other services HMARTS 150

BDO Limited will retire and offer themselves for re-appointment
at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Thursday, 20 June 2024.

The statement by BDO Limited about their reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” section of
this Annual Report on pages 150 to 156.

Investor Relations & Shareholders’ Rights
All of the Company’s shares are ordinary shares carrying equal
voting rights. Please refer to the “Directors’ Report” section of this

Annual Report on page 82 for information regarding the public
float status of the Company.
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The Company recognises its responsibility to look after the
interests of its Shareholders. Shareholder relations play an
integral part in corporate governance. The Company keeps
Shareholders informed of its performance, operations and
significant business developments by adopting a transparent
and timely corporate disclosure policy, i.e. the Shareholders’
Communication Policy, which complies with the Listing Rules and
provides all Shareholders with equal access to such information.
The Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the Shareholders’ Communication Policy and the results were
satisfactory as the Company has established a number of
channels, as detailed below, for maintaining dialogues with the
Shareholders.

The Shareholders’ Communication Policy of the Company is
available on the website of the Company.

The Company reports on financial and operating performance
to Shareholders twice each year through annual and interim
reports. Shareholders are given opportunities to raise concerns or
propose recommendations to the Board at the Company’s annual
general meetings. The Company’s external auditor attend annual
general meetings to answer questions about the external audit
and the audit report. Shareholders may visit our website (www.
gwpaholdings.com) for share price information, latest business
developments, announcements, corporate governance policies
and practices and other relevant shareholder information.

The Company Secretary is responsible for responding
enquiries from Shareholders and other interested parties.
Specific enquiries by Shareholders requiring the Board’s and
management’s attention (to the extent it is publicly available
and appropriate to provide) can be sent to the Company, for the
attention of the Company Secretary, by mail to 21st Floor, Bank of
America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong, China.
Note:  Any such letter from the Shareholders should be marked
“Shareholders’ Communication” on the envelope.
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The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

The Company promotes fair disclosure of information to all
investors and uses best endeavours to ensure that disclosures
made by the Company comply with the Listing Rules’ prohibition
against selective disclosure of inside information.

During the year, the Company held one annual general meeting,
and the attendance records of each of the individual Directors are
set out on page 35 of this Annual Report.

Code provision F.2.2

Code provision F.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code provides
that, among others, the chairman of the board should invite
the chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any
other committees (as appropriate) to attend the annual general
meeting. In their absence, he should invite another member of
the committee or failing this his/her duly appointed delegate, to
attend. These persons should be available to answer questions at
the annual general meeting. Due to other work commitments, the
chairlady and members of the Audit Committee of the Company
did not physically attend the Annual General Meeting held on
16 June 2023 (“2023 AGM”). In order to ensure an effective
communication with the Shareholders, other Board members
(including the Chairman of the Board, executive Directors,
chairman of the Nomination Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee) attended the 2023 AGM to answer
relevant questions from the Shareholders present thereat. The
external auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, also attended the
2023 AGM.

Shareholders have specific rights to convene special general
meetings. A Shareholder or Shareholders holding not less than
one-tenth of the Company’s Shares may require the Directors to
convene a special general meeting of the Company by depositing
a signed requisition at the registered office of the Company,
pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, with a copy
to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong,
stating the purpose of the meeting.

Note:  Any such written requisition from the Shareholders should be

marked “Shareholders’ Communication” on the envelope.
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Shareholders can submit a written requisition to put forward a
resolution at general meeting. The Shareholders shall represent
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the general meeting to which the requisition relates, or
shall not be less than one hundred Shareholders. The written
requisition must be signed by all the requisitionists and state
the resolution, accompanied by a statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at
the general meeting. The requisition must be deposited at the
Company’s registered office pursuant to the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, with a copy to its principal place of business
in Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary, not
less than six weeks before the general meeting in the case of
a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
one week before the general meeting in the case of any other
requisition. If, after the requisition requiring notice of a resolution
has been deposited at the registered office of the Company, an
annual general meeting is called for a date six weeks or less after
the requisition has been deposited, the requisition though not
deposited within the above-mentioned time shall be deemed
to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof. The
requisitionists shall be responsible for the relevant expenses
incurred in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
unless the Company otherwise resolves.

Note:  Any such written requisition from the Shareholders should be
marked “Shareholders’ Communication” on the envelope.

The Company held the 2023 AGM on Friday, 16 June 2023, during
which matters including approving the 2022 audited financial
statements of the Group and the accompanying reports, re-
election of retiring Directors, authorisation of the Board to fix
Directors’ remuneration, re-appointment of external auditor,
adoption of the amended and restated Bye-Laws and grant of
general mandates for the issuance and buy-back of Shares
by the Group as well as to extend the general mandate to
issue shares of the shares bought back by the Company, were
presented for Shareholders” approval. At such annual general
meeting, details of the poll voting procedures and the rights of
Shareholders to demand a poll were set out in the circular to
Shareholders. All proposed resolutions were voted by poll and
the poll results were published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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The Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting will be held
on Thursday, 20 June 2024. A circular containing, among other
matters, further information relating to the forthcoming annual
general meeting will be dispatched to the Shareholders as soon
as practicable.

Constitutional Documents

On 10 March 2023, the Board proposed to amend and restate the
then Bye-Laws (the “Proposed Amendments”) in order to, among
other things, (i) conform to the Core Shareholders Protection
Standards set out in the amended Appendix 3 to the Listing
Rules, (i) enable the Company to hold and conduct general
meeting in the form of a hybrid, electronic or physical meeting;
(i) bring the existing Bye-Laws in line with the amendments
made to the applicable laws of Bermuda and the Listing Rules;
and (iv) incorporate certain house-keeping amendments, and to
adopt a set of amended and restated Bye-Laws incorporating the
Proposed Amendments in substitution for and to the exclusion of
the existing Bye-Laws.

As approved by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting
held on 16 June 2023 by way of a special resolution, the amended
and restated Bye-Laws has been adopted in substitution for and
to the exclusion of the then Bye-Laws. For further details, please
refer to the circular of the Company dated 10 May 2023 and the
announcements of the Company dated 10 March 2023 and 16
June 20283.

Save as disclosed above, during the year 2023, the Company has
not made any significant amendments to its Memorandum and
Bye-Laws of the Company. The Company’s latest Memorandum
of Association and Bye-Laws is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Disclosures of Directors’ Information Pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

Change in other Major Appointment

Dr. Sun Ming Chun (our independent non-executive Director)
resigned as an independent non-executive director of Weimob
Inc. (stock code: 2013), a company listed on Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, with effect from 16 January 2024.

Disclosures Pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the Listing
Rules

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21
of the Listing Rules, the following disclosures are included
in respect of the Company’s loan agreement, which contains
covenants requiring performance obligations of the controlling
Shareholders of the Company, as follows:

« On 11 June 2018, the Company (as the borrower) entered
into a facility letter with a bank (“Bank A”) (as the lender) in
relation to a one-year uncommitted revolving loan facility
in an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$300,000,000
and that such loan facility continues in full effect after expiry
of the said one-year term until terminated by either party
pursuant to the facility letter. Pursuant to the facility letter,
the Company has undertaken to Bank A that during the
term of the facility letter, (i) Great Wall International directly
or indirectly owns not less than 50.1% of the total share
capital of the Company and retains management control of
the Company; and (i) GWAMCC directly or indirectly owns
not less than 50.1% of the total share capital of Great Wall
International and retains management control of Great Wall
International.
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Remuneration of Senior Management =R EEEMNE
The remuneration of the members of the senior managementby ®BE_ZT_=F+_HA=1+—HIEESHKEE
band for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below: [E Rk B3z S E R 2 BIMEE T T -
Number of
members of
senior
management
BREEERSHE
Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000t 2
HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,000,001t & 2,000,000 7T -
HK$2,000,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 75 23,000,000 7T 1
Total a5t 3
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The Board is pleased to submit this report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

Principal Activities and Segments Information

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group during the year are property investment
and provision of financial services.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

A fair review of the Group’'s business and the analysis of its
performance as well as prospects of the Group's business are
provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” sections of this Annual Report (which
form part of the Directors’ Report).

Major Suppliers and Customers

During the year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the
Group's five largest customers represented 41% of the Group’s
total revenue and revenue attributable to the largest customer
included therein amounted to 14%.

Save for the continuing connected transactions entered with the
Company’s controlling Shareholder, Great Wall International, as
disclosed in this report, as far as the Directors are aware, neither
the Directors, their close associates, nor Shareholders who
owned more than 5% of the Company’s total number of issued
Shares as at 31 December 2023 had any interest in the five
largest customers.

Since the Group is engaged in property investment and provision
of financial services, in the opinion of the Directors, the Group did
not engage with significant purchase during the year. Therefore,
no major suppliers were identified, there was no purchase
attributable to the largest supplier and the percentage of
purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers combined is
less than 30%.
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Financial Results

The profits of the Group for the financial year 2023 and the
financial position of the Company and the Group as at 31
December 2023 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 157 to 249 of this Annual Report.

Dividends

The Board resolved not to declare any interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 June 2023 (for the six months ended 30 June
2022:Nil).

The Board has resolved not to recommend any payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (for the year
ended 31 December 2022: Nil).

Five-year Financial Summary

The summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 250 of this
Annual Report.

Investment Properties

All of the Group's investment properties were revalued by an
independent professionally qualified valuer as at 31 December
2023 using the fair value model. Details of investment properties
of the Group are disclosed in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2023 are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Associates

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates as at 31 December

2023 are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Share Capital

Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the
Company are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
of the Company as at 31 December 2023, calculated under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$639,101,000
(2022: HK$639,101,000).

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2023
amounted to HK$5,370.0 million (31 December 2022: HK$5,179.8
million). Particulars of borrowings are set out in Notes 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws or the laws in Bermuda which would oblige the

Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Charitable Donations

During the year, charitable donations made by the Group
amounted to HK$10,000 (2022: HK$10,000).

[EZiN

RRBEE M BBITRAZ S BEHN SR a5 TR
FHIEE150

A5y kfsE

RIFARE

A — = —

e

—NN—FLRABE) st EAR AT
F+ZBA=+—HWAHEHDIKTRE
By AT K58 £639,101,000780 (CE - _4F !
639,101,00057T) °

IRITEMKRAEMER

FEER T =F+"A=+—HNEE®RR
#637008EB T CE_—F+-_A=+—8:
517988 BB ~BEF BN FHERRM
57130

RIMBIIEEE

AR 2 AR N B R R A ERERA
AERILAIBRRIRE KRR THRN B8
BRERE

N 3 ?n

REBPRAEFEZZSIENA10,00087T (CF
T4 1 10,00057T) ©

3

RIBIRTIERABRAR —T_=FERE 69



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
oW

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and as at the date

of this Annual Report are:

EX

FRARNAFERSBHRNALATESNT !

Notes

B 5E

Title
B
Executive Directors
WITES
Mr. Wang Hai Chairman of the Board
FerE EFEXIR
Mr. Huang Wei Chief Executive Officer
BRfEE TEABE
Mr. Xu Yongle
TRox LRt

Non-executive Director
ERITES

Mr.Yu Xianging
RIEBRE

Independent Non-executive Directors
BIIFRTES

Dr.Song Ming

NEEL

Dr. Sun Mingchun
REAREELT

Ms. Liu Yan
Ell o

Appointed on 20 August 2021
BT -FN\AZTHEZEE

Appointed on 1 February 2023
“E_=F_A—HEZE

Appointed on 26 March 2021 and resigned on 1
February 2023
TETHFZRIAHNEERE AR T _=F
“A—H#E

Appointed on 20 August 2021
B -FN\B+HEZE

Appointed on 5 November 2016
“E-RE+—ALHESZE

Appointed on 5 November 2016
“E-RF+—ALREZE

Appointed on 26 November 2018
—EBE-N\F+—RBZH/NBEZE
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The Board has established three committees, being the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. The table below details the membership and

ESgR TRA-BZES DHRABEZREER
g Fr Hég’@&k%éé 2o NRDBIETIN
AEEHSAH=EEE SR BRI E KB

composition of each of the three committees as at the date of this ~ 1&°
Annual Report.
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
Director 5% BIZEZEE FEES REZES
Mr. Wang Hai FEEE c
Mr. Huang Wei =R A M
Mr.Yu Xianging REBRE M
Dr. Song Ming NEgE L M c M
Dr. Sun Mingchun HEAEEL M M
Ms. Liu Yan Eikeqnm (&
C: Chairman/Chairlady of the Committee C:. ZEBERE
M: Member of the Committee M: ZEEME

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Yu Xianging
and Dr. Song Ming shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the Directors has entered into an appointment letter with
the Company and is appointed for a specific term.

No Director proposed to be re-elected at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Group, which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company not terminable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation). No emoluments were paid to any Directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the year (2022: Nil).

Interests of Directors and Chief Executives

As at 31 December 2023, so far as was known to the Directors,
none of the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company
had any interest or short position in any Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company were
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Rights to Acquire
Shares or Debentures

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors and Chief
Executives (including their spouses and children under 18 years
of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or exercised,
any rights to subscribe for Shares (or warrants or debentures, if
any) of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders

The interests of substantial Shareholders in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company as at 31 December 2023, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
Part XV of the SFO or as the Company is aware, are set out in the
table below.

The Company had been notified of the following substantial
Shareholders’ interests in the Shares of the Company as at 31
December 2023:

FERREm

R B FH R G RAIEXVEREI36IFRE B 17
WE LM IBERABPAAE > EEREN
TR ZF+ AT —HRERE RN KAE
RPN ESN T &e

RABDEETNEBRRR _Z_=F+_81
=+ —BFENTATRMDERNT

Approximate
Number of  percentage of

ordinary the issued
Name of substantial Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest shares held share capital®
HEET
BA Be A BIBEAY
FERRLE 517/ #mEtE ZER#E BLE®
China Great Wall Asset Management Interest in a controlled 1,174,018,094 (L) 74.89%
Co., Ltd. ™ corporation
FEENEEEERNDBRASY REGEE R
China Great Wall AMC (International) Holdings Interest in a controlled 1,174,018,094 (L) 74.89%
Company Limited @ corporation
REEMEE @R ERERASY REGEE R
Great Wall Pan Asia (BVI) Holding Limited™ Beneficial owner 1,174,018,094 (L) 74.89%
Bm#EAA
Central Huijin Investment Ltd.? Interest in a controlled 155,000,000 (L) 9.89%
corporation
RRESKRERFRETLF? REGEE R
China Construction Bank Corporation Interest in a controlled 155,000,000 (L) 9.89%
corporation
FREERIRITRH B R AT REGEE R
Wan Tai Investments Limited @ Beneficial owner 155,000,000 (L) 9.89%
BREBERRAFT? EREAA

The letter “I” denotes the entity’s long position in such shares.
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Notes:

(1) Great Wall Pan Asia (BVI) Holding Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Great Wall AMC (International) Holdings
Company Limited which, in turn, is wholly-owned by China Great
Wall Asset Management Co., Ltd. Under the SFO, China Great Wall
AMC (International) Holdings Company Limited and China Great Wall
Asset Management Co., Ltd. are deemed to be interested in all the
Shares of the Company owned by Great Wall Pan Asia (BVI) Holding
Limited.

(2) Central Huijin Investment Ltd. holds 57.31% of China Construction
Bank Corporation which, in turn, indirectly owns 100% of Wan Tai
Investments Limited. Wan Tai Investments Limited is therefore a
controlled corporation of China Construction Bank Corporation and
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. pursuant to Section 316 of the SFO.

(38) Approximate percentage was calculated based on the 1,567,745,596
ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Company
had not been notified of any persons who had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
Part XV of the SFO.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”)
that, in recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholding value.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend payout ratio. The recommendation and
declaration of payment of any dividend is subject to the absolute
discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will
be subject to the approval of the Shareholders.
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When deciding whether to propose or declare a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group's actual and expected financial
performance, retained earnings and distributable reserves,
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements
and future expansion plans, liquidity position, shareholders’
interests, general economic conditions and business cycle of the
Group’s businesses, any restrictions on payment of dividends and
other internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Group and
other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The payment of dividends by the Company is also subject
to any restrictions under the Listing Rules and all relevant
applicable rules and regulations in Bermuda, Hong Kong and the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend
Policy shall not constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors of the Company has any interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, or with the businesses of the Group during the year.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts of Significance

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the Group's businesses to which the Company, the
Company’s subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its holding
company was a party and in which a Director of the Company
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2023
or at any time during the year.
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Management Contracts

(M

76

A Tenancy Management Agreement was entered into
between a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
Cushman & Wakefield Property Management Limited
(“C&W”) whereby C&W is responsible for the management of
certain investment properties of the Group.

The Tenancy Management Agreement was entered for a
term of 2 years commencing from 14 November 2018 to
13 November 2020 and will be renewed automatically on a
year-to-year basis unless terminated in accordance with the
terms of such agreement. Management fee of approximately
HK$321,000 was paid by the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023.

An Asset Management Agreement was entered into between
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Gaw Capital
Asset Management (HK) Limited pursuant to which Gaw
Capital Asset Management (HK) Limited is responsible
for the management of one of the Company’s investment
properties, Kwai Fong Plaza.

The Asset Management Agreement entered for a term
commencing on 13 June 2018 was restructured on 13
March 2019 and shall continue and remain valid unless
terminated in accordance with the terms of such agreement.
Management fee of approximately HK$6,174,000 was paid by
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
businesses of the Company was entered into or existed during the
year, and none of the Directors of the Company were interested in
the aforementioned management contracts.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

The Bye-Laws provide that, to the extent not avoided by the
statues, the Directors are entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses, liabilities and costs
which he/she may sustain or incur in connection with the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto.

Directors’ liability insurance policies containing permitted
indemnity provisions have been taken out and maintained in
force during the financial year and as at the date of approval
of this report to provide appropriate cover for the Directors and
directors of the subsidiaries of the Group, as well as the then
directors of the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group for
the year, in respect of the relevant liabilities and costs associated
with legal proceedings against them.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

For more details about the principal risks and uncertainties
in which the Group are facing and also the relevant risk
management objectives and policies, please refer to the “Risk
Management and Internal Control” section contained in the
Corporate Governance Report and Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements of this Annual Report.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

The relevant financial key performance indicators relating to
the businesses of the Group are set out in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section and the consolidated financial
statements of this Annual Report.
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Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

The Group mainly carries out its businesses in Hong Kong. As
far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group. During the year ended
31 December 2023, there was no material breach of, or non-
compliance, with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. To constantly
enhance the sustainable development and strengthen the
awareness of environmental protection of all staff, the Company
has formulated and implemented the Green Office Policy, and
such policy will be updated from time to time in accordance
with actual market conditions so as to cover more scopes,
thus benefiting the implementation of green office culture.
The Green Office Policy states that the Company is committed
to the materials saving, energy saving, waste reduction, and
strives to minimise the consumption of natural resources
and energy; reduce the creation of waste and recycle material
whenever practical; ensure all waste is disposed of in a safe and
responsible manner; and monitor and evaluate progress and
performance for continuous improvement.

The environment policies and performance of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” section on pages 84 to 149 of this
Annual Report.

Relationship with Employees and Customers

The Group ensures all employees are reasonably remunerated
and regularly reviews the employment policies on remuneration
and other benefits.

Details of the practices in relation to employment are set out in

the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section on
pages 84 to 149 of this Annual Report.
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The Group maintains a good relationship and close contacts
with the customers and suppliers and conducts regular review of
requirements of customers and the performance of suppliers.

Retirement Benefits Scheme

The Group’s principal retirement benefits scheme available
to its Hong Kong employees are defined contribution scheme
(the Mandatory Provident Fund) which is administered by
independent trustees. Both the Group and the employees
contribute respectively to the schemes sums which represent a
certain percentage of the employees’ salaries.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions — Renewed Tenancy
Agreements in relation to the tenancies of portions of
certain floors of the Group’s premises in the Bank of
America Tower

On 25 October 2021, each of Sunny Bright Development Limited
HAEEEAE AT (“Landlord 1) and Sunny Success
Development Limited #FIpEE BB R L5 (“Landlord 27)
(collectively the “Landlords”), being wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, received a letter of offer from Great Wall
International, a controlling Shareholder of the Company,
(“Tenant”) which offered to renew the existing tenancies of
Premises 1A and Premises 1B (as defined in the CCT Circular)
from Landlord 1 and Premises 2A and 2B (as defined in the CCT
Circular) from Landlord 2, respectively, (collectively the “Renewed
Tenancies”) for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2022 and expiring on 31 December 2024. Upon the approval of
the Renewed Tenancies by the independent Shareholders at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 28 December
2021, each the Landlords and the Tenant entered into a formal
renewed tenancy agreement on 23 March 2022 (collectively
the “Renewed Tenancy Agreements”). Details of the Renewed
Tenancies and the agreed annual caps set for each of the
three financial years ended 31 December 2024 are set out in
the circular of the Company dated 6 December 2021 (the “CCT
Circular”’).

FEFBHET R RMEBER RFRIRGRRE
REEBMEB T ERERZERNERKRMEERD
AYFRIR

BRIREFETE

AEENEHRERNENHNEERREM
e GRAIEARS)  MBTZEAER H
AmAEEREEFBREEFSNETES
B EAE R o

_J'n\ﬁ Eag*%

FERIER S —RANAE £ RN EER
THONMEE TR ZETHE R

AN — T —
R

—F+BA-+HH AATEEMN
B/ABISunny Bright Development Limited#iF!)
EERERARAT (T¥E1)) KSunny Success
Development Limited##] a3 B ARAE (T
F2)) REIEE) i’i]H&?'J$’&ﬂ?“H§H§$§
R (TAFEAL) R eI HiEE 249K > 7 51
HEEFETHEYEARYEB (EERF
BRAERT %LIJ)EZE%IZ,.EJ%H‘E%¥ZA&
Y28 (EERRIFEMERZBR) B2
F—H— Eﬁaﬁﬁui_v_ﬂﬁ—f— A=+—H

B BEA=F RBIETHE)) - KBURE
N R —F+ AT+ NHRTHRERERI
ARG LHUEBETHHE R EF DRI HEARE AR
TR =R+ =HTAERETEER
% (nis ETHERR) - ETHERERME

EIZ N+ A=+ —HIE=ZEMBFE
HESENFE LRFFEHNEATHHAZ

E-—F+"AAANEXR ((FEREXSE
BR|1) P9 o
EIRIEIERARAT —E_=FEWRE 79



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
oW

As Great Wall International is a controlling Shareholder of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the entering
of the Renewed Tenancy Agreements and all the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount
of rents received by Landlords under the Renewed Tenancy
Agreements was HK$14,671,860.00 which is within the annual
cap for the year ended 31 December 2023 of HK$14,756,646.00.

The Group has followed the terms of the continuing connected
transactions conducted during the year as mentioned in the
paragraphs above, which were determined in accordance with
the pricing policies as set out in the relevant circular of the
Company. Such continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company who have confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

(a) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(c) inaccordance with the agreement governing the transactions

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor of the
Company has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules and confirmations of the matters set
outinthatrule.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions, undertaken
in the normal course of business are provided under Note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements, none of which constitutes
a connected transaction or continuing connected transaction as
defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules other than the
continuing connected transactions as disclosed above.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Listed
Securities of the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Board has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code of
conduct for securities transactions by its Directors. Having made
specific enquiry with all Directors, all Directors have confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date
of this Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance. Details of the Company’s corporate
governance practices are set out in the “Corporate Governance
Report” section on pages 30 to 66 of this Annual Report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the percentage of
the Company’s Shares which were in the hands of the public
exceeded 25% of the Company’s total issued Shares as at
the date of this Annual Report. As at 31 December 2023, the
public float capitalisation was approximately HK$3,937,000
(approximately 25.11% of the issued share capital of the
Company).

Tax Relief

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding
of the Shares. Intending holders and investors of the Company’s
Shares are recommended to consult their professional advisers
if they are in any doubt as to the taxation implications (including
tax relief) of subscribing for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or
dealing in the Shares. It is emphasized that none of the Company
or its Directors or officers will accept any responsibility for any
tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of Shares in the Company
resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding, disposal
of or dealing in such Shares.
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Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by the auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, who will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Wang Hai
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 19 February 2024
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About the Report

This Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”) report (this
“Report”) aims to outline the Group's efforts and achievements
in promoting sustainability. As a platform for the Company to
communicate with stakeholders, this Report has disclosed
the Group’s commitments, responsibilities, and long-term
contributions in ESG areas.

Reporting Period and Scope

This Report covers the relevant policies, measures, and actions
taken by the Group over the ESG issues the Group has control
of. The data contained in this Report covers the period from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”).
Unless otherwise stated, the disclosures in this Report focus on
the Group’s operations in the Hong Kong office, namely the 21/
F, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong,
China.

Reporting Standards and Principles

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social, and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“Guide”) as set out in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Main Board of Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEX”) and in full compliance with the
mandatory disclosure requirements and “Comply or explain”
provisions stipulated in the Guide.

84 GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023

BN 2SR S

RIRIE B RER (TESG) e (F3RE) KB
R EERIAEENES PR ES R LR
R R ARERNEBBNTE RSB
B A EETEESGH AV AGE B EMREIER

RS AR SEE

REBREAEFATRE HEREAEEL
A PRI RN SR AR B AERE R M B T8 o A
WEMEMNENSEEERE S =F—F—
BEZZZ=F+Z"/8=+—H (EREHHHE) °
E%'F%E‘“Eﬂ BRIRRENIRBEAENAER
BEENEERAE RS ETIRERE
1 28R EBIRITHL211E

BT EKRIRA

AREDRBEBMEXZFAARAE (T3
P1) ARG EAARAIMIERC2PR B GRIG & &
BEamates)) (ESGRE1E51) RRFIRERE
R B TR RS AR S



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B~ i a KRB IR

Materiality
EEM

Quantitative:

21t

Balance

T

Consistency

—Hit

Through stakeholder engagement, board discussions, and analysis of the Group's business
nature and development, we conducted a materiality review to establish the structure of our
ESG report, identified ESG materiality issues and confirmed by the Board after review, and
disclosed in this Report in a focused manner.
ZBTRARENFHEZE S5 g mAHAEREBMEEMNE RN ETEZME
B> ML PIMESGIR SRV E > MBI HESCEEM ZB K ES TR sl WitAREH
EPRBREESE

The Group calculates the key performance indicators (“KPIs”) with reference to*Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” and “Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on
Social KPIs” of “How to Prepare an ESG Report” published by HKEX and discloses them in a
quantitative manner where appropriate.

FEEBER T MREEMIERUS1EH NIRE - ARG RBEET B ML 2020F38
EMAVESGIRSIEM A EFIRIE - L B RERRSGIPHNINHER_ | IRIRREAREIIERER
1E5 IR MER= |+ BRAREIIERERISS1TE

The Report presents the Group's progress and challenges in ESG management and provides a
fair view of the actual operation situation to help readers make appropriate decisions.
RRERBREETESCEE L ENERAIE R ERMREFNEHES BN > UBE
EL S BRYIRR

The Group adopts a consistent statistical and disclosure approach to allow for meaningful
comparison of data over time. If there are any changes, they will be stated and explained in the
footnotes in this Report for stakeholders’ reference.

AREERBRUTE-BHEBRANIRE S % UEFRESENA LS HAEMEIE &

EARSENPELREREZFEC UHFnESE-

Report Publication

The Report is published in both Chinese and English. It is
uploaded to the HKEX's website and the Company’s official
website (https:/www.gwpaholdings.com/). Should there be any
discrepancy between the Chinese and English versions, the
Chinese version shall prevail. This Report has been reviewed and
approved by the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Group on
19 February 2024.

Feedback

The Group welcomes and values stakeholders’ opinions. You are
welcome to share your feedback and suggestions on this Report
or the Group's ESG strategy and performance via mail to 21/F,
Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong,
China, for the attention of the Company Secretary.
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Corporate Governance

The Group’s commitment to establishing a solid corporate
governance structure is the cornerstone of ensuring
environmental, social, and governance issues are carefully
considered in the business decision-making process, and
plays a key role in maintaining and strengthening the interests
of stakeholders and enhancing the value of the Company.
The Board and the management of the Group are committed
to fulfilling their commitments to stakeholders and have
established a comprehensive governance framework to govern
the Company’s operations. The Group adheres to strict codes
of ethics and business practices and strictly enforces policies
and procedures to ensure that its business complies with
regulatory requirements at all times. To ensure full compliance
with laws and effectively manage risks, the Legal & Compliance
Department, together with the Company Secretarial Department,
conducts regular regulatory reviews and adjusts the Company’s
policies promptly to respond to changes in the legal environment.

The Board has established and delegated authority to the
Audit, Remuneration, and Nomination Committee. In particular,
the Audit Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent arrangements are in place for the Group to consider
matters relating to risk management and internal control
systems. The Remuneration and Nomination Committees are
responsible for ensuring compliance with the relevant provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code by its terms of reference.
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For details of the Group’s corporate governance structure
and other relevant information, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report in this annual report.

ESG Governance Structure

As a socially responsible company, we are committed to
actively addressing environmental, social, and governance
issues and advancing sustainability strategies. While pursuing
business growth and development, we continue to strengthen
communication and cooperation with various stakeholders, focus
on environmental protection and social responsibility, and aim to
make a positive contribution to the sustainable development of
society.

We are strongly committed to our environmental and social
commitments. The roles and responsibilities of the Board have
been clearly defined, laying a solid foundation for the long-term
sustainable development of the Company. By establishing a
comprehensive ESG management framework, we ensure the
Group fully considers ESG materialities in its operations, so that
decisions can be made to protect the interests of stakeholders
and are in line with the core values of the Company.

ESG Governance System and ESG Working Group
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The Board
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ESG Working Group
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Business Integration Department

Dedicated ESG work leader in
the functional departments
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ESG Governance Structure and the ESG Working Group
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Within our ESG management framework, the Board holds the
highest decision-making authority. The Board is responsible
for overseeing and determining the overall ESG management
goals, strategies, and implementation methods of the Group.
Additionally, a dedicated ESG working group has been
established by the Board to assist, guide, and oversee the
progress of ESG objectives.

The ESG working group comprises selected representatives
from various departments who are committed to ensuring the
effective implementation of ESG strategies in the Company’s day-
to-day operations. Furthermore, the ESG working group serves
as a communication role, responsible for conveying the Board’s
decisions, reporting progress, and providing feedback from the
departments to the Board, ensuring close coordination across all
departments within the Company. The Group has also engaged an
independent consultant, Riskory Consultancy Limited, to assist in
report preparation and provide ESG-related consultancy services.

ESG Working Group and Responsibilities
Main Responsibilities

I. Assist the Board in coordinating and supervising ESG-related
matters of the Company;

Il Assist the Board in formulating ESG management policies
and strategies, including the process of assessing,
prioritizing and managing material ESG-related matters,
including risks to the Company’s business;

lll. Assist the Board to identify and assess ESG risks related
to the Company, and ensure that the Company establishes
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
control systems;

IV. Assist the Board in setting ESG-related goals, and review
with the Board on the progress of achieving relevant ESG
goals;

V. Coordinate and conduct materiality assessment-related
work;

VI. Coordinate the implementation and execution of all ESG-

related work by the functional departments of the Company
and its subsidiaries;
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VII. Communicate with stakeholders (including but not limited
to the Board, management, employees, shareholders and
investors, government and governing bodies, customers,
suppliers, professional bodies, the media, the general public)
on ESG matters, and when necessary, relevant feedbacks to
the Board, management or relevant departments;

VIII. Review and regularly report to the Board on major ESG
management matters and work status, submit for approval,
and propose ESG improvement suggestions;

IX. Coordinate the preparation of the annual ESG report by the
relevant departments of the Company and its subsidiaries
and submit it to the Board for approval; and

X. Perform other ESG-related work as requested by the Board,
including but not limited to providing ESG-related training to
the Board.

Continuous Effort in Improving ESG Matters

We closely align with the Guide issued by the Stock Exchange,
ensuring timely awareness of sustainable development trends
in the industry. We highly value the role of the Board in ESG
governance, including their assistance in the ESG working group
and their effective supervision of the Company’s overall ESG
development strategy, which encompasses the comprehensive
management of identified material issues, risks, and
opportunities. Simultaneously, we regularly review the effective
implementation of relevant policies and procedures in operations
to continuously enhance ESG goals, performance, and progress.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its crucial role in monitoring the risks
borne by the Company and annually reviewing the effectiveness
of management systems. The Board takes full responsibility
for the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
While risks present not just challenges but also opportunities for
business development and expansion. The Group is committed
to identifying, monitoring, and managing risks associated with
its business activities, giving due consideration to key risks to
protect stakeholders’ interests and company assets. The Group
also places high importance on continuously improving its
internal control systems to effectively manage risks that may
impede the achievement of corporate objectives.

To enhance the identification, assessment, reporting,
mitigation, and monitoring of key risks, the Group has
established an enterprise risk management framework. The
primary risk categories faced by the Group include strategic,
operational, compliance, financial, and information risks, for
which corresponding risk monitoring mechanisms have been
established to monitor and control risks.

For further information on the Group’s risk management and
internal control, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report.

Our Adopted Strategy

Our adopted strategy involves implementing a clear and
unified “Three Lines of Defense” risk control framework, which
helps allocate and harmonize significant risk management
responsibilities to effectively track and manage key risks such as
operational, compliance, financial, and information risks.

Within this framework, business units serve as the first line of
defense, ensuring the effectiveness of internal oversight on a
daily basis and implementing risk control processes. The second
line of defense comprises business review and legal compliance
departments, responsible for monitoring the work of the first
line. Internal audit forms the third line of defense, evaluating
the effectiveness of risk management and control systems
from an independent perspective and making improvement
recommendations.
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During the Reporting Period, we continually monitor ESG
risks and their potential impacts on the business, optimizing
related risk management and monitoring systems. We aim to
enhance the efficiency of managing ESG risks and opportunities
through continuous risk identification and assessment. We also
actively integrate ESG risks into our comprehensive enterprise
risk management structure to address the evolving ESG risk
challenges in the industry and global markets.

Stakeholder Engagement

Through stakeholder engagement, we maintain close
communication and cooperation with all stakeholders, including
shareholders and investors, governments and regulatory
authorities, employees, customers, suppliers, professional
groups, media, and the general public. The Company firmly
believes thorough understanding and proactive response to
the wishes and needs of all stakeholders is the cornerstone
of achieving sustainability. Therefore, we continue to engage
in regular communication with various stakeholders through
diverse platforms. An overview of the Group's stakeholder groups,
communication channels and frequency is as follows:

EREHAE > RAOBFESAESCRE A HEE (R
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Stakeholder Groups Communication Channels Frequency
Frp &5 BRRE GRS
Shareholders and Investors « Corporate reports and other - Bi-annually/Depending on
REREEE announcements operational needs
TERERASE BYF RBEERE
+  Shareholder meetings « Annually
REARE BF /RBEERE
«  Websites « Recurring/Depending on
B4 operational needs
CERBELSEE
Government and «  Corporate reports and other «  Bi-annually/Depending on
Regulatory Authorities announcements operational needs
BN BRI TERERNE BYE /REBEEERE
+ Forumsand Seminars «  Depending on operational needs
B R & REEEERE
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Stakeholder Groups Communication Channels Frequency
R &85 BREE kS
Employees «  Employee performance appraisals +  Annually
8T ST RIRTIMG 55
« Meetings and trainings + Recurring/Depending on
FiEMEH employees and operational needs
REN REETRESRE
«  Emails and notice board «  Recurring/Depending on
B R AEH employees and operational needs
REM /REETIREERE
« Team building activities and *  Regularly
festival activities 7E 8
B RIEB R E BEE
Customers «  Customer satisfaction surveys «  Upon the completion of the terms
Y= ERREERE of services with each customer
FTERELE P RYARTS IR R
+ Interviews, site visits, and emails «  Depending on customers’ needs
Az RHERKRER REBEEREE
«  Customer service hotlines and +  Depending on customers’ needs
emails BIEEFREE
B P AR 2R F B EB
Suppliers «  Corporate reports and other «  Bi-annually/Depending on
HRER announcements operational needs
TERERNE BY¥E REBEEERE
+ Forumsand Seminars «  Depending on operational needs
WIB RS RBEEEEE

Professional Groups

HXEEE

Media
yHAE

Professional group satisfaction
surveys

HXERREERE
Meetings and emails
BHERER

Media conferences
BEEE
Interviews

[E1E

92 GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023

Depending on business needs

REEBLEREE

Depending on business needs

REXBERTE

Depending on media needs
RIBEEREE
Depending on media needs

REEREER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B g RE IR

Stakeholder Groups Communication Channels Frequency
Fn&EER) BRRE GRS
General Public «  Charitable activities and « Atleastonceayear
HEAR donations SEEDL—R
BETHRIEHE
« Emailand hotline « Depending on the needs of the
B Ef S EhAR general public

Materiality Assessment & Material Issues

We pay high attention to the material issues that affect our
business and stakeholders. Assessing these issues is critical
in promoting sustainability and forming sustainable strategies.
In addition to regular stakeholder engagement, we conducted
systematic materiality analysis and assessment. During the
Reporting Period, evaluation of the Group’s actual business
operations and industry characteristics, and with reference to the
Sustainability Accounting Standards Board (SASB) and MSCl’s
industry materiality issues classification as well as the material
issues disclosed by industry peers, the Group has reviewed and
confirmed the potential material issues. We analyzed the results
based on “importance to the Company’s performance” and
“importance to stakeholders”, resulting in the confirmation of 22
material issues.

Identify internal and

RIFHEAREE
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The results are
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ESG report and are
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Determining the
threshold for the level
of materiality of
an issue
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future sustainable
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The Group's material issues for the Reporting Period are as ~ZAEERAREHFANEREEZENT !
follows:

Material Issues Importance
B4 &S 5E]
Environmental
1B
1. Energy usage and efficiency
BEIRME A Bt
2. Water usage and efficiency
KERBER 5 am
3! Greenhouse gases and carbon emission and management
;ﬂgiﬁﬂg&ﬁﬁtﬁyﬁigii |mportant
4, Green architecture opportunities 5=
REERENKE
B, Green procurement
KBRS
6. Climate change
RIZEAME
7. Green office measures
:%5’5 @;ﬁ /&#EI: E/ﬁ Relevant
8. Solid waste discharge and management AEIRA
BB EIE

Employment and Labour Standards
BIERS TER

9. Health and safety
AR Most Important
10.  Employee development and training EEE
BT REE
11. Employment and employee benefits and rights
EREE TR kEm
12. Equality, diversity,engagement and inclusion Important
TE S5 SREROAE 5=
13.  Labour standards
TR
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Material Issues

EMEE

Operational Practices

EEIEH

14.  Anti-corruption
k&5

15.  Service quality and responsibility
AR EEMEE

16. Information privacy and data security
ERMEMERNZE

17. ESG governance
ESGEA

18. Business ethics
[EESEL

19. ESG risk management
ESGREEE

20.  Supply chain management

Mz EE

21.  Compliance operation
BRES

Community Investment

Hers

Importance

EE:

Most Important
REE

Important

2

Relevant

L

22.  Community engagement, contribution and investment
HE2H BRKKRE

This Report has been prepared with material issues as the
starting point, in compliance with the “materiality” reporting
principles in the Guide. It aims to provide stakeholders with
comprehensive information for a more complete understanding
of the situation across all ESG issues, with particular focus on
those identified as material. This Report provides integrated
reporting on all ESG issues, with emphasis on the parts identified
as material issues.

Relevant

E[Ea

RPIUBEMZRES HERREARS > LIBE
ESGER 155 IR 221 ERRR - B
thEEAFDmAERERHFRNER  UEMF
FEEEEMIERE S HMEIRESGERBEE NG
e AmETARGER T FTAESGEE LHEE
TRBREMERE A B E 1 HERIER D ©
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Environmental

The Group primarily operates in property investment and finance,
with its main activities revolving around office environments
for administrative work and business meetings. Consequently,
compared to other industries, our environmental impact is
relatively minimal. Nevertheless, the Group actively fulfills
its environmental responsibilities by adhering to green office
principles and integrating low-carbon operation concepts
into daily office management. We are committed to reducing
consumption of natural resources and energy, minimizing waste
generation, and recycling renewable resources wherever feasible.
All waste is disposed of through safe and responsible means,
and we continually monitor and evaluate our progress and
performance to drive ongoing improvement.

The Group strictly adheres to all relevant laws and regulations
concerning emissions of exhaust gases and greenhouse gases,
discharges to water and land, generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste, and other environmental issues affecting the
Group. This includes but is not limited to:

«  Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311 of the Laws of Hong
Kong);

«  Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358 of the Laws of
Hong Kong); and

+  Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any

significant violations of environmental laws and regulations that
would have a significant impact on the Group.

96 GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023

IRIR

FEBNWEZYERENEMAT  T2EH)
AP ARIFRIXE TENEH % AR
REMTHE RAWRBENZERBRLD -BE
it AEETEBEITIRIERESE > F1T74%
BRARA REREZSHIESHARENAE
2o BE D BARAERMAERIEFE U8
BITHBER TR ELE RELCINAIBLEER
BRI EYZEZENETENAIEE &
AW SHEER M RIFLITENE

AEBBRETHREERMEBERIRERIEIN
Bk EMBEER - BEEREEREYNEE M
HMIRIE BB EHAEBEEER ) 81FE1
FRAA

o (ERSREGRG) EBEOFINF) ;

o OKSRERIRE)) EEEGIE8E) ; Kk

o (BEVIRERRA) EBIERFISE354E) o

RREIR > AEELREREAIRMRERRR
PINERERTA HEERELEERTE-



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B g RE IR

The Group has once again been awarded the title and logo
of “Hong Kong Green Organization” by the Environmental
Campaign Committee, together with 10 organizations such as the
Environmental Protection Department, the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service, chambers of commerce, and other organizations.
We strongly believe that through the implementation of excellent
environmental management measures and the participation of
our employees, the Group’s efforts in sustainable development
will receive further recognition and praise. Additionally, we have
been awarded the “Hong Kong Green Organisation Certification
- Wastewi$e Certificate” and “Hong Kong Green Organisation
Certification — Energywi$e Certificate” by the Environmental
Campaign Committee, which not only acknowledges our efforts
in energy saving and waste reduction but also represents a
clear affirmation of our Company’s effectiveness in green and
sustainable practices.

FEEBRECSHRGESHZESGHE0EHE
ﬂﬂfaiﬁf%ux% EEMERGHME Y REM
BOM EBG BB BB RIRE IR
Tamﬁﬁﬁmitﬂ’ﬁa BEEmRIMAEINZ
B AERAERFEER D ENS IR ERE
—Z RSB AINIEE - FF} IR HIRIZED)
LEEREN BB EMIEDE —HEES) XU
R I BB OEBIE—REES BETER
HIRFIERNRENRIEE 5 E S NHYEE R th2H T
PIRE R BRI R E RS E AR S E o

WastewiSe

T LR
Good Level

EEMTRERLE

Green Organisation Centification

I M o1 O

— Certificate —

Great Wall Pan Asla Haldings Limited

L 4 L 4
e e e ¥ — — _I:
bR 2 gt 1o b
Hong Kong Hong Kong

Green Organisation Certification

o e

EnergywiSe
Certificate

N

Basic Level

R L
Great Wall Pan Asla Haldings Limited

a AR COTRRANE SR Q WA COCREANE
L 4 L L 4
“Hong Kong Green Organisation” “Hong Kong Green “Hong Kong Green
Certification Organisation Certification — Organisation Certification —
IR GRS Wastewi$e Certificate” Energywie Certificate”
BB OIS —REES BB S —HERES
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Emissions
Air Emissions

The Group's air emissions are mainly generated from fuel
consumption by vehicles. To reduce air emissions and improve
indoor air quality, the Group has set the following targets:

« Encouraging the use of public transportation;

+ Regularly maintaining vehicles to ensure optimal
performance and improve fuel efficiency; and
+  Usinglow volatile organic compound (VOC) cleaning agents.

During the Reporting Period, the emission data is as follows:

HEH)

ERFIK

B AR E RN R FIREERAFMAI E 222k
R B BERFBINEENTEREER  &&
EERIEUTER:

- BEERAHRETER,

- ERREAELUERESERENERES
WA 5 K

- ERAEEEEERICSYVO0RERA]

BEHERFIREGRNT

Types Unit 2023
$RE s 20235
Nitrogen Oxides(NOx) 0.76
K[|1E¥NOX) /NI

Sulphur Oxides(S0Ox) 0.02
e E4(S0x) NI

Particulate Matter(PM) 0.06
R F R T (PM) /NS

Greenhouse Gas Emissions RE RGP

Electricity consumption is the major source of our greenhouse  BIFVHERRMEEMEE REEHIHUR o R
gas (“GHG”) emissions. Therefore, the Group has reduced ZAEEEERL ﬁ%a/m//mﬁ BEHE M
GHG emissions by decreasing electricity consumption and we  FFITrE BRI BV ETAEFE R - BREHEFRU
will continue to implement various energy-saving measures, © .

including:

«  Turn off lights when they are not needed and use natural light
as much as possible;

«  When an employee is working overtime, turn on only the lights
in the employee’s area and turn off any other lights that are
not needed:;

« All air-conditioning units are switched off at regular intervals
throughout the day to save air-conditioning resources; fans
and air purifiers are provided for overtime staff if they are still
working at night;
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« Arrange monthly cleaning of the air-conditioning system;

« Turn off all electrical appliances not in use during non-office
hours;

« Arrange regular maintenance and servicing of electrical
appliances;

«  Post warm reminders on all electronic devices to remind staff
to turn them off in time to save electricity;

- Use LED light tubes; and
« In terms of office equipment, electronic equipment, lighting
equipment, and products with environmentally friendly-

labels are highly preferred.

During the Reporting Period, the emissions data are as follows:

- BAZHTEBRRAGNEZR;

- EIFMAERRE BEAAEREANES

BIR

«  EHRFEESEAVEEARE

- EFFABEFREERMERET MIRES

T ReEsRER B REE

- (EALEDEE ; &

- TEMARE BFRE RAXRBIE B

ZERRB T RIRRERNER-

PR SRR BEEIRN T

Types Unit 2023
SEA B 20234
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1)" tCOe 3.48
« Gasoline consumption R EREE
BERRAERBEIR EE)
- UBHFE
Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)' tCOze 24.82
« Purchased electricity R EREE
SERERAE RN EED)
- SMNEEE
Total GHG emissions tCOze 28.30
HWRERBIRE RE_FEHREE
Carbon offset tCOze 2
PR AEH RE_HIREE
Total emissions after carbon offset tCOe 26.30
IRIE H BRI E RE_FEHREE
Intensity? tCOe,” 0.003
sq ft of Gross Floor Area
BE? RE_EEREE

BYHREEEE
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Notes:

1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent and is based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas
Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued
by the World Resources Institute and the World Business Council
for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by
HKEX, and “Global Warming Potential Values” from the IPCC Sixth
Assessment Report, 2021 (AR®).

2. As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total operation area of
11,300 sq ft in Hong Kong. The data is also used for calculating other
intensity data.

Waste Management

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, the waste generated
in its daily operations is not significant. The main non-hazardous
waste identified is household waste and office paper, and the
main hazardous waste is toner cartridges. Recyclable materials
such as paper, plastic bottles, glass bottles, and batteries are
collected by third-party property management companies. We
avoid disposable products and prefer recyclable products, made
with more recyclable materials, and more durable with fewer
packaging boxes. For example, we prioritize refillable toner
cartridges and return all used toner cartridges to the supplier for
recycling.

The Group also adheres to the principles of waste reduction and
conservation of resources. Specific measures include:

« Use of electronic communications whenever possible;
« Double-sided printing whenever possible;

+ Collect single-sided printed paper and old envelopes for
secondary printing;

« Collect and reuse old flipcharts and store documents
electronically whenever possible;
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Replace garbage bags no more than twice a week as much as
possible;

Collect and repair computer parts, appliances, and other
repairable products for re-use;

Use rechargeable batteries whenever possible;
Repeated use of decorative materials;

Collection of recyclable materials, including but not limited to
waste paper, metal, plastic, glass bottles, etc.;

Post warm reminders at all printers and copiers to remind
employees to conserve paper; and

Post warm tips at office recycling points and bulletin boards
to encourage waste recycling.

HBAIBE

SREEMIIRRTBBEMR
WeEE T AEE B RSEC (4 B3 I H M AME1ERY
EmUEBRER ;

B SEERRIZEEEM ;
SREREEE

WEPRIRBEME BEETRINEEMR
T8 ER IIERS

EFTA T EIR AN IR RR SRR R B IR T - 18
FES TERAIARAL ; &

A ERRIWRAMA S FERDARIET
eI

RS AR RVERA RN T ¢

During the Reporting Period, the relevant data are as follows:

Types Unit 2023
a5 B 20234
Total Hazardous Waste kg 1.6
BEEREYEE /Ny
Hazardous Waste Intensity kg 0.0001
sq ft of Gross Floor Area
BEEEEYEE A/ BFHR
AR
Total Non-hazardous Waste tonnes 0.72
BEBEEYEE T
Non-hazardous Waste Intensity tonnes,” 0.0001

sq ft of Gross Floor Area

BEBRRVEE Mg, ST A REREE

B

Notes:

EFERIRNE A A2 EIRIGREZSEMN(E

3. The calculation method of domestic waste references the 3.

Monitoring of Solid Waste in Hong Kong — Waste Statistics for 2022 BEEEYERRE - T - _FNRTH
published by the Environmental Protection Department. Fho
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We have implemented several policies and measures to reduce

RIFITFEAS RIS TR BUR K HE AR BE SR

waste and raise awareness among employees about waste IS8 T HREERNER  HEMEIE

reduction. These measures include:

Aspects Environmental Targets = Corresponding Action Plan Targets Progress in 2023
=l RIFEER 175t E 2023 518 ERR

Waste Reduction  Advocate «  Widely apply electronic means v Fully implemented

B EEEY) paper-less practices and encourage the use of online E2EEBITE

FEETRACHRA

Reduce the use of
single-use items

R E R —R IR

systems for document approval;
and

FREFENMERXTE  BAME
R L RmETXHER ) K
Collect and reuse old binders, and
archive documents on the internet
electronically where possible.
WENBERERETER I H
BB T ANET X HFE-

Prioritize to purchase office v Fully implemented

supplies made of recycled BEXEBETER
materials;

B RBRIREE YR SR

~Am@m;

Encourage employees to reduce
the use of disposable materials,
such as cutlery; and

BB TR/ MER—RMAm
BImER ; &

Enhance the awareness of
recycling, waste avoidance, and

reduction.
BAETR/LVEYES -BIRE
BE#-
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Usage of Resources

The Group fully understands the preciousness of natural
resources and values their sustainable use. We are committed
to advocating for green office practices and actively practicing
our role as responsible corporate citizens. During the Reporting
Period, we dedicated efforts to promote energy conservation and
enhance energy efficiency, signing the Energy Saving Charter
to demonstrate our strong commitment to energy saving. For
further details, please refer to the “Climate Change” section.

In building a balanced operational system among the economy;,
society, and environment, we have formulated and continually
promoted the Green Office Policy to reduce the carbon footprint
generated by the Group's operations, and fully address climate
change concerns. During the Reporting Period, we established a
system of environmental targets and formulated corresponding
action plans. In the future, we plan to continue to track the
implementation of our environmental targets and review
them regularly to better help us formulate energy-saving and
environmental protection strategies in response to climate
change so that we can implement environmental protection
measures more effectively.

BIRERA

AEEFRRNGFOEE BRATSEEEE
o RFHARULRHHEL BEGRIRA BT
ERBEAARENLEARDHEET R
ST 3R 25 HA TR ) e B A RSB 7 A5 R P
N BB (EAEAE) RRRFHBENETR
5> EEHHET 2RI TRE LIS

RHIERIFRNEE L ENREZENTFEES
iR RARELREES (GERAEER)
LOR R EEEEMELENRED £ -H
RIREE - MEHAR > RMEETRIEEFER
RARUHIERENITEE S RRFEFDEHEIR
RBIRHUR IR BIRERMITIER  WERCEEE
5 LUSE e th B Bh T I E R IR ECRYERE
IR (M B AR BIFIR (RGN
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The Green Office Policy is regularly reviewed and revised.
The responsibilities of green office management are clearly
stated in the Green Office Policy, with responsible employees
notified. The Company effectively implements energy-saving
and environmental protection initiatives, aiming to make all
employees aware of the environmental and health impacts
of their work and their responsibility for continuous efforts.
All employees could easily access the policy document
in the Company’s shared drive and relevant training will
also provided to new employees by the Human Resources

FEETHEETES] R BPAEEER) &
RPARRE TRENAEEEASHE 1B
BARRES T - AEBAMAITHE BRI EAER
RWEET(F SEBFAAE L THETIFHIR
BMRERFIERNEE  MEEERHE -2
B2 8 TREE RSB BIH = XA IR RS R IE AN (K
BIMAEBR)  ANERBIFAETEERIHA
BB TIREAERIEH - AR AEEBBERER
BHETER WESTHAEEGOMAER
M HRIBE R R

Department. Meanwhile, the Company communicates with its
employees through various channels to collect their opinions
and suggestions on the Company’s green office initiatives and
performance.

=T EREBEMBMEERAE RS &
BT 7 AREEAIRE B IR RAEERTE 5
2 LI BAMMAITRIBIRIZERENTT & I
PR EHARNETT TAEBITITEIANEB R SCEk - 18
R R EFE2REUT EREE &k KEIR

To manage office activities more strategically and effectively,
the Company has established environmental goals and
corresponding action plans at different levels during the
Reporting Period, to effectively implement various environmental
protection strategies within the Company. The Company

undertook relevant enforcement actions and tracking records &8 |&f45 o

during the Reporting Period. Please refer to the “Energy

Management” and “Water Resource Management” sections for

relevant targets and plans.

Energy Management BERETE

Gasoline and electricity consumption are the main sources of the /SRR E /I HERAERE R HENETERE-

HREHAEMAETRBFERURIN T ¢

Group's energy consumption. During the Reporting Period, the
energy consumption data is as follows:

Types Unit 2023
Pk B 20235
Direct Energy Consumption (Gasoline) MWh 11.93
BHERRRHERE (508 THE T ELBF
Indirect Energy Consumption (Purchased Energy) MWh 36.50
AR HFE GMNEE ) TFHEF FLBF
Total Energy Consumption MWh 48.43
FERHFEARE THE T ELBF
Intensity MWh,sq ft of 0.004
Gross Floor Area
BE FEFEFSFAR
BREE
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To enhance the Group’s energy efficiency performance, we have
implemented a series of energy-saving measures, including:

PRSI ERERMERE  HABH—R5IEH
FEYENE > EREE ¢

Aspects Environmental Targets ~ Corresponding Action Plan Targets Progress in 2023
[EE RIEER 1785t 8 2023F 5HEIERR
Energy Saving Increase employees’ «  Affix reminders of “Energy-saving” ¢ Fully implemented
BRAYBEIR awareness of next to the lighting system and BE2EEITIER
energy-saving photocopiers
ReEIMERM TEFRBARRRR - REENSSRE ETEIAY
BT
Conduct energy audits « Formulates energy-saving v Fully implemented
MAEEITIEREZ measures E2EETEK
i€ BN EFE
Improve energy « Regularly repair and upgrade v Fully implemented
efficiency of office electronic equipment to BEXEBETER
office equipment optimize energy efficiency
ReMAERELE EHRZEERARPMRAEETF

B BALARE

Water Resource Management

The Company adheres to the importance of water saving in the
office. The Company’s water is controlled and managed by a third-
party property management company, relevant data is currently
unavailable. We will enhance our data collection processes
to facilitate the collection of relevant data in the future. Given
the nature of our business and operating locations, during the
Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter difficulties in
sourcing water.

The Group actively employs various measures, including:

KEFEE

FEBRBKBEIFRATHORAKNEZE K&
EZKRAE=SYEEERTIEFREE |
AR B AN AR BESR 1 o B PSR A BRI EE A
12 BRI EARR B - BN A EEBIE
BIEEMESMEL > PO EHAR > NEREERE
KR IR A BRI -

FEFEERHIEB S RE > 64 ¢

Aspects Environmental Targets  Corresponding Action Plan Targets Progress in 2023

= RIFER 1785t 8 2023F st EIER

Water Efficiency Strengthen water «  Affix reminders of “Water-saving” ¢ Fully implemented

EIAI A K efficiency awareness next to the water taps of the BE2EEITHET
EEBTIHKEH pantry and bathroom

K R F IR K BERS 2
A ETERAI A BV R

Improve the water «  Stop using equipment with high v Fully implemented
efficiency of water consumption EEEBETER
sanitary ware FHASFEKEE

e o2 B Ak
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Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of our business, the Group has not caused
significant adverse environmental impacts. Nevertheless,
we remain committed to adopting various strategies and
measures to reduce our environmental impact. The Group
continuously monitors the usage of water, electricity, and paper
and encourages improvements in usage while evaluating
performance improvements to enhance the effectiveness of
energy conservation efforts, thereby rigorously controlling
resource consumption.

Climate Change

The Group recognizes the global challenges posed by climate
change to society and businesses and acknowledges its potential
impacts on corporate operations. To effectively manage the risks
and opportunities associated with climate change, the Group
plans to develop climate-related risk identification to identify
physical risks and transition risks, including extreme weather
events such as typhoons and floods that directly affect daily
business operations. The Group is also committed to actively
responding to international and national climate change
agendas, ensuring that our climate change response measures
remain aligned with these agendas. Relevant management
policies and emergency response plans have been formulated to
address and minimize potential impacts on business operations.

During the Reporting Period, we are dedicated to promoting
energy conservation and enhancing energy efficiency to
demonstrate our commitment to reducing energy consumption
and carbon footprint, which is also part of our commitment to
sustainable development. In line with this commitment, we have
taken proactive steps by signing the Energy Saving Charter, jointly
launched by the Environmental Protection Department and the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department in Hong Kong.
This initiative not only demonstrates our firm commitment to
energy conservation and emission reduction but also aims to
inspire our employees to actively participate in practicing energy
conservation.
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Besides implementing various reduction measures, we also
utilised carbon offsets to achieve an approximate 7% reduction
in our greenhouse gas emissions. The carbon offset project we
have utilised is the Hebei ChengAn Biomass Cogeneration Project
(Project ID: 3797) from the United Nations Clean Development
Mechanism (‘UNCDM?”), which focuses on generating electricity
by utilising local straw from cotton. The electricity generated from
this project is sold to the Hebei Provincial Power Grid, replacing
the capacity of coal-fired power plants. The project contributes
to greenhouse gas emission reduction, comprehensive utilization
of resources, environmental protection, and providing job
opportunities and increasing income of local residents. Certified
Emission Reductions (CERs) from this project were also used for
carbon neutrality at the 19th Asian Games Hangzhou 2022 and
the 4th Asian Para Games Hangzhou 2022.

The Group will continue to make every effort to operate
environmentally friendly and low-carbon emission businesses to
help address global climate change.

bR T B RB S » AT AT E
FMIREE REEBEHUR D97 % © R AFIFTEER
BRI HIE B B E BB RE RS (TUNCDM J)
BOAIIE AR &2 A ¥ B BAEE Bk ZE T H (Hebei ChenghAn
Biomass Cogeneration Project) (BB #&3% : 3797) ©
EIRB N A EMARTEREREE  WRTELN
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Social
Employment

Ensuring the legitimate rights of employees and fostering
a diverse and people-centric corporate culture are of
utmost importance to the Group. We strongly believe that a
comprehensive human resources management system is crucial
for attracting and retaining talent and enhancing the Company’s
competitiveness. Throughout the Reporting Period, the Group
was not aware of any prosecutions for violations of relevant
employment laws and regulations concerning compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other welfare benefits that would have a significant impact on the
Group.

The Group believes that it is incumbent for the Group to
respect and protect the rights and benefits of employees. To
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the
human resources policies and procedures of the Group are
comprehensively established with reference to labor laws
and regulations. The Company strictly complies with laws and
regulations, including but not limited to:

«  Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong);

+  Employees Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282 of the Laws
of Hong Kong);

+  Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the Laws of Hong
Kong); and

+  Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).
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We have also developed and adhered to relevant human
resources policies and procedures, including:

«  Employee Handbook;

«  Management Policy for Recruitment;

«  Employment Contract;

«  Management Policy for Compensation and Welfare; and
+  Management Policy for Resignation.

The Group is committed to fostering mutual understanding and
respect between employees. We have developed an Employee
Handbook detailing comprehensive personnel policies, company
rules, and employee benefits to ensure all employees receive fair
and reasonable treatment. The Company also conducts regular
reviews and updates of the Employee Handbook to ensure its
alignment with current labour laws and regulations and to remain
synchronized with the latest market trends.

Protecting Employees’ Compensation and Welfare

The Group’s remuneration and benefits policy is formulated
based on market standards and legal requirements, aimed
at recognizing employees with outstanding performance
and rewarding and motivating employees who have achieved
business performance targets. We have established the
Management Policy for Compensation and Welfare which
clearly outline the salary structure and each type of employee
benefits, providing competitive ‘remuneration and benefit
packages. To attract and retain talent, the Company conducts
annual performance evaluations for employees. To continually
enhance employees’ satisfaction and motivation, we customize
remuneration packages based on individual job performance
and market salary levels and adjust them when necessary. The
Group also distributes year-end bonuses based on employees’
performance, recognizing their hard work and providing
encouragement.
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While pursuing economic interests, we also prioritize employee
welfare to enhance their sense of belonging and well-being.
We offer a range of welfare programs for eligible employees,
including medical check-up schemes, mandatory and voluntary
provident fund schemes, and rental reimbursement schemes.
The Group also provides employees with labour insurance,
reimbursement allowance, overtime allowance, holiday
allowance, and birthday allowance as part of a comprehensive
remuneration package for our employees. The Company provides
subsidies for staff to pursue further studies and encourages
them to continuously upgrade their knowledge and skills.

To protect the rest time of our employees, the Company has set
out in the Employment Contract the working hours and rest time
of our employees in compliance with the labour laws of Hong
Kong to ensure that our employees are entitled to statutory
holidays, paid annual leave, sick leave, personal leave, marriage
leave and maternity leave in accordance with the law. During the
Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 12 employees, and all
work in Hong Kong.

EEREHH HHER > R ASERE TR
Mo BURES T IR BRI AR - It 3efI%
RERANEIRMT —RIEFNE aER
FRESHRET 8 A MM BRI AE S8 Wk
BB MRt - REE A B TR TR
FEMRERR  MITER RAEMANER R
ERE T RBIFHMEt N —20 -NEERE
TiIRMIEEER) > 5B & T B R At IR
FFZRE©

AT RES TIRERRE RERR (BRESH)
ISR & E RS AN E T TERIKEE

B LIERE TIEZAZERD - wHER &
B FR BRRER - NREHE cEERE
BHE1208T -

Total Workforce Unit 2023
EERH B 2023
By Gender Male people 6
Qe lIEbay B4 A
Female people 6
g i A
By Age Below 30 people 0
BERE D 305E AT A
30-40 people 4
30-405% A
41-50 people 7
41-508% A
51 or above people 1
51RREA L A
By Employment Type Full-time people 12
RiEEELE D e A
Part-time people 0
FRER A
By Geographical Region Hong Kong people 12
& 8 o B A
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Fair and Equal Employment

Through standardized recruitment and promotion processes,
the Group provides fair opportunities to suitable candidates,
strongly believing in the crucial importance of appropriately
allocating human resources for sustained business growth. We
have established the Management Policy for Recruitment to
standardize employee recruitment and promotion processes.
In recruitment, the Company adheres not only to the four basic
principles of business development needs, optimization of talent
structure, principles of scientific standardization, and equal
opportunities but also focuses on building a diverse workforce
that includes individuals from different races, educational
backgrounds, work experiences, nationalities, and a variety of
knowledge and skills.

The Group is committed to ensuring that all applicants and
internal promotion candidates receive fair assessment and
treatment. We have developed a comprehensive recruitment and
promotion process, where assessment criteria are solely based
on candidates’ work experience, professional skills, and work
performance, explicitly excluding non-professional factors such
as age, gender, race, marital status, sexual orientation, or physical
disabilities to ensure fairness in the decision-making process.

As an effective way to prohibit any form of unfair or unreasonable
dismissal, the Employment Contract with employees sets
out the terms of dismissal of employees. The termination of
the Employment Contract and dismissal of employees are
also carried out in strict compliance with relevant laws and
regulations to fully protect the rights and obligations of the
Company and its employees. he Group maintains zero tolerance
for any form of discrimination, harassment, or misconduct in the
workplace. We ensure our employees will not be discriminated
against or deprived of the opportunity by the Group due to gender,
age, color, birthplace, nationality, race, religion, sexual orientation,
disability, marital status, or any other reason. Any misconduct
should be reported and thoroughly investigated.
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Employee Turnover Unit 2023
BEMAKE Ein} 2023F
By Gender Male % 33
RIS D S Bt
Female % 33
pegis Bt
By Age Below 30 % 100
MEBE D 30m AT Bt
30-40 % 50
30-405% Bt
41-50 % 0
41-505% Bt
51 or above % 0
51 E M £ [EBa)so
By Geographical Region Hong Kong % 33
it 8 o B Bt

The Company encourages open communication in the workplace, ZAEEFEIE T1EHE TEDEIT AR RIBH Mt
where employees can freely express their opinions and ideas with ~ 7&#8° BRtEASHEIRE R EHENE Lo
the senior management. Therefore, various channels were setup It ZEBREI T SEEERE  (RESBHRE
to facilitate effective communication and collaboration between L ZRIMIZSHAHIE BE—EAFALE > BHiZ
all levels of employees, creating an encouraging environment for  AREENAIZFAIFT BAEM T IEIRIE

creativity and innovation.

112 GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B~ i a KRB IR

Care for Employees’ Health & Safety

The Group consistently prioritizes the health and safety of
employees, striving to provide a safe and comfortable working
environment. Despite our primary workplaces being office-
based, resulting in comparatively lower health and safety risks
for employees compared to other industries, we still highly value
these risks. To ensure the health and safety of employees, the
Company has developed a series of internal policies such as the
Health, Hygiene, and Safety System and the Office Environment
Management Guidelines along with implementing various
preventive measures to mitigate potential workplace risks. The
Group strictly adheres to relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong concerning the provision of a safe working environment and
the protection of employees from occupational hazards, which
have significant impacts on the Group's operations, including but
not limited to:

«  Employees Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282 of the Laws
of Hong Kong);

«  Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any
prosecution or any material non-compliance with health and
safety-related laws and regulations that would have a significant
impact on the Group.

ERETHREREZE
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The Company actively promotes healthy work-life balance for
employees, prioritizing their physical and mental well-being while
discouraging an overtime culture. To fulfill this commitment, we
signed the Joyful@Healthy Workplace Charter jointly launched
by the Department of Health, the Labour Department, and the
Occupational Safety and Health Council of Hong Kong during
the Reporting Period. This initiative aims to create a healthy
and enjoyable work environment through a series of activities,
including health or mental health workshops, and mental health
first aid training courses, promoting healthy eating, physical
activity, and mental wellbeing. To assist employees in adopting a
healthy lifestyle, we regularly organize various sports and leisure
activities, fostering good exercise habits among employees and
preventing occupation-related illnesses. We also host diverse
employee events, including holiday celebrations, and team-
building activities, and actively engage in volunteer activities with
employees to promote friendly connections among them and
enhance their sense of belonging to the Company.

BRI B EMBIEE 8 TEN TFREFNRF T
& FIRRIE TS OEE TAREMIE
E- RIS REBFRAG AMIRBERTEHE
EE - FIRANBEZEREREMESHLAIT
OEREIFEINE - EEEBRRIT—RIE
8 SRR OERE D  BHERZH
FIARERIZSE B ES R BR R A IRAY TARIRIR > WL
= KITEEE IRIB RN R BEsEEE)  DIER
ReMATEBPETRIUENEESI RFM
EREESEREESNREEE TMEEESE
BT RFRESEIE  BAETRPBEFEAERRIE-
RAELETSERNETEE SEHHERE
B EERIESE THNESTHESHESE
& DMRES T XM RFER 18R E8T
HABTEBR

*
o A % 2
HillifeRRTEEAE

1. GEENERRY 2 i Ee

-

1. Healthy eating 2. Physical activity

15-12-2023

Joyful@Healthy/Workplace/Charter,

RIRTE B PR RN F)

Great Wall Pan Asia Holdings Limited

FOPTE N T R SRR -
AT A e RN B T AR A SRR -
EPRIEN SN THS O « LT HaEnEE
3. I

We value having a joyfil and healthy workforce.
Wie befieve that having a joyfid and healthy workforce &5 the
cornerstone for the long ferm success of the organisation.
We pledge to promate physical and mentad well-being among oursehes
2. Mantal wallbeing
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The Group places a high emphasis on the health and well-being
of employees. In addition to providing competitive salaries, our
human resources department is responsible for purchasing
comprehensive medical insurance plans for employees and
their eligible family members, along with arranging regular
health check-ups for them. The Group also provides flexibility
in the insurance package and the body examination plan so
that employees can personalize the plans according to their
needs. To enhance air quality, the Group regularly carries out air
conditioning system cleaning and places plants and vegetation in
the offices. Health and safety-related tips are posted in the office
for employees to review promptly.

In the past three years (including the Reporting Period), the Group

FERHETHREEGUGTSERMIRT
REARFENFEZI ZPIASEREEFT
BRERETINMANTSRENRERERE
SENBERRTE) I E AR MM ZH S i8R
B-AEERES TREACHBREIMIEES
BORRESHNIRREL R HEAERER
B AREPRHEARAMETER LERA
EREEY - BRENZEEMINE R RIETER
MEMAZER EE TR

FEEPBE=F BRERESHE) BEEXZES

has not recorded any material work-related fatalities or injuries. MR R T TR EHEE -
Unit 2023
BB (i 20234
Number of work injury cases case 0
ITHERHEE e
Lost days due to work injury day 0
RIGELTIER# R
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Case Visit to the Legislative Council Building

%=1 BEIEERIE

On 16 August 2023, the Group organized a
visit to the Legislative Council Building led
by Hon LAU Kwok-fan, MH, JP, aiming to
foster patriotism and civic awareness among
employees.

REEEL2023F8F 160 B EIHBZEE T
BREIZEANE BESTHNERFERA
NREH-

Case Wellness Club
2 Bieg

Starting from the second half of 2023, the
Group has been organizing wellness activities,
responsible for arranging various activities for
employees to participate in, including sports
events, fitness yoga groups, hiking groups, and
visits to various public institutions, to promote
employees physical and mental well-being and
strengthen team spirit.
REER2023F T+ FHRMERRES 8
B TRREBESHET2M flM K48
EE RSV~ TRV~ BERREER
SHEE MEEETHOER INRETHE
PxiE o
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Case Visit to Border District, Pak Fu Shan Macintosh Fort, and Sha Tau

ES0 ZBREE ARLUBEENVRARE

To further enhance the patriotism of all
employees and enrich their daily lives, the
Group collaborated with the Lok Ma Chau Police
Station to organize a visit to the Border District,

{ BRAUEAR : Pak Fu Shan Macintosh Fort, and Sha Tau Kok
BURLER LAETRICT HEADOURRIERS
e - Frontier Closed Area on 13 December 2023.
AE—TSREEEETEAEZHENE 25

EABTANES FEEREENEES
fe> B2 E TH 20235128130 2558
HEE- AR UBEA)EARE-

Talent Training and Development AT IEGNEL S R

The Group considers each employee as an indispensable asset ANEERKEME TRA AR AFEZRESHKS
in its sustainable development strategy. Guided by a people- AN EBREE o AE [MUA B WEIRIE
oriented management philosophy, we place great emphasis & @ FffI% 8 TAVE A 2 B AMB AR E » B
on employee training and development, striving to create an  NREIE—EEFNELFESBERENIER
environment conducive to continuous learning and growth. We 1B o IR EAEENEFMELES T HIE A%
strongly believe the growth of our business is closely intertwined BT ERZRMEHHN > RIEHMAETRESH
with the personal development of our employees. Therefore, we ~ ZixmIEIE D STEAEBES TCARER
provide a variety of training opportunities aimed at diversifying B WHIEFERE B2 JEBT¥MmE
their career paths, to cultivate a leading professional team inthe B XK o

industry.
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To ensure our financial professionals can quickly adapt to the
development of the financial industry while maintaining their
professional competence, the Company particularly emphasizes
the continuous improvement and updating of knowledge and
skills. We have developed a series of training programs designed
to meet the Company’s development needs and support talent
growth. The Group invites experts and senior lecturers from
both internal and external to provide employees with a range
of specialized training sessions, topics including anti-money
laundering, professional skill enhancement, understanding the
latest developments in financial regulation, internal control
compliance, asset, and risk management, investment and
financing strategies, and securities market operations. Our
internal instructors typically consist of executive directors and
higher-level management personnel within the Group, while
external experts are senior industry professionals from other
large enterprises.

The Group attaches great importance to anti-money laundering

and counter-terrorist financing compliance and organizes annual
training to raise staff awareness of relevant regulations and risks.
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During the Reporting Period, we supplemented and improved
the content of the regulations on staff training and development,
and encouraged and supported staff to apply for or renew
professional qualifications related to the Company’s business in
conjunction with their job positions and the Company’s business
development needs.

HREHAAN > RAEERE TR ERNFEEN
RENTTHRRS ZRNXFETEEITIFE
UMABEBERBFR  RENERRATES
BN ERERES

Unit 2023
Efl 20235
Percentage of employees trained Male % 100
by gender (%) 5 Bt
BHREIDNRIMEEBDLE(%) Female % 100
Z Bt
Percentage of employees trained Senior Management % 100
by employee category (%) = Bt
RESHENENZIEEB DL Middle Management % 100
(%) e Bt
General Staff % 100
£2E Bt
Average training hours Male hours 9.9
completed per employee 3 I)NBRE
by gender (hours) Female hours 71
ZHRAoNRIEETHRHS ¥ a\:53
(NB)
Average training hours Senior Management hours 40
completed per employee =) INE
by employee category (hours) Middle Management hours 8.3
REEHFBDNZIIEREFTHIFHFE 1)\
NSy General Staff hours 147
£E 1N
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Diversified Training Activities & Leading Visions

The Company requires regular internal training averaging
approximately three hours every two to four weeks. These
sessions focus on sharing industry knowledge and operational
information to ensure employees can keep up to date and
maintain a leading position within the industry. Throughout
the Reporting Period, the Company conducted various training

ZIT1EIE R LR E

REBRENGmE N E 2 HE RS0 =
NEF AR A EREEI » BRI IR D FER
M EEARER  UERE T5E ERFA
B 1 > WAEITRARIFES AL « TEEREHAR -
ARRMZEIEINES - LT 22023 ETHIE
FISEEAMAE -

activities. Following are the training aspects and contents for

2023:

Training Aspects
Rl

Frequency
SEYSAE

Training Contents in 2023
2023 FMIBHIRA

Business training

FH5EIl

Professional
certification training
in the Securities &
Future Commissions
in Hong Kong (SFC)

RemsREEHE
=Heg (IF%E))

2RI FEDE L

Legal compliances
training

EEE

Compliance training
on anti-money
laundering and
counter-terrorist
financing

[R5 ERA R R M iR F
B E2ENERE

Training on the
interpretation and
analysis of various
industry dynamics

BITESEMREBE DT
b=

Once a month

BR—X

Five times
annually

Twice a year
FEMNR

Twice a year

BEMNR

Irregularly

NEH

Enhancing professional skills in operations and competencies,
including thematic training, case sharing, analysis of financial
regulatory developments, etc.

RAXEZANHKLES BEFEEFI BN Z - EREEHER

BONE

Professional certification training for the financial industry, including
a series of training covers heated issues, the latest developments,
and professional skills in the financial industry

ERMITEFERRFI CEEMTEAMIRE HTHERFHE
HERESF—RIE

Analysis of typical judicial cases and financial regulatory dynamics

HATERG  EREEBE DN

Compliance training on anti-money laundering and terrorist
financing

BRRABRRMD FESEEZ GRE

Including new energy, real estate, iron and steel, new metal materials,
automobiles, coal and hydrogen energy, non-ferrous metals, coal
chemical industry, ternary precursor, and other industries

BEWMER BME WS B BV ERKEE AR
BRI =Rl E TE
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Furthermore, the Group arranged for four employees to
represent the Company to attend the Asian Financial Forum
on 12 January to gather the latest information, engage with
different professionals, and enhance their capabilities. The Group
encourages every employee, regardless of position or scope of
work, to actively participate in training activities, facilitating
knowledge enhancement in their respective fields. Such training
also fosters mutual understanding among employees, promoting
cooperation and unity within the team. For new employees, we
provide comprehensive onboarding training programs to help
them quickly familiarize themselves with company processes
and integrate into the company culture.

Continuously Enhance Training Quality

After each training session, the Group collects feedback from
participating employees through evaluation surveys to gather
their opinions on various aspects of the training, including
the organization of the session, the richness of content, and
the performance of the instructors. Based on this feedback,
appropriate adjustments are made to cater to the training needs
of our employees. The Human Resources Department is also
responsible for collecting the list of employees attending training
sessions to comply with regulatory requirements for annual
Continuous Professional Training hours set by the SFC.

SN ZEBETZH T4RBETITA12BARE
FENEmmE UEERNEN  BFRER
AL RAB BN - SEREEREME
TORARE T IrEEns  ER R B S RIEsIEE)
REMAS BREEBHBUS A L8R - B
AUEEIth BB B T 7 BRI » (R E B Z ERY
BREEG - HINHES T » RFMRHEFENA
BIEsIET R MBI HRERE ABME  WRAA
ABEXAEe

B IEIE &

EE—TEIIERE AEBE SRS ENET
BEHRIEIIER BB ERE SR E
ARREPIFINRE S EREE 2315848
BzP N B EEUKBMINRIRES RIBE
LEEMN RIS ETEE R  LIRREIIEE
HBEFImE B THFEK I AHEREIE
ZESKESMBIINETRE  UFEREE
RIS E R BBURTE
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Simultaneously, all training materials are uploaded to the
Company'’s shared drive to create a culture of knowledge sharing,
enabling all employees easy access to the information they need.

Labour Standard

The Group strictly prohibits the use of child labor or forced labor
in our business operations. We strictly adhere to applicable laws
and regulations concerning employment, child labor, and forced
labor, including but not limited to:

+  Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

We take various measures to ensure child labor and forced
labor are eliminated within the Group. These measures include
actively checking candidates’ identification documents during
recruitment and hiring to prevent the employment of child labor.
The Group only allows employees to work overtime with the
consent of their supervisors and commits to never mandating
overtime work, thus completely prohibiting any form of forced
labor. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material violations of laws and regulations related
to preventing child labor or forced labor. There were not any
strikes, labor disputes, lawsuits, claims, administrative actions,
or arbitrations filed against the Group. If potential violations
are discovered, we will immediately terminate employment
relationships with the individuals involved. We also conduct
internal investigations to review and improve the recruitment
process if any loopholes are identified, while promptly reporting
the matter to the Labour Department.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group is dedicated to maintaining stable relationships with
supply chain partners in a sincere and responsible manner. We
recognize that supplier performance is crucial to the success of
our business operations and consider the process of selecting
suppliers as a key step within our sustainable development
strategy. We strictly adhere to the relevant laws and regulations,
including:

+  Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China;and

+ Regulation on the Implementation of the Bidding Law of the
People’s Republic of China.

We uphold the principles of a fair and efficient procurement
process and extend our management scope to all service-
type suppliers, including those providing property valuation,
management, and corporate secretarial services.

To ensure transparency and fairness in our procurement, reduce
environmental and social risks, and enhance efficiency, we have
set up a dedicated procurement assessment team responsible
for evaluating suppliers’ commercial credibility, quality, pricing,
and sales terms to select suitable candidates. The Group selects
suppliers with an open, fair, and honest approach and has put in
place a comprehensive supply chain management system. This
includes the development of the Guidelines on Procurement, the
establishment of procurement processes, bidding procedures,
staff responsibilities, and ensuring suppliers possess appropriate
qualifications.
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The Group has also set up dedicated departments including the
procurement office, the procurement assessment team, and the
procurement team to strengthen procurement management,
standardize procurement procedures, and assign clear roles
and responsibilities. This systematic approach advances
procurement tasks and enhances cost-effectiveness in
purchasing. For daily management of suppliers, we regularly
review and update their qualification documents, track relevant
information, and record their compliance with laws, contract
performance, and complaint records to ensure supplier integrity.

To maintain the fairness and effectiveness of procurement,
the Procurement Department evaluates product and service
suppliers annually in four key areas: quality of service outcomes,
service efficiency, fee standards, and service attitude. Evaluation
results are promptly updated; suppliers with outstanding
performance are recommended as candidates for future
procurement, while cooperation with ineligible suppliers will be
terminated for three years.

Sustainable Management of the Supply Chain

Suppliers of property management services are critical to
businesses focusing on property investment. Therefore, we
place significant emphasis on suppliers’ performance in
environmental and occupational health and safety aspects. Our
principal property management service providers must obtain
certifications including ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management
System, ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management System
- Requirements with guidance for use, and OHSAS 18001
Occupational Health and Safety Management Systems. The
Group also continuously reviews and updates the procurement
policies to ensure alignment with our sustainability goals.

124 GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023

IESh s RERER I T BEPIERFIUNRBIM AT RIR
B/ VE s EEREEE IR RO - W
BRI SRR URMCHIEERB IR 12
SRBEMRANm T H B EEHERHSE » Fff
ERERE L B FIBERBIAN M 1B
HEE S WEMPIBEREBTR R 8RBT
BRI e EET R AR LI RHEERD
BYAIE °

RIRFRBR AT IR KBHPITEHE
mARFBHERETIE TEREFRSE
1T BRERFHRREE  RFFUE WEIRE
DU RIS RE B o SHEAE R SRR BR  RIRE
EE’JT#FEF?H%HEE*%%X}mﬂﬁﬁﬁ{liii% MR
ERNHERREE=FNaFE =

HIERRIIRTIFEETE

MESERFNHEFHNEEINYEREN
TEFAEE AL HfIEEEREREETER
IRARERETZE2HENEN FTEYESER
TS AER A BEVE(IS09001:2015E S B IRFE RN

(1S014001:201SIRIBE B IR R B R R EHIERE)
M {OHSAS1800 1 B R EI Z 2 B IR R ) E
5055 o [EIRY » AEE B SN ERAZ P IREE R »
BRELEBRENFEERENEZRET Ko



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B~ i a KRB IR

Environmental protection and social responsibility are the core of
our supply chain management strategy, we prioritize establishing
collaborations with suppliers committed to sustainability. We
conduct comprehensive due diligence to minimize potential
environmental and social risks in the supply chain. We have also
developed a Green Procurement Policy, prioritizing the selection
of high-efficiency equipment and reusable consumables, such
as toner and ink cartridges. We encourage our employees to
use municipal water to reduce the use of bottled water, further
reducing resource consumption. To support the local economy
and minimize transportation’s environmental impact, we actively
collaborate with Hong Kong suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, most of our suppliers were from
Hong Kong, with the remaining from Mainland China. We have
evaluated and assessed 10 of our main suppliers.
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Service Quality and Responsibility IRFEESMEE

In adherence to our professional, proactive, and prudent service
philosophy, we continually strive to establish long-term, mutually
beneficial relationships with our partners and clients. Throughout
the process of delivering high-quality financial products and
services, we strictly adhere to the relevant laws and regulations of
Hong Kong to ensure our business operations comply with health
and safety, advertising, and privacy regulations. This includes but
is not limited to:

« Landlord and Tenant (Consolidation) Ordinance (Cap. 7 of the
Laws of Hong Kong);

«  Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong); and

« Main Board Listing Rules.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations relating
to health and safety, advertising, labeling, and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided, and methods of
redress that would have a significant impact on the Group.

To ensure service quality and fulfill corporate responsibilities, the
Group has developed and implemented various internal policies,
including the Compliance Handbook and the Standard Code
on Securities Transactions by Employees. Within the Reporting
Period, we have also revised and enhanced each licensed
company’s Operations and Compliance Handbook to ensure
the service quality we offer in various aspects. The following
flowchart illustrates our process for ensuring service quality:

Compliance with laws
and regulations related to
health and safety, and
advertising and privacy
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Review and

issues of the provided
product and service
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REAZE EER
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Comprehensive

procedures
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complaints handling

Revise
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Given the nature of our business, our operation does not involve
product manufacturing or production, we do not have product
recall procedures in place.
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Demonstrating Services Quality in Business X RIFHIIRFEEE

Integrated Financial Service

AR e RRARTS

The Company upholds the vision of building a service provider for financial assets with diversified business,
distinguished feature, and top-notch brand, and the Company therefore formulated a series of policies to
continuously offer trustful, professional, and fair financial services to customers and other stakeholders. The
Company has a proper due diligence procedure in place which enables employees to better understand and
familiarize with customers’ financial situations, investment experience and investment objectives, such that
any recommendation or inducement of the Company made is appropriate in all circumstances. If the Company
is exposed to high-risk customer or business nature, stringent measures will be taken to manage and mitigate
such risks. At the same time, the Company promises that customers shall always be well-informed with the
terms and conditions and associated risks before engaging in any kinds of financial transaction with the
Company.

The Company is committed to maintain a fair and informed market, and thus requires employees to abide by
the Code of Conduct and to fully understand their responsibility. Since the disclosure of inside information
is central to the orderly operation and integrity of the market, the Policy on Disclosure of Inside Information,
stating the responsibilities of the Board and senior management in monitoring all disclosures in accordance
with the provisions of the SFC, is constructed and strictly followed by every member of the Company.

The Company prohibits any forms of false or misleading statement in the course of publicity, ensuring that all
advertisements and marketing materials truthfully describe the matter and are approved in accordance with
the provisions of the SFC before they are issued. ng materials truthfully describe the matter and are approved
in accordance with the provisions of the SFC before they are issued.

FABABFERSEBZ T HIARE MR —ANTMEERSENESR Al ZATHE T —RIBER:
N BT R REMFNEQEAE EENA TSRS - ALARAREZFERFEERER  UTHEERHY
B REERANRE RN EMERAASEEMABER MEHREZNS SRR EN - NZE A EHTE
BRI B RRE » A A SR IRENE B2 B A F BRI R - R A ARRARE R AE TR
Z BUER T AR ~ AR S AR A L

FRBEOINEE—EATFHNERHRENTS BMEXETETIARINENERB S EE - AR
BHMBENNTSNEAFEFRRERREFESR  ARREHE(NRHERERR) ETIREEEENS
REEBERRANRARERANGERTRENED SIS T RBEBETLRE °

E5h > RATRIEEEFBERERFR AN ERSNGRERR  BRFTE BES SR BRI E R
WA AR R B DR E S A BB HE /o

RIBIRGIERABRAR —E_=FERS 127



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B A g RE R

Property Investment

MEKRE

As a property investment company, the Company always chooses experienced service providers to manage
properties and outdoor billboards. The Company has maintained a diversified investment property portfolio
in Hong Kong which comprises Kwai Fong Plaza, certain floors of the Bank of America Tower in Central, Yue
King Building in Causeway Bay, Ko Fai Industrial Building in Yau Tong and Seaview Estate in North Point. On
the other hand, the Company has also participated in the investment in the JV Group which holds a diversified
portfolio of properties in Hong Kong. Details of property investment information can be found in the session of

“Management Discussion and Analysis”
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Comprehensive Complaints Handling Procedures

We believe customer feedback and suggestions are essential to
improving the quality of our products and services. In line with
the Code of Conduct for Persons Licensed by or Registered with
the Securities and Futures Commission and our internal control
guidelines, we have established a Whistleblowing Policy and a
Customer Complaint Handling Policy. These policies specify the
measures to be taken upon receipt of a customer complaint and
the procedures for handling various types of complaints, helping
us in identifying the nature and source of complaints and areas
requiring improvement. We conduct a thorough review of each
customer complaint and guarantee a prompt response.

Our policy requires all received complaints, including the nature
of the complaint, actions taken, reasons for investigation, and
proposed resolutions, to be recorded in a dedicated complaint
logbook. We emphasize employees must handle customer
complaints with care and report to the relevant department
heads and leadership within two working days. Following the
investigation, employees are required to inform the customer of
the outcome. We also regularly update our Customer Complaint
Handling Policy to maintain the efficacy of our policies and
procedures, ensuring customer complaints are properly
addressed and promptly resolved.
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For property investment services, we require property
management companies to regularly gather tenant feedback
and quickly relay it to the property investment management
department to ensure timely responses to tenant needs. We
also have a complaint feedback mechanism in place to ensure
received complaints are initially handled by department
supervisors before being escalated for in-depth resolution,
preventing recurring issues. We continue to track the progress
of complaint resolution to ensure customer complaints are
addressed promptly and fairly.

We have also set up a Complaint Office responsible for reviewing
and investigating customer complaints, reporting findings
and resolution recommendations to Company leadership, and
recording complaints and their outcomes. The Complaint Office
ensures all necessary internal and external reports are prepared
before deadlines and meet the review requirements of relevant
leaders or regulatory bodies. During the Reporting Period, we
did not receive any complaints that violated regulations or
significantly impacted the company.

Protecting Customer Privacy & Safeguarding Information
Security

The Group is fully aware of the critical importance of privacy
protection within the financial services industry. We are
committed to maintaining the confidentiality of our clients’
private data and strictly preventing any unauthorized or illegal
data breaches. To ensure the comprehensive and proper
protection of our clients’ confidential information, the Group
adheres to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) and has established internal policies,
including the Insider Information Disclosure Policy and the
Personal Account Trading Policy to precisely safeguard all
sensitive information and privacy.
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The Group resolutely requires all employees to refrain from
trading in stocks or other securities based on material non-public
information or confidential information known to them. It also
prohibits employees from encouraging or guiding others to trade
based on such information. We strictly follow management rules
related to the maintenance and protection of intellectual property
rights. For example, the installation of any software must be
authorized with a password provided by the IT Department,
ensuring all installed software is legitimate and licensed. For
product and service information that is published externally, the
Business Integration Department double-checks the information
before it is posted on the website to ensure that it is correct.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any incidents
of customer information leakage and did not receive any
complaints regarding the improper use of customer information
that had a significant impact on the Group.

Anti-corruption

The Group adheres to the highest ethical standards and
professional integrity, with our business principles rooted in
honesty, integrity, and fairness, the core values we require all
directors and staff to uphold consistently. We adopt a zero-
tolerance stance against all forms of corruption, including but
not limited to bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering.
Our operations are governed by multiple statutes, including the
Companies Ordinance, the Securities and Futures Ordinance, and
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. These regulations form the
backbone of our operations, ensuring the company is compliant
and lawful in all aspects. The Company’s senior management,
including all board members, the chairman, the chief executive
officer, senior management, and all employees, are responsible
for ensuring the scope of business they oversee is fully compliant
with these laws and regulations, particularly the provisions of the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.
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The Group strongly believes the foundation of stakeholders
trust is built on the ethics and integrity of every employee. We
strictly adhere to Hong Kong’s laws and regulations related to the
prevention of corruption and bribery that significantly impact the
Group’s business, including, but not limited to:

«  Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of
Hong Kong);

+ Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance (Cap. 615 of the Laws of Hong Kong); and

«  Code of Conduct for Persons Licensed by or Registered with
the Securities and Futures Commission.

During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Company and
its employees. The Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations relating to the prevention
of bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering that would have
a significant impact on the Group.

Comprehensive Management of Anti-corruption

The Group resolutely opposes all forms of corruption and has
developed and implemented a comprehensive anti-bribery
and anti-corruption policy. The Company has established a
strict internal control system and procedures, including the
Code of Ethics for employees, and the declaration and approval
procedures for the acceptance of gifts or entertainment, all
aimed at protecting the Company’s integrity and reputation.

To continuously strengthen these measures, we constantly
improve and revise the internal Anti-bribery and Corruption
Policies and Procedures, Anti-Money Laundering, and Counter-
Terrorist Financing Policy, and established a Customer Due
Diligence and Money Laundering Risk Assessment Form and
Guidelines on Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest to enhance work
efficiency and transparency in these areas. These measures
are detailed in the Integrity and Self-discipline Commitment,
Employee Handbook, and Compliance Handbook.
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The Company places high importance on maintaining business
ethics and managing the professional conduct of its employees.
We have zero tolerance for any behavior that violates the policies.
Any discovered breaches will be handled seriously, including
issuing warnings, termination of employment, and reporting to
relevant regulatory authorities.

To further foster a good anti-money laundering work
environment, the Company has established a Risk Compliance
Office responsible for anti-money laundering affairs and
specializes in customer due diligence and other compliance
matters. We regularly share anti-money laundering information
through email and training programs with employees, to raise
awareness among the employees.

Effective Anti-corruption Initiatives

The Group emphasizes all employees must fully understand and
strictly adhere to established policies. To enhance directors’ and
employees awareness of integrity, we actively provide relevant
training. During the Reporting Period, we revised our internal
policies, particularly the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing Policy, to ensure alignment with the “Anti-
Money Laundering Guidelines” set forth by the SFC.

The revised policy underscores the importance of establishing
appropriate compliance management arrangements and an
internal independent audit function, and it provides a checklist of
risk indicators. This checklist assists our employees in identifying
potential high or low levels of money laundering risks within
relevant business activities, enabling the implementation of
appropriate risk management measures.
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FEETEREHARESRE TEMNRESH
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has provided anti-
corruption and anti-money laundering training for directors and
employees, details as follows:

31 May 2023
2023455318

Through a combination of lectures and on-the-spot
responses, staff are introduced to the anti-corruption
legislation and discuss common procedural loopholes
and anti-corruption risks. The training lasted for 1.5
hours.

5July 2023
2023%7H5H

Anti-corruption training was provided to the management
through a combination of lectures and on-site responses,
introducing them to anti-corruption regulation, corruption
prevention advice, dealing with conflicts of interest, and
the roles and responsibilities of management staff. The

BERENBESFEEeNATNREINERER
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training lasted for 1.5 hours.
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The Group has established an internal Whistleblowing Policy,
that clearly defines the procedures for reporting and inquiring
into improper conduct. Through this policy, employees can
safely disclose any fraudulent acts, unethical or illegal activities
that could potentially harm the Company’s reputation. The
Company commits to handling each report and complaint with
the utmost confidentiality to ensure the anonymity and safety
of the whistleblowers. To encourage employees to actively report
issues, they are urged to report any suspicious or improper
matters directly to the Chief Executive Officer or, if they choose,
to submit their concerns in writing to the company’s address
on the 21/F, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central,
Hong Kong, China. The Whistleblowing Policy details the steps
for investigating these complaints, ensuring the company takes
appropriate follow-up actions for every report received.
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Community Investment
Community Investment & Giving Back to the Public

The Group is committed to social welfare, contributing to the
establishment of a stable and harmonious social environment
through practical actions. We have established the Community
Investment Regulations to integrate social care into our business
operations and uphold corporate social responsibility. By
organizing employee participation in volunteer activities and
implementing a series of donation programs, we demonstrate
care and compassion to society, striving to make positive
contributions to the community.

5 Years Plus Caring Company

Through years of continuous commitment and support to the
community, we have been honored with “Caring Company 5 Years
Plus” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service. This recognition
affirms our consistent practice of at least three areas of “Caring
Company” initiatives for over five consecutive years, including
Volunteering, Employee Friendly, Employing Vulnerable, Caring for
the Environment, Mentoring, and Giving. It also acknowledges our
contributions as a long-term partner of charitable organizations
and our active efforts in fulfilling corporate social responsibility.
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The Group has not only established close partnerships with
various charitable organizations but also provides donations
and material support in response to community needs. With
active employee participation, we organize a variety of volunteer
activities, including distributing “lucky bags” to low-income
groups and donating to the “U-Hearts” charity organization,
supporting the developmental needs of the community.
“U-Hearts” is a registered non-profit charitable organization in
Hong Kong, dedicated to youth education and growth, and helping
the elderly and the disadvantaged groups in the community. Its
services range from youth development and exchange programs,
assistance to the disadvantaged group and elderly, secondary
school student sponsorship in mainland China, school rebuilding,
donation of education equipment, and poverty alleviation. On 17
September 2023, our employees distributed “lucky bags” to 500
households of elderly residents in Cheung On Estate, Tsing Yi,
containing daily necessities and festive foods for the Mid Autumn
Festival. Our employees delivered the “lucky bags” to the elders’
doorsteps, and engaged in conversations to express their care
and respect.
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FERRM BIESEREE -BASTEE
B lEERER BRAERERKXERES
RIBZ=FNA+tH ZANEIEEXE
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We have also established a long-term partnership with
“U-Hearts”. Through a series of events, we provide financial
support and encourage employee participation in volunteer
services, spreading more positive energy within the community.
Since October 2018, we have been regularly preparing and
distributing “lucky bags” yearly to grassroots families and solitary
elders, containing essentials such as rice, noodles, and toiletries.
To date, we have distributed over 1,000 “lucky bags” Our volunteer
team actively participates in various service activities organized
by “U-Hearts”, offering care and support to young people and the
elderly in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

On 20 October 20283, the Group responded to the government’s
initiative “Night Vibes Hong Kong” (B8R #%&#43) by participating
as investors of People’s Place (R1) under Gaw Capital Partner,
in the launch event “Fluorescent City Exploration” (&4
®Z) held at the “Kai Yip Main Venue’ (BiZ=35) located in
Kowloon Bay’s Kai Yip Shopping Centre, marking the beginning of
future projects.

The Group plans to continue seeking opportunities to contribute

to charitable donations or community activities in the future,
thereby promoting and solidifying community development.
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HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Index R PR (IR - L B R ERIRE1E5 1A
BE5|

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section/Statement
5 EERBEAREVIERE =8B
Mandatory Disclosure Requirements
SEHIIREIRE
Governance A statement from the board containing the following elements: ESG Governance
Structure HEEERHNER EFEHE MIRE ! Structure
BERERE (i) adisclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues; ESGEBLE

KEEEEHRBE - HIREAFENEE

(i) the board’s ESG management approach and strategy, including

the process used to evaluate, prioritize, and manage material ESG-

related issues (including risks to the issuer’s businesses); and

EFENIRE -G REREER AR B1EE - BRER

REESENRE - HEREAEMEE (BEHFTAESBNR

%) RIBIE ; &

(iii) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related goals

and targets with an explanation of how they relate to the issuer’s

businesses.

EEGURIRE -G REGEMB R ER LHEETH

N{eIERZE 1T A X 75 R &
Reporting A description of, or an explanation of, the application of the following |About This Report
Principles Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG report: RN AR S
EERRA Bt RREERERE LS REAREF U IRAERRR

Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: () the process to identify and
the criteria for the selection of material ESG factors; (i) if a stakeholder
engagement is conducted, a description of significant stakeholders identified,
and the process and results of the issuer’s stakeholder engagement.

BEN  RRE - HEKEARESERE (HIEERE - HEKEBRER
HIBRE RIERE LR RNZER] ; )BT ABETHNEZE EH#0
EEFMENERAEITAFNESEVARRRER

Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies, assumptions,
and/or calculation tools used, and source of conversion factors used, for the
reporting of emissions/energy consumption (where applicable) should be
disclosed.

21t | ARAERBINE BERFER WER) FrARRE - 55 KRRk
FEtETAENER DURPAEANERRZRENIORRE T EE
Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any changes to the
methods or KPIs used, or any other relevant factors affecting a meaningful
comparison.

—H% BT AR ?iﬁ%EzE/ RSP BT A RRENIE
RS (A) sHEMEMPEES BRLBRERER
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section/Statement
IS 2 E R EREMIER =30 -
Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BEIRBERE

Reporting A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report and | About This Report
Boundary describing the process used to identify which entities or operations are | BIf s ¥R &5

b 2R & [ included in the ESG report. If there is a change in the scope, the issuer should

explain the difference and reason for the change.

RIBIRIR (LB BRI S RIEREE » FAmm P EMPLE B TS AA
BRI HERERREHBRE EEREEB IS 1T AREERE
2 Br R BB R A o
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
#S - [E R EARERIEE

Section/Statement

=880

“Comply or Explain” Provisions
IRETRLRTZLR X

A. Environmental

RIE

Aspect A1: Emissions

[BEA1 - BE

General General Disclosure Information on: Environmental
Disclosure (@) thepolicies;and IRIE
— I E (o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,

and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRABERORE RSB MK R HAHES - AERBESEEYMNES

ZERY

(@) BR; K

b) BTHETABERXZENERERERGINER
KPI A11 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions —
RASRAE IS IRA1 | BRI R E R A B RA B B Air Emissions

BE ) — BE R BEIR

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in | Emissions —
AR ERIEE tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, | GHG Emissions
A1.2 per facility). B —R=EREEEE

B @E1) kisREE @E2) RERBEINE CIHETE) &k QUERA) | i

BE MUBESEN BIERKMTE)
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity | Emissions —
AR ERIEE (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Waste Management
A3 FRELEEREEYES CUEStE) Kk WER) BE WUSESSEM & | S —BEEYER

IR ETE)
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section/Statement
#S - [ E R EARERIEE =301

“Comply or Explain” Provisions
IRBTRLRTZLR X

A. Environmental
RIE

Aspect A1: Emissions

[BEA1 - BE

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, | Emissions —
FREMIEE intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Waste Management
Al4 FRELEEZEEYEE CUEStE &k ER) BE USESEN & | Sy —BEEYERE
IR ETE) ©
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Emissions —
RA SR IEIR HPRET I IBENE B R R A E RS BARPRERENAI P §R o Air Emissions &
A1.5 GHG Emissions
P —BE R BE
RZERBBHR
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a | Emissions — Waste
RSB ISR description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Management
A6 Hil IR A E R EEERYIA G A RS IRVRRE B IR R A ED | B — B E 1R
B LE B IRPTERENAY D BR
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

8% B B MR EIE IR

Section/Statement

=880

“Comply or Explain” Provisions

R8T RR AR RE 5 SC

A. Environmental

RIE

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

[EMEA2 : ERER

General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water, and other raw | Use of Resources
Disclosure materials. BRfEA

—RRIREE BRERER (BEEIR K REMEREMED BIBER

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas, or oil) in | Use of Resources -

B B2 AR R HE1RA2.1

total (kWh in’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
RS DN B HEEEREFEE UTET RS REE W
NeESB 1 SERHsE)

Energy Management
BREA-ERERE

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, | Use of Resources —
RSB AERIEE per facility). Water Management
A2.2 RIEKEREE CIUSESEN  BEXHH) BREA-—IKERE
iz
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve | Use of Resources -
RSB ISR them. Energy Management
A2.3 P 5T S B AE R E A M m B IR e A E B35 L5 B ARPREREAY B BR o BREA-EREE
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for | Use of Resources -
RRENIEE purpose, water efficiency target(s) set, and steps taken to achieve them. Water Management
A2.4 I SREGE A/KOR LRI B RIEE > URPE] INAKN G ERRAE | BRERA—KERE
EE LB RPTIRER Y B 0 iz
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if | Not applicable
FARERIEE applicable, with reference to per unit produced. (There is no product
A2.5 SRR RFTR EEEMNRE CNEETE) &k WER) SEEBR G2 production due to

the Group’s business
nature.)
FER ERERY
B KERRNIRE
mE(E)

RIBIRGIERBRASE
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section/Statement
#S - [ E R EARERIEE =301

“Comply or Explain” Provisions
IRBTRLRTZLR X

A. Environmental
RIE

Aspect A3:The Environment and Natural Resources
[EEAS3 : IRIERKRAER

General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and | Environment and

Disclosure natural resources. Natural Resources

—RRIREE BURET NBIRIE R RIAB REMEAT ERHER RIBRKRAE IR

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and | Environment and

RESEAEMIEIEA3.1 | natural resources and the actions taken to manage them. Natural Resources
BB EBHIRRRRAE RNEATERERNEEFAT 20T | IRIERRAER
&fjo

Aspect A4: Climate Change
[BEAS : RIZEME

General Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues | Climate Change
Disclosure which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. RIEEME
—RRIREE BRI REHEERAIEEHETAELELENEARGHEBEENR
o
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted,and | Climate Change
RASRAEMISIEAL | those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them. | &S5
HHEA K EEHETAELETENEARGERER REHTE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section/Statement
5 [EERFARERIER =6, BH
“Comply or Explain” Provisions
IRETRUAERE IR
B. Social
a4
Aspect B1: Employment
[EEB1 : B
General Information on: Employment
Disclosure (@) thepolicies;and 1EfE
— I E (o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

BRI R 1B R B TIERE BRI TERE - Znb R

R Bt iB R AR R AT

@ BER; K

b) BTFHETABERTZENEREREIRG

&k} o
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), | Employment
RASEAEMFS1EB1.1 | age group, and geographical region. e

4R REEE 2RISR iR Rt e8| HH RS LEE
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group, and geographical region. Employment
RASRAR ISR Bt R s FheAHR Rt @ B D EE MK e
B1.2
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
#S - [ E R EARERIEE

Section/Statement

=880

“Comply or Explain” Provisions
IRBTRLRTZLR X

B. Social
HE

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EEB2 : 2REZE

General Information on:
Disclosure (@) the policies;and
— I E (o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.

B2 TR FREREEHEHFEECERN -

Employees Health &

Safety
ERETINREEY
£

@ BER; &
b) BFHETABERZENEMEERREG
BBkt o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three | Employees’ Health &
RESE4EMIEIEB2.1 | years including the reporting year. Safety
BE=F (BRERFE SFRTITHNABKRLEE. BERETNREHEY
ES
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Employees Health &
RSB AR IS 1R HAILGBRIIFRES- Safety
B2.2 ERETNREEZ
ey
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how | Employees Health &
RARERIERE they are implemented and monitored. Safety
B2.3 FE P ERAN B0 E (R B L 2 FE T USRI TREE R 5% © BERETINREREE
£

144 GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B g RE IR

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
#S - [E R EARERIEE

Section/Statement

=880

“Comply or Explain” Provisions

IRETIARTRE &
B. Social
HE

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EmEB3 : R RIE

General Policies on improving employees knowledge and skills for discharging duties at | Talent Training and
Disclosure work. Description of training activities. Development
—RRINER BRIHEHE S ETT T (ERI SRR R AsRIEUR o #liE 3 /&8 A 155|183 =
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. | Talent Training and

R #2 4R 3512831

senior management, middle management).

‘R EELER) WSREER PREER BnZIllEER DLt

Development

AT 1) B R

KPI B3.2
RS4RI 1R
B3.2

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category.

BIERRESLRRE D SR EE TR T IR E -

Talent Training and
Development

A 5B 2 R

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EEB4 : ¥ T#H|

General Information on: Labour Standards
Disclosure (@) thepolicies;and T AR
— I E (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRAPLEE T e T

(@ BR; R

b) BFHETABERTENEREEEIRG

Lo
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and | Labour Standards
R EIEIEBA. | forced labour. BT %A

FtgRs TR R B ARV LUB o B T Rr5a 55 T o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Labour Standards
RSB ISR T EIRER BN R RA RSP ERE R 2 5% o 5 T2
B4.2
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

Section/Statement

ERTERE LR S AIBRESRBHHIER  LURAABRTR
BRI e

m =<

5 [ E R FARERIER =8, BH
“Comply or Explain” Provisions
IRESTRURRE IR
B. Social
e
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : HFEEEIE
General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Supply Chain
Disclosure BIRHEEAVIRIE it & RBRBER Management
—RR iR R HpEREIE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain
RSB ISR a8 DRSS - Management
B5.1 HEREE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers | Supply Chain
RARENIER where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented | Management
B5.2 and monitored. HEEEE
i RAES R RIS mERITARIMEGINMHERRE » LUKER
HITAERER o
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along | Supply Chain
FARERIEE the supply chain,and how they are implemented and monitored. Management
B5.3 A R (RS EIRENIRIR R S BRI LURAEREHIT | HEREIE
BB Tk 0
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products | Supply Chain
RARENIERE and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and | Management
B5.4 monitored. HEEEIE
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
#S - [E R EARERIEE

Section/Statement

=880

“Comply or Explain” Provisions

IRETIARTRE &
B. Social
HE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EmBEfE

General Information on: Service Quality and
Disclosure (@) the policies;and Responsibility
—RRINE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant | RFS B 2F ST
impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling, and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and methods of redress.
BRAFMREERNMIRBHEERE LS B  BRERAAESEE UM
ER
(@) BR; K
b) BTFTHETABERTZENEREREIRG
E ko
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and | Not applicable
RASRENIEIE health reasons. (There is no product
B6.1 BENBELEMEHTHERZ 2 RRRIEAMABRNI B 2t production due to
the Group's business
nature)
FER EREBM
B REENIRE
m R AF)
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are | Service Quality and
RARENIERE dealt with. Responsibility
B6.2 FERAN 2 o R ARFS 00 S B B LU B Y 75 7% © R EENEE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual | Service Quality and
RARENIERE property rights. Responsibility
B6.3 i B A o8 R AR PR R B AR R R REIRY 1B 51 o ARFFEEMN ST
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
#S - [ E R EARERIEE

Section/Statement

=880

“Comply or Explain” Provisions

IRETIARTRE &
B. Social
HE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EmBEfE

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Not applicable

RSB ENIEE WS ST EIE & ERLUAER (There is no product

B6.4 production due to
the Group’'s business
nature)
TER ERERN
B RERNIRE
mEE)

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,and how they are | Service Quality and

FARERIEE implemented and monitored. Responsibility

B6.5 HIUHEEERMRERAABBER » LU BRI T RER G % AR EENEE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[BEB7 : R&S
General Information on: Anti-corruption
Disclosure (@) the policies;and R&5
— I E (o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering.

BRAR LEERRS ~ BN~ EREF RO B 85RY

@ BER; R

b) BTFHETABERTZENEREREEIRG

HEK o
KPI B71 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against | Anti-corruption
RE A& XMIEIEB71 | theissuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the |  &75

cases.

RERARHET A HESRE Y B BENE SRR AN E KiF

ENMESR ©
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how | Anti-corruption

RSB EWIEIEBT.2

they are implemented and monitored.

L SEFE I A R RAZ T » USRI T B R T3 7% ©

R&5

KPI B7.3
R AR A I51RB7.3

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.
WREE SRS TR ENR &5 o

Anti-corruption
R&5
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section/Statement
#S - [E R EARERIEE =301

“Comply or Explain” Provisions
IRETRLRTZLR X

B. Social
HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

B8EH : H1EBIRE

General Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the | Community
Disclosure communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into | Investment
—RIRE consideration the communities interests. HERSE
BRIt &28R THEEMTIHERENRFREER IFETRHE
FTR AR o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour | Community
RE A& MIE1EB8.1 | needs, health, culture, sport). Investment

FIEMEE WHBE REFE - FIHER BRE -XE B -Fi8 |(HERE
el B RREE - FLRER BE-XEER) °

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Community
AR ERIEE FEEIHBMENAER (NEEaER) Investment
B8.2 Heks
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

EEE : +852 2218 8288
{5E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS
LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Great Wall Pan Asia Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 157
to 249, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPAs “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B 57 A% R H (81)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Valuation of investment properties
Refer to note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

The investment properties are a key component of the Group’s
net assets value as at year end and financial performance for
the year. The Group measured the fair values of the investment
properties of HK$3,328.9 million in the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2023 and recognised the fair value gain
on investment properties of HK$74.5 million in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The investment properties of the Group comprise retail shops,
office buildings, industrial properties, and car parking spaces.
Management determined the fair values of these properties, with
reference to the valuation performed by external valuer engaged
by the Group (the “Valuers”), by considering the information from
a variety of sources. The determination of the fair value involved
significant estimates, the key assumptions used such as rental
rates and capitalisation rates taking into consideration of the
locations, sizes, and qualities of the properties to derive the fair
values of each of the properties.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
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We focused on auditing the valuation of investment properties
because the estimation of fair values of the investment
properties was inherently subjective and subject to high degree
of estimation uncertainty due to the significant estimates
involved. Changes in these estimates could result in material
changes to the valuation of the properties and hence the results
of the Group.

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s valuation of
investment properties included:

+ Assessed the Valuers’ competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

+ Obtained and read the valuation reports issued by the
Valuers which covered the property valuation of all
investment properties of the Group;

« Involved our internal valuation expert to assess the
management data used by the Valuers, including tenancy
schedules and relevant details, to the tenancy agreements of
the Group; and

« Involved our internal valuation expert to assess the valuation
methodologies and the key assumptions used by the Valuers.

152 GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023

HARREVELESRRESFE RARKR
BEYEATHENGSHEFEERE X8 BRRY
REXNETMEFEBEG AREM - ZF M5t

¥ EEERNEBELREREE

FFIFI[EIfE :

MEEEHREVMENGE RANEHEFE
R

- FHMLERENER  ENRERE

- ESKEBEGEEMEAENGERS  HK
= BEEERIREVEIMELE;

- BFEERMANABGEEERS LG (EEME
ANEEE#E (BERERBRRAARMF
B8R SEENEEREN - &

- BFREMANABEEERS L LEEME
RS ET ERERRR



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
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Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

« identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

« obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

« evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
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« conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

« evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Lau Kin Tat, Terry

Practising Certificate no. P07676

Hong Kong, 19 February 2024
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

GEBEERAMRE

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
—E-= e S
+—A +—A
=+-g =+-8
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
M sE BT T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties KEY= 6 3,328,900 3,251,900
Investments in associates REBE R ZIRE 8 5,387,008 4,960,708
Property, plant and equipment L ERE EYS Gy 5 510,478 517,423
Deferred tax asset RIEFIEE B 12 104 104
9,226,490 8,730,135
Current assets MENEE
Accounts receivable e 0= 10 6,179 5,982
Prepayments, deposits and FENER e RkEME
other receivables &R 11 14,744 23,033
Current tax recoverable TREN ] W ol F 18 153 964
Amount due from an intermediate FEUW R R EERR A B Z 718
holding company 9 162 171
Cash and bank balances BB MIRTTHEER 23(b) 232,523 209,661
253,761 239,811
Total assets MEE 9,480,251 8,969,946
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFRISIR AR 12 18,241 18,199
Other payables and accrued liabilities HENRIERESE8E 14 8,682 -
26,923 18,199
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
GABEAME (8)

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
+=A +=A
=+-8  =+-8
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
B 5 BT T AT IT
Current liabilities mEhaE
Other payables and accrued liabilities Hf’mﬁgfﬁ?ﬁﬁ&}@%%ﬁﬁ 14 72,602 53,710
Loans from an intermediate REFEIERAT
holding company B™® 13 5,370,000 5,179,825
Amount due to an intermediate holding ~ FE{J IR A T RIS
company 6,710 1,062
Current tax liabilities BIERRIE AR 2,470 211
5,451,782 5,234,808
Total liabilities maes 5,478,705 5,253,007
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves BRI E
Share capital [N 15 156,775 156,775
Reserves #H 16 3,844,771 3,560,164
Total equity ymrEss 4,001,546 3.716,939
Total equity and liabilities MiEm REE 9,480,251 8,969,946
The notes on pages 163 to 249 are an integral part of these 58163F249B 2 Mz AtZELaMBER 2 —

consolidated financial statements. ZBn
Mr. Wang Hai Mr. Huang Wei
FiEtE =TS
Chairman Director

e e

158 GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GaamIKER
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEFE

2023 2022
—ET=F o 2 it
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
B 5 BT T BT
Revenue Wz 4 121,782 120,945
Other income and gains or losses H A A LR W 2 5 E5 18 309 476
Rental and utilities sk a4 (11,723) (13,466)
Depreciation e 5 (6,937) (7,005)
Other operating expenses HMZESMz 18 (34,643) (42,771)

Fair value gain/(loss) on BEMENFERE
investment properties (&518) 6 74,533 (35,031)
Operating profit KERF 143,321 23,148
Net finance cost AT A2 19 (279,589) (163,922)
Share of profits of associates FEIEHE RN BB F 8 426,300 465,626
Profit before income tax FRFRISIRAIZER 290,032 324,852
Income tax expense FTiEME > 20 (5,182) (7,270)
Profit for the year 2FRY 284,850 317,582
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)
GarmlEdi (8)

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
TEI=F . —
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
B 5E AT AT TT
Other comprehensive income HZ2mEmUA
ltem that may be/has been reclassified ~ H#%&n] / BEHDLEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmzIEE -
Currency translation difference GRERERELZ
on consolidation fERZERE (243) (1,534)
(243) (1,534)
Other comprehensive income 2FEHMEEmBA
for the year, net of tax PriE%) (243) (1,534)
Total comprehensive income 2FEL2EWALEE
for the year 284,607 316,048
Profit attributable to: FEILZRF
Equity holders of the Company KAEIETIFBA 284,850 317,582
Total comprehensive income FEE 2 EURALREE :
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RAEIERTFBA 284,607 316,048
Earnings per share attributabletothe =~ AT IFE ARG
equity holders of the Company SREF 22
Basic EHAR HK18.17 centsfll HK20.26 cents/l
Diluted #a HK18.17 cents/fll HK20.26 cents/Ell

The notes on pages 163 to 249 are an integral part of these  58163FE 24908 7 izt AL Eira Rz —3F
consolidated financial statements. P
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARNED %

Year ended 31 December 2023
e e e H = s [ I

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FAREERHA ARG
Reserves
]
Share Share Contributed Merger Other Retained Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserves profits equity

BE  ROEE BARE  AHEE  M0EE  R2EN eRs
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT  BETL  BETRL  BMTL  RMTR  AMTR BT

Balance at 1 January 2023 N _E-=F—F—H%H 156,775 50,382 310,841 (9,011) 333,688 2,874,264 3,716,939
Comprehensive income ZEKBA
Profit for the year 2ERF - - - - - 284,850 284,850
Other comprehensive loss Hth2 g% - - - - (243) - (243)
Total comprehensive income 2HERALLE - - - - (243) 284,850 284,607
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZ-ZEZ=%
+ZA=+—R%&EH 156,775 50,382 310,841 (9,011) 333,445 3159114 4,001,546
Balance at 1 January 2022 R-E-_E—B-BiK 156775 50,382 310,841 ©011) 335222 2556682 3,400,891
Comprehensive income 2EKBA
Profit for the year 2ERT = = - - - 317582 317582
Other comprehensive income Hitt2EMA = = S S (1,534) S (1,634)
Total comprehensive income 2EBALE S S S S (1,534) 317,682 316,048
Balance at 31 December2022 WM -ZE-—
+ZB=+—B#&& 156,775 50,382 310,841 (9,011) 333,688 2874264  3716,939

The notes on pages 163 to 249 are an integral part of these  $B163E249B Z W RUILFLREMBRERZ —6

consolidated financial statements. o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GolleREk

Year ended 31 December

HE+-A=+—BLLEE

2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
B ¥ BT AT IT
Cash flows from operating activities RETFZHERE
Cash generated from operations EES RS 23(a) 81,442 62,372
Hong Kong profits tax paid BAEENER (2,070) (204)
Net cash generated from operating RETEELEZFRE
activities 79,372 62,68
Cash flows from investing activities REZFZHERE
Purchase of property, plant and BAYZE B REE
equipment 5 - (4)
Addition of investment properties hEREYE 6 (2,467) (4,431)
Interest received BWHIE 19 2,504 1,693
Dividend income from associates REBEZE A TN
Iz BUTA 8 - 66,222
Net cash generated from investing KREETHEL 2 FHRE
activities 37 63,480
Cash flows from financing activities MEESZRERE 23(c)
Advances from an intermediate RREER AR
holding company 5,648 872
Repayment of loan from intermediate BiRRBREER A2
holding company EEN (7,324) (103,793)
Repayment of lease liabilities BERHEaE - (1,832)
Interest paid BAHE (54,748) (140,674)
Net cash used in financing activities REEHFTEZFIRE (56,424) (245,427)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash IR&KRIBEHEZFEM,
equivalents CRZb) 22,985 (119,779)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate FEZR &S~ F 28 (123) (131)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January W—B—HZIRE&K
ReEE 209,661 329,571
Cash and cash equivalents at R+ZB=+—HZREX
31 December RBeEE 23(b) 232,523 209,661
The notes on pages 163 to 249 are an integral part of these 55163E 2498 7 izt At Stz S FSEREx 2 —3F

consolidated financial statements.

e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G5 6 BB R M A

(a)

Corporate information

Great Wall Pan Asia Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability. Its principal place of business in Hong Kong is
21st Floor, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are (a)
property investment and (b) financial services.

Material accounting policy information

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, as further explained
below.

The Group has prepared the financial statements on the
basis of going concern. The Group recorded net current
liabilities of HK$5,198,021,000 as at 31 December 2023. As
at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current liabilities included
loans from an intermediate holding company amounting to
HK$5,370,000,000.

In view of the net current liabilities position, the Directors
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its available sources
of finance when assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going
concern and meet its liabilities as and when they fall due
in the foreseeable future. The Group has been in active
communication with an intermediate holding company to
secure the necessary borrowings and to provide new facilities
to fund the Group’s capital expenditure and operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G 6 BB R I A

2.

(a)

(i)

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The Directors have prepared a cash flow forecast for the
Group which covers a period of twelve months from the end
of the reporting period. Taking into account the positive cash
flows from operation, adequate loan from an intermediate
holding company up to the date of approval of these financial
statements and the ability of management in adjusting the
pace of its operation expansion, the Directors consider that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due. Therefore, there are no material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt over the going concern
assumption and the Directors have formed a judgement
that there is a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to operate for the foreseeable future.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for their annual reporting year
commencing 1 January 2023:

« Insurance Contracts - HKFRS 17

« Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2

« Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to
HKAS 8

« Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction — Amendments to HKAS 12

+ International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules —
Amendments to HKAS 12
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

2.

(a)
(i)

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

The Group has not early applied any new or amended
HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

Except as stated below, new and amendments to HKFRSs
listed above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements is amended to replace all instances of the term
“Significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy
information relating to material transactions, other events or
conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose
immaterial accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy information.

2. EXGFTERER (&

(a) RMELE (B
() BEERAGZATETRANETER ()

RER T EREAER A AR RER
RSB ] BB IR EZER

PR TPt &SN » L] A IEST BB/
B S 2R BB A SR 2 BRI B
T & BRI A EHER SR RAIEEME

%8
Ko

S BN E 1R E B BT
TR B0 (155]) BAEE
BT

FEFENAEEERERAZEFE] BB
BRI B RN 2 HREETIUE

FEBERE BT EEZ G BRI —58
FREIET - HERBERMBREAEMER
—tHER > SFEREMNFUSERAER
HEERVBRENEIZRERAERBEZSFUS
WRFIEHAVRTE  RIZ S St BERER B E
o

ZEERTINEB » BMES R IRN A E K
BEMMEERZMHE HMERIER &
STERERHD R BE K o AT > WIFFTA A
BEARZ - HthS=RHE R A RS SHER
BEREFBEN - H—EERERENEF
BEREFHRER BRENIASHEEXR
SEIEERER -

RIIRTIERABRAT —S_=FE]RSE 165



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

2.

(a)
(i)

(ii)

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies (Continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate
how an entity applies the “four-step materiality process”
to accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
but has affected the disclosure of the Group's accounting
policies set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Revised standards and interpretations not yet
adopted by the Group

Certain revised accounting standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2023 reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the Group. These revised standards are not
expected to have a material impact on the entity in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

«  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture — Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28°

166 GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023

2. EXGFTERER (&

(a) RMELE (B
() BEERAGZATETRANETER (8

& BCZRF 1R REEFR
FHEREHHE B2 (1E5]) G51EHFR
WEHIZE (&)

ERMBREERNBHREF2R FHEKR
MEFIER (MTEFSIRE) TRHEMERT > LIRA—E
BRI P AsHEERIEMZ) AR
B BRKERFE B — B g5t BERNE
HHRHEMBRAESBER -BEHRSECE
NEERRREH

FERZEETHAEBM BRI RRIRL
BEARE WEREGRSMBRERMEE2RT
LRSS EREE

(ii) 755 o] RIRANZASNEETE R Reaz FE

ETRIET SRR R EB/MBILIFT
TR =HF+ T A=+—HRSHERGIE
W EREREBIRAIIRMN - 2B EEFTER]
P ERISARRR S IR RN AR R R Z 3
SUNTEHEH BREMEATE-

- REFHHBENTINGEREZBHE
EHEIEIE-BBMBREERE0
SERRBEEG ET AR F285% (B5]) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

2. EXGFERER (&

2. Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii) Revised standards and interpretations not yet
adopted by the Group (Continued)

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback — Amendments
to HKFRS 16

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments”) - Amendments to HKAS 14

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) - Amendments to HKAS 14

Supplier Finance Arrangements — Amendments to HKAS
7 and HKFRS 7'

Lack of Exchangeability — Amendments to HKAS 212

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was
revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

2. Material accounting policy information 2. EAEHBEREN (&
(Continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (b) 4ZEEZE

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December 2023.

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

2. Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(i) Subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the
present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MB AR E ()

2. Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(i) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Interests in subsidiaries in the Company’s balance sheet are
accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

2. Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(ii) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s interests in associates include goodwill identified on
acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
and post-acquisition movements in reserves of associates
is included in the Group’s profit or loss and consolidated
reserves respectively. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. Dividends received or receivable from associates
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profits of
associates’ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

2.

()
(i)

(i)

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$”), which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the profit or loss, except when deferred in
equity as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Translation differences on investments in equity instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
included in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

2. Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(ii) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in equity.

(iii) Group companies

On consolidation, the balance sheet of subsidiaries and
associates denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
whilst the statement of comprehensive income is translated
at an average rate. The resulting translation differences
are included in the translation reserve. When any of these
subsidiaries or associates is sold, any translation differences
previously recognised in respect of such subsidiary or
associate are reclassified to the profit or loss.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than assets in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an
asset comprises its purchase price and any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

2. EXGFTERER (&

2. Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (d) W% a3 masE (&

BEMRAETRBEE AR ARIEEN @R

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying

amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated

using the straight-line method to allocate cost less estimated

residual value less accumulated impairment losses over the

estimated useful lives as follows:

- leasehold improvement Shorter of remaining lease
term of 2 to 50 years or
useful life

- buildings Shorter of remaining lease
term of the land or 100
years

- computer equipment 3to 4 years

- office equipment
- office furniture
- vehicle

3to 10 years
3to 10 years
3to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

2.

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(e)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as property, plant and equipment.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties that are held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment
properties are measured initially at costs, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair values, with changes in fair
values recognised in the profit or loss. The methods used to
determine the fair values of the investment properties are set
out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure on an investment property is
included in the asset’s carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

2.

(f)

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract
is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

2.

(f)

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date at
amounts equal to net investments in the leases, measured
using the interest rate implicit in the respective leases. Initial
direct costs (other than those incurred by manufacturer or
dealer lessors) are included in the initial measurement of the
net investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on
the straight-line basis over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease that
was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease
are counted for as lease modifications. The Group accounts
for a modification to an operating lease as a new lease
from the effective date of the modification, recognising the
remaining lease payments as income on a either a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the remaining
lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

()]

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating
unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

2.

()]

(h)

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which it arises.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

2.

(h)

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for accounts receivable arising
from contracts with customers which are initial measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

2. Material accounting policy information 2. BEREEBEREN (&

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued) (h) ERTH @)
(i) Financial assets () HEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of THEENTEREEFE

financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are RFETIRGNERE E B g At

subsequently measured at amortised cost: 2.

« thefinancial asset is held within a business model whose - RERANINEHNREMENEHIEN
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and HENEMEE; &

- the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash - BRBRRNIEEEBELRSRE M
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest MR ERAERHEREEAEHFEN
on the principal amount outstanding. (NE/

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial LtEoh > A 82 B B] N Bl i EH it HE e ZR R B X

asset that are required to be measured at the amortised KA EF ARMEERE . EREE

cost or fair value through other comprehensive income as REBATESIABRTE (WA LR
measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so NEAE R D GEHEER) ©

eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

&5 0 B ok W Ak

2.

(h)
0]

(%)

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on financial assets (including accounts receivable,
deposits and other receivables, cash and bank balances,
amounts due from an intermediate holding company). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

R R R E

2.

(h)
0]

(%)

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit
loss experiences, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

2. EXGFTERER (&

2. Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued) (h) ERTHE @)

() THEZE (@)
EHEERE (&

(i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

- Significant increase in credit risk — EEREREEEN

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group

REHMEEE R B VEREDLURES

BEEME > ZEBLERER T ARE
S EAHRENNERRERHEE H
HALIRIEAIRYEE - (FILET(E R 5EE
ZROERAEENEERELER
BIEBTERRERTEETVEMAR

considers both quantitative and qualitative information 15BN IS RRTEMEE R
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical

experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into THR  FHEHEE R B RS LR
account when assessing whether credit risk has EEEREEENNEEREUTEN !
increased significantly:

TR TEINR NA) RS ET
RAVBRETRRRRRE S

« an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market - GEERBHINHIZIERESER
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in B FAIMNEEEEXNBHEANEE
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for BAs B AIEIEN ;
the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

2. Material accounting policy information 2. BEREEBEREN (&
(Continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued) (h) ERTHE @
(i) Financial assets (Continued) () ZHEE #B)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) THEERE (B
- Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) — FERREEIL @
. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, . ER MBRLERRERITER
financial or economic conditions that are expected to HIRAF)EE > TR EREHFA
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to BRENKRIETRE ;

meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the - EBAKEXEERNEHREER
operating results of the debtor; 1t

« an actual or expected significant adverse change - BEREANEE KEALMIRIZE
in the regulatory, economic, or technological MR TEHALHIRE AR F&EE) » B
environment of the debtor that results in a BB NEEESIKIE T Eeo

significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, Nom s 45 SR an{e] » ﬁ%.fﬁ ER
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased BHNNFEIRBE0RFR  EERMRE
significantly since initial recognition when contractual FIIETESR LR E R E 0 - 5%3'521&%@
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the wAESENAEENERHEBEMIER
Group has reasonable and supportable information that BYEREm

demonstrates otherwise.

RIIRTIERARAR —E_=FEHRE 185



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

2. Material accounting policy information 2. EAEHBEREN (&
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued) (h) ERTHE @)

() THEZE (@)
EHEERE (&

(i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

- Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) — FERREEIL @
Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the BEBELARE &N RESHAEMT

credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased AR EAEEREEERRE  BIAE
significantly since initial recognition if the debt BEREEH LENEE R KRB VI

instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

)

MEswk M ()

2. Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MB AR E ()

2. Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
(i) Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
- Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

2. EXGFTERER (&

2. Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

2. EXGFTERER (&

2. Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment loss or reversal
of impairment loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amounts,
with the exception of accounts receivable where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

2. Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
(i) Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classifications as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

2. Material accounting policy information 2. EAEHBEREN (&
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued) (h) ERTH @)

(i) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (i) THEERKLETA )
(Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B AT EZ EME R
Financial liabilities (including other payables, loans from EREE (EEEMENRIE  2REPEEZER
an intermediate holding company and amount due to an REIZ B REMFPEZERATRIE HE
intermediate holding company) are subsequently measured B2 E R H AT & o

at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities AR ZME R
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only EHEEXREENSTERR BUHSEIHA
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or R AERAERIIEIEHMEE K1
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount FNEMEBEREELDN REMREZE
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration HZELRTH B

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents () REXIREZEY
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, MGERERERMS  REMREEEY
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and BIEFRIRE MEHRER U O] ERER
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments REMESBERS PMIEEESRRIEE
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, —RR BB AR =88 NEIHRR RS B
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and BE AR EREEENIRTES 118
have a short maturity of generally within three months RAEEIREEIRARE D

when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

2.

@)

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

2. EXGFTERER (&

2. Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

(k) BUVHRRIEFEFTISHE

(k) Current and deferred income tax

Income tax expense is the aggregate amount included in
the determination of profit or loss for the year in respect of
current tax and deferred tax.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

2. EXGFTERER (&

2. Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

(k) BNEARARIEFTISH (&

(k) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities for such investment properties are
measured in accordance with the above general principles
set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as to
how the properties will be recovered).

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
thereis a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

2.

0

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme for all qualifying employees employed in Hong Kong.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes the lower of HK$1,500 per month as a mandatory
contribution or 5% of the relevant monthly payroll costs to
the MPF Scheme.

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiary are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiary is required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes is to make the required contributions
under the schemes.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no forfeited
contribution under the Defined Contribution Schemes
available which may be used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contributions, nor any contribution under the
Defined Contribution Schemes was forfeited by the Group
during the two years.

Critical accounting estimates and judgement

Management are required to exercise significant estimates
and judgments, which are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, in the selection and
application of accounting principles.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

3.

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting estimates and judgement
(Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties is performed in
accordance with the “Valuation Standards on Valuation
of Properties” published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The valuation is reviewed semi-annually by
qualified valuers by considering the information from a
variety of sources including but not limited to:

() comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market; and

(i) rental income derived from the existing tenancies with
due provision for any reversionary income potential.

The fair value of investment properties is determined by
using valuation technique. The determination of the fair
value involves significant estimates, the key assumptions
used such as rental rates and capitalisation rates taking
into consideration of the locations, sizes and qualities of the
properties in relying on the valuation report. Details of the
judgement and assumptions applied have been disclosed in
Note 6.

Changes to the assumptions used in deriving the valuation
could have a significant risk of causing material adjustment
to the carrying amounts in the balance sheet. Please refer to
Note 6 for details.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for
its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. The
depreciation for future periods are adjusted if there are
material changes from previous estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

3.

()

Critical accounting estimates and judgement
(Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgement and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
in the case of value in use, the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including
cash flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets
belongs, including allocation of corporate assets when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined
at the smallest group of cash generating units, for which the
relevant corporate assets have been allocated. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the recoverable amounts.

(d) Going concern consideration

The assessment of the going concern assumption involves
making a judgement by the management and reviewed
by Directors, at a particular point of time, about the future
outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The Directors consider that the Group and the
Company have the capabilities to continue as going concerns
and the major events and conditions, which may give rise
to business risks, that individually or collectively may cast
significant doubt upon the going concern assumption and
related mitigating measures taken by management are set
out in Note 2(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

4. WK ERE R

4. Revenue and segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the Group, who reviews
the Group's internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. The Company’s management has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Group has two reportable segments, namely property
investment and financial services segments, for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Property investment segment holds various retail,
commercial and industrial properties and car parking spaces
in Hong Kong. It derives revenue through leasing out its
properties.

The financial services segment primarily engages in
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO”).

During the year, the Group has ceased to carry on Type 1
(dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities), and
Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activities
under the SFO. Requests for the reduction of Type 1 and
Type 4 regulated activities and revocation of Type 6 regulated
activities have been submitted to the Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC”).

The SFC has agreed to reduce the Group's Type 1 and Type
4 regulated activities under section 127(1) of the SFO with
effective from 6 June 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group is licensed to carry on
Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO. However,
during the year ended 31 December 2023, the financial
services segment did not generate any revenue (2022:
HK$300,000).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 4 January
2024, the SFC agreed to revoke the Group's license for Type
6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activities under
section 195(1)(d) of the SFO.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MB AR E ()

4. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

The chief operating decision-maker assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on profit
or loss for reportable segments. The Group considers that
the measurement principles for profit or loss for reportable
segments are consistent with those used in measuring the
corresponding amounts in the Group’s financial statements.
Hence, profit or loss for reportable segments is used for
reporting segment profit or loss. Although no segment assets
or liabilities is regularly provided to or reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker, monthly updates presenting
the Group’s consolidated balance sheet by subsidiaries are
provided for the purpose of assessment.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in the material accounting policy
information except that interest in the profit or loss of
associates is accounted for on the basis of dividend received
or receivable in segment profit or loss while such interest
is accounted for under the equity method in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each business requires
different marketing strategies. Transactions (if any) between
reportable segments are accounted for on arm’s length basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

4. Revenue and segment information (Continued) 4. INEKRDEER @)

Revenue recognised during the year comprises: RERFER 2 W B
2023 2022
—T-= o =
HK$'000 HK$000
BT BT
Rental s 111,989 110,822
Service fees and charges AR E R E 9,793 9,823
Advisory services SBEAARTS - 300
121,782 120,945

Leases with tenants provide for monthly fixed base rent and
recovery of certain outgoings. Additional rents were based
on business turnover amounted to HK$414,000 (2022:
HK$476,000) and have been included in the rental income.

Service fees and charges such as air conditioning income
and management fee income arising from the provision of
services are recognised over time when such services are

rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

4. Revenue and segment information (Continued) 4. INERDEER @)

Substantially all the activities of the Group are based in AEBARE EAMBEBHAUEREAEM M
Hong Kong and below is segment information by reportable RAROI RS D EPE D 2 DB ERUIT -
segments:

(a) Reportable segment profit or loss (@) AIFRE D EFIER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE_Z_=F+"_A=1+—HLEE

Property Financial

investment services Total
MERLE ERLARTS Hast
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BET T
Revenue from external customers INARE R 2@ 121,782 - 121,782
Profit/(loss) for reportable segments o3RS EEA],
(&518) 81,776 (1,141) 80,635
Net finance (cost)/income s (B
WA ER (54,551) 565 (53,986)
Depreciation e (6,299) (1) (6,300)
Income tax expense FriSinF (5,182) - (5,182)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE_E-HF+-A=+—HIEE
Property Financial
investment services Total
MERE ERARTS Mast
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ST T BT T
Revenue from external customers IARZR 2 m 120,645 300 120,945
Loss for reportable segments OIERE D EEE (3,331) (3,977) (7.308)
Net finance (cost)/income M5 (B2
WA R &R (24,408) 79 (24,327)
Depreciation e (6,305) (25) (6,330)
Income tax (expense)/credit FRiSi () /%R (7,390) 120 (7,270)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

4. Revenue and segment information (Continued) 4. INERDEER @)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment profitorlossto  (b) FI¥RE D EFIBREA S FRFHIRR
profit for the year

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+—ALLEE

2023 2022
—E= TE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Profit/(loss) for reportable segments AIREDERF], (B518) 80,635 (7,308)
Reconciling items: HIRIER :
Share of profits of associates under equity RIEEREOAEERHE QT
method of accounting gl 426,300 465,626
Finance cost for financing the Group’s MAEBRKE KIS AT ET
investment in an associate (Note) BRE BT R A (H/aE) (227,345) (141137)
Other corporate and treasury activities Hihib 2R EFES 5,260 401
Profit for the year 2ERERF 284,850 317,582
Note: The finance cost of HK$227,345,000 (2022: HK$141,137,000) is not M5 @ 227,345,000470 (22 Z 24 1 141,137,000
allocated to the above reportable segments as this finance cost BIT) 2B ARDEEEN LOIRED
was incurred for financing the Group’s investment in an associate. EIYHERZH BN AR ERRE—
Please refer to Note 8 for details. REEABIETMEMESL FHIFF2HE

MiEE8 e

RIIRTIERABRAT — T _=FERE 203



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

&5 0 B ok W Ak

4,

(c)

(d)

(%)

Revenue and segment information (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). The term “PRC” for the
purpose of the consolidated financial statements, excludes
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC.

The revenue for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022 are all derived from Hong Kong, amounted
to HK$121,782,000 and HK$120,945,000 respectively.
As at 31 December 2023, the total non-current assets
other than deferred tax asset located in Hong Kong and
the PRC amounted to HK$9,226,386,000 (31 December
2022: HK$8,730,022,000) and HK$nil (31 December 2022:
HK$9,000), respectively.

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,

4. Wi R D ERE R} (&
() tEHEK

FEEREBRPEARILME (HRED) &
BEF o I —50 GRS MHREMS)
NEEREE BRI TEE

HE_ S —FRE-"F+"_H=+—
BEFENKGEBEEBESE DA
121,782,0005 75 % 120,945,000 5o iR — &
TEFE+ A=+ —HB  UREARTPEN
IERBEE CRERIBE ERRIN 42ZEDRIA
9,226,386,000/87t CE_—F+-_B=+—
H :8,730,022,000870) RZEH8 T CETF

+Z-—A=+—H :9,000#7T) °
(d) BREEEZRMER

BE SRS —F#+_F=+—

revenue from major customers who contributed over 10% of AUEFEE > BRMAERAINTE10% X LN E
the total revenue of the Group is as follows: BERAIWEIT -
2023 2022
“ECCF .- =
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T AT T
Customer A LY\ 14,672 14,672
Customer B ZFB 16,677 16,971

Revenue contributed from customer A and B are derived from
property investment segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

5. Property, plant and equipment

5. Y% e Rt

Computer Office Office Leasehold
equipment  equipment furniture improvement Buildings Vehicle Total
HEME
BiEEE BRERHE  WAEEHR HETRE 18F BE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT AT AT
Net book value at RZEZ=F—HF—H
1 January 2023 ZIRESE = 445 262 2,769 513,838 109 517,423
Depreciation neE - (70) (52) (409) (6,297) (109) (6,937)
Written-off b 6| - (8) - - - - (8)
Net book value at RZIEZ=%F
31 December 2023 +ZB=+—-Bz
IREEE - 367 210 2,360 507,541 - 510,478
At 31 December 2023 RIBZ=%
+ZR=+-H
Cost A 18 1,283 637 5,303 629,750 717 637,708
Accumulated depreciation REMTERAEEE
and impairment losses (18) (916) (427) (2,943) (122,209) (717) (127,230)
Net book value at RIZZ=%
31 December 2023 +ZBA=+—-Hz
RERE - 367 210 2,360 507,541 - 510,478
Computer Office Office Leasehold
equipment equipment furniture  improvement Buildings Vehicle Total
HEME
Bl WRER WAERE wEIR 1BF B W5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BT BT BT BT
Net book value at RZI2ZZH—-F—H
1 January 2022 ZIREZE 1 544 315 3177 520,136 252 524,425
Additions hE = 4 - - - - 4
Depreciation e 0 (102) (53) (408) (6,298) (143) (7,005)
Exchange relignment EXFE = (1) = = = = 1)
Net book value at RIEZZHF
31 December 2022 +-A=+—-Hz
RERE - 445 262 2,769 513,838 109 517423
At 31 December 2022 RIE-"&
+-BA=+-H
Cost A 18 1,330 637 5,303 629,750 717 637755
Accumulated depreciation REHTERAEESE
and impairment losses (18) (885) (375) (2,534) (115,912) (608) (120,332)
Net book value at = 2
31 December 2022 +ZA=+-Bz
REFE = 445 262 2,769 513,838 109 517,423
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

&5 0 B ok W Ak

(%)

6. Investment properties 6. KEME
2023 2022
—EI=F BT F
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT T
At 1 January n—B—H 3,251,900 3,282,500

Fair value change: NEEED .

- Capitalised expenses —EBAERAx 2,467 4,431
- Fair value gain/(loss) — AR EWE (B58) 74,533 (35,031)
At 31 December R+-BA=+—H 3,328,900 3,251,900

The Group leases out its investment properties under
operating leases. Leases typically run for an initial period of
one to four years, with some having the option to renew, at
which time all terms are renegotiated.

The Group’s investment properties were valued by an
independent professional valuers, Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited (“Savills”) and CBRE Advisory
Hong Kong Limited (“CBRE”), to determine their fair values
as at 31 December 2023 (as at 31 December 2022: Savills).
The Group has adopted such valuation and recognised a
fair value gain of HK$74,533,000 (31 December 2022: fair
value loss of HK$35,031,000) accordingly. The principal
assumptions underlying management’s estimation of
fair values of the investment properties and the basis
of valuation are consistent with those applied in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022. The investment properties have been
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2023, by the level
3 (31 December 2022: level 3) in the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value treatment is categorised. There is no
transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy used in
measuring the fair value of the investment properties during
the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

6. Investment properties (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, direct operating
expenses of HK$19,219,000 (2022: HK$24,318,000)
arising from investment properties that generated rental
income and no direct operating expense arising from
investment properties that did not generate rental income
(2022: Nil), were charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total future minimum

6. REWE (&

== == e B s
BEAEWGRENFHAEEASRAZRE
M5B 2 B ER$19,219,00087T (2
£ 1 24,318,000 7T)  RETEEME
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rental receivables under non-cancellable operating leases HIGEME AR ERE 2 R R RHE
for its investment properties are as follows: M EEWGRIEAEERWT -

2023 2022
“ET=F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT BT
Within 1 year 1R 87,661 90,702
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBE2ERN 42157 72,915
After 2 years but within 3 years 2B 1B3ER 9,337 22,403
After 3 years but within 4 years SFERBELFENR 230 1,200
After 4 years but within 5 years LEBBFER - 50
After 5 years S =E 3 = -
139,385 187,270
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

6. REWE (&

6. Investment properties (Continued)

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group as at i 2 = = VR T = | o | = e =
31 December 2023 and 2022: FEFEFFREYEFE -
Property Type Lease term
S ) TR
(i) 20th and 21st Floors and Car Parking Spaces Nos. 21,22 and  Offices and car parking Long
23 on 4th Floor, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, spaces
Central, Hong Kong
ERTIRERB129ERIRTHO20KR21MERLMEZ 2122 WAERFEIFE] £
T 235% (B BB AU
(ii) Ground and 1st Floors, Block B, Ko Fai Industrial Building, 7 Industrial building Medium
Ko Fai Road, Yau Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BANERESEE7ESIE T X XEBEM N K118 IE thER
(i) The lobby on G/F and the front (or southern) portions of  Office and retail shop Medium
the 1st, 2nd and 3rd Floors including the staircase therein
leading up to the 3rd Floor and the lift therein serving the
1st and 2nd Floors only and portion of the canopy on the 1st
Floor level, Yue King Building, 26, 26A, 27, 28, 29 & 30 Canal
Road West, 1-7 Leighton Road and 41-47 Morrison Hill Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
EBETRSEE2626A 2728 20K%305E 1EEE1E MWAERTES R
TRREEBNENELRRREH T RE R 2R3 2
AIED (BRI ER) (BIEBMABIERBIR R ERFS 1 2B 2 FH %
1) UR1ER D L&
(iv)  8th Floor of Block C, Sea View Estate, 8 Watson Road, North  Industrial building Medium
Point, Hong Kong
BHEILAE R ESTER KECEESIE I= FREHR
(V) Kwai Fong Plaza, Kwai Fong Estate, 177 Hing Fong Road, Retail shopsand car parking Medium
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong spaces
BAMAZRE SR 775RES WE S ES DEEREESRE thER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

6. Investment properties (Continued) 6. IREWE (&
Investment properties comprise: KREYEBIE
2023 2022
=== B TF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
AT BT T
Long term leasehold (not less than 50 years)  RHIFEA (RDRE+E) 480,900 480,900
Medium term leasehold (less than 50 years RERFEA (DR AE+HEERDR
but not less than 10 years) +) 2,848,000 2,771,000
3,328,900 3,251,900

Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs

EREATITHRBAREN L TES

==)

Retail shops
and car
parking Office Industrial
spaces buildings properties Total
TEER
BEIBE MAKIE Is wst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIETIT BIETIT BIBETIT BIETIT
At 1 January 2022 A — = R 1,932,000 1,007,500 343,000 3,282,500
Fair value change: NEEES !
- Capitalised expenses —BREHE% 3,651 780 - 4,431
~ Fair value gain/(loss) —NFEWE (B8
- unrealised —RBHR 50,349 (72,380) (13,000) (35,031)
At 31 December 2022 AR _F+ZA=+—H 1,986,000 935,900 330,000 3,251,900
At 1January 2023 N ZEZ=—F—F—H 1,986,000 935,900 330,000 3,251,900
Fair value change: NTEEE)
- Capitalised expenses —BREHEX 2,467 - - 2,467
- Fair value gain/(loss) —NFEWE (B8
- unrealised —KRBR 71,533 4,000 (1,000) 74,533
At 31 December 2023 RN_ZE_=F+"_F=+—H 2,060,000 939,900 329,000 3,328,900
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

6. REWE (&

6. Investment properties (Continued)

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were revalued by
independent professionally qualified valuers, Savills and
CBRE, at 31 December 2023 (2022: Savills), who both hold a
recognised relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the locations and segments of the investment
properties valued. For all investment properties, their
current valuations are based on the highest and best use.
The Group’s finance department includes a team that review
the valuations performed by the independent valuers for
financial reporting purposes. The revaluation gains or losses
are shown as “Fair value gain/(loss) on investment properties”
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

At each financial year end, the finance department:

« verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
report;

« assesses property valuation movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report; and

« holds discussions with the independent valuers.
Valuation techniques

Fair values of the retail shops, office buildings, industrial
properties and car parking spaces are derived using the
income capitalisation approach. The income capitalisation
approach is based on the capitalisation of the net income
and reversionary income potential by adopting appropriate
capitalisation rates, which are derived from actual location,
size and quality of the properties and taking into account
market data at the valuation date. The prevailing market
rents adopted in the valuation have reference to the actual
location, type and quality of the properties and supported by
the terms of any existing lease, other contracts or external
evidence such as current market rents for similar properties.

210 GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023

FEFENGERE

$$lz$§§¢%¥ﬁ\ “B=ZF+4+"A
=+—HCEZZF  F-XTHEN B
ﬁ%_Liﬁr%Aﬁ*%TETEEﬂﬁ — R BT Rt
BT MEDFA R REREEER
BRI BHFR L ERRBEY R MR R EE
ETHE ENGE -BRMAREYHEZ
HEDERRAV R ERRIFH AEH
AR5 BRPTA — (B E P52 B B AL (L E AT L
MR ERENEERS - B msiEE
PR EEWmRAEME AT ERT
(&518) 158k

BB IR M F5ERPT -

- REEIGERSHIEIZHAME,

- AMEMELER L —FEGERSHE
8, K

- BB GEMERSRE -
(EY=0aR

SEE-MAKIE - TEREFEEHBEANA
TEEARmERCEES - WmB %
TERRAEEEAMELE RSB AP RE
HERBWATUBERCRF/E  MEACLER
TIREMENERUE - REREETEE
TETEEIZF’E%%K%JE PHEETRHRAAIIR
THHEESEYENBERUE BRI
% W UE IR B AR Ef S 495N
R RINBR L EN B G E 25



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

6. Investment properties (Continued) 6. WEWE @

Valuation techniques (Continued)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
the year.

Significant inputs used to determine fair value

Capitalisation rates are estimated by management, after
consultation with valuers based on the risk profile of the
properties being valued. The higher the rates, the lower
the fair value. At 31 December 2023, capitalisation rates
of 2.50% to 3.90% (2022: 2.75% to 3.90%) are used in the
income capitalisation approach for the retail shops, office
buildings, industrial properties and car parking spaces.
(2022: retail shops, office buildings, industrial properties and
car parking spaces).

Rental rates are estimated based on recent lettings of 62.0
psf (2022: HK$60.0 psf) for retail shops, HK$46.4 psf to
HK$80.6 psf (2022: HK$47.5 psf to HK$89.0 psf) for office
buildings, HK$10.0 psf to HK$28.6 psf (2022: HK$10.0 psf to
HK$28.5 psf) for industrial properties and HK$3,502.0 per
space (2022: HK$3,470.0 per space) for car parking spaces
respectively. The lower the rents, the lower the fair value.

HERE (@

PEER SET AL EES)

BEATENETEHARKE

BAGCLERTREEBLAALEMBE
FrfaEMENRRE R G EXEE 2
FEAEE N _E_=F+_HA=+—
H> BWABR A A HENSES i
NARIEB-TEREEFZHEA (CTEZ2F
ZEE - WAKE TEREEBEN F/H
250%E3.90% (CBEZ 4 275%FE3.90%)
HE ARG -

MEEXTLIRBESE/ESFHR6208T (&
T F I §FHR60.087T) HAKES
FHRL6.4BTTEFGFHRE0.68T (ZF
T F B ARISETESF HIRE0E
7T N LESFARI00BTESFHR28.6
BT (CEIZF . 8FEAFRI00EBTEST
5 IR28 5% 7T) KB EIEEHEI3,502.0587T
(CEITF | §EEEIHEI3,470.0587T)
B RAFR S TER - S EE > AFEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MB AR E ()

6. Investment properties (Continued) 6.

Significant inputs used to determine fair value
(Continued)

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

KREVE (B
BEATENTEHARE (B

TRUERTERREYMEN AT ESERE
R

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R 21k 3% st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BMTR  BMTR  EETR
At 31 December 2023 RZBZ=&+"A=+—H
Investment properties REME - - 3,328,900 3,328,900
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZF+ZRA=+—H
Investment properties REME - - 3,251,900 3,251,900

There was no transfer between levels during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

Management engages an external valuers using the income
capitalisation approach which takes into account market
information with reference to sales evidence as available on
the market.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

6. Investment properties (Continued)

Valuation of investment properties with unobservable

inputs

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning
balance to the ending balance for fair value measurement in

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

(=

6. REWE (B
BEFAREHABENREMENG

TREHIAFERBETUSIMRATFESE
FUEREERGERIVEER

2023 2022

—ZT-= TEZITHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Opening balance FEEER 3,251,900 3,282,500

Additions during the year FARE 2,467 4,431
Unrealised gain/(loss) recognised FARERNARER G (B518)

during the year 74,533 (35,031)

Closing balance FRERR 3,328,900 3,251,900

Net changes in unrealised gains/(losses) EIRRERERH NG (BH8)
for Level 3 investment HEE)FE 74,533 (35,031)

* For identification purpose only

* (BB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MB AR E ()

6. Investment properties (Continued)

Valuation of investment properties with unobservable
inputs (Continued)

Balance of investment properties as at 31 December 2023:

6. REWE (B

BEFAREHABENREMENG
B (@

KRB =+=A=+—BREENLE
#:

Valuation
Investment Fairvalue technique Unobservable inputs Rate/Range
RE ATE GERE FOBERBAYE tEfl/EEE
HK$'000
BT T
Investment properties 3,328,900  Income Capitalisation rate: 2.50%-3.90% The higher the capitalisation rate,
capitalisation the lower the fair value
approach
KEM* 3328900 WABXKIEAZE BAREXR:250%%E3.90% BXEREE ATEREE
Rental rates: The lower the rents, the lower the
Retail shops: fair value
HK$62 psf

Office buildings:

HK$46.4 psf-HK$80.6 psf
Industrial properties:

HK$10 psf-HK$28.6 psf
Car parking space:

HK$3,502 per space

A
TEE:

EEEE A TERBE

BFAHRE2ETT

/AN

BYHR64BTEGTAR

80.6 7T

IE:

BYARIOBTESTAR

28.6787T
RERIHERA

SEFEHEI 5028 7T

214 GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

6. Investment properties (Continued) 6. WEWE @
Valuation of investment properties with unobservable BERTERHEAZENEEYENG
inputs (Continued) =NES)
Balance of investment properties as at 31 December 2022: MRIE-_—F+-HA=1+—HREWENLE
B
Valuation
Investment Fairvalue technique Unobservable inputs Rate/Range
RE ATE GERE FOBERBAYE tEfl/EEE
HK$'000
BT T
Investment properties 3,251,900 Income Capitalisation rate: 2.75%-3.90% The higher the capitalisation rate,
capitalisation the lower the fair value
approach
REME 3,251,900 WABRLERE BREXR:275%E390% BXEREE ATEREE
Rental rates: The lower the rents, the lower the
Retail shops: fair value
HK$60.0 psf

Office buildings:
HK$47.5 psf-HK$89.0 psf
Industrial properties:
HK$10.0 psf-HK$28.5 psf
Car parking space:
HK$3,470.0 per space
g Hedl ATERME
BEIE:
FY¥HR60.0%ETT
MAaKXE:
BTHAR4IGETESTHR
89.08 7T
IE:
BTAFRI00BTESFESR
28.5787C
(REIGHE !
BEFEEHES470.087T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

7. Investments in subsidiaries

7. MBATIZKE

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 28 to FENB AT 2 BREHN RSB RERMEE
the consolidated financial statements. 280

8. Investments in associates 8. RIEATZIKRE

2023 2022

=4 T F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT

At 1 January w—BA—H 4,960,708 4,561,304
Dividend from an associate KE—KBELBKRE - (66,222)
Share of profits of associates LI E N B BT 426,300 465,626
At 31 December W+=-B=+—H 5,387,008 4,960,708

As of 31 December 2023 and 2022, the balances included
investment in Everwell City Limited (“Everwell City”) and
Dymocks Franchise Systems (China) Limited (“Dymocks”).
Everwell City holds commercial properties and shopping
centers, plazas and carparks while Dymocks operated as a
bookshop.

BHE_ZE_-_"FRZZEZZ_F+ZA
=+—HR > #&ERE1E Everwell City Limited

(TEverwell City]) KzDymocks Franchise
Systems (China) Limited (MDymocks 1) Z & & o
Everwell CityFr B m 2 UL BB O B
B K285 MDymocksBIfE A& E o

Summarised financial information for the material
associate

ERMEAR U BERTE

Set out below is the summarised financial information for T &EFEverwell CityR —E - =&+_"H

Everwell City as at 31 December 2023, which is accounted
for using the equity method. In the opinion of the Directors,
Everwell City is material to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

8. Investments in associates (Continued) 8. ME=ZEATZIRE @&

EAMERT ZHMHERRE (8

Summarised financial information for the material
associate (Continued)

Summarised balance sheet BEEEXHE
2023 2022
—E-= B HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current assets FERBEE 31,794,777 30,247,236
Current assets REEE 442,778 512,588
Non-current liabilities ERENEE (10,482,549) (24,137542)
Current liabilities mEAaE (14,090,610) (383,101)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income FE a7 BE
2023 2022
—EB=F B F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue W& 1,218,679 114,467
Profit and total comprehensive income for 2ERANLEEWALRLE
the year 1,425,215 1,558,180
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

8. Investments in associates (Continued) 8. RIHENBEIZIRE (&

EAMERT ZHMBHERRE (8

Summarised financial information for the material
associate (Continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information HEEFIIESRE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BT
Profit and total comprehensive income 2ERANLEEWALRLE
for the year 1,425,215 1,558,180
Less: Net profit attributable to non-controlling 8 :Everwell Cityi B A T JEIZ=AR
interest of Everwell City’s subsidiaries 1 (L F & F (233,768) (256,011)
1,191,447 1,302,169
Group's shareholdings REERRE 35.78% 35.78%
Group's share of net profit attributable to AEERLEBRERIFBEAZ
equity holders (Note (i) FRHA GEEG) 426,300 465,916
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT TT
Net assets attributable to equity holders FERBE A AT AAZ
of the associate BEFE 6,405,506 5,214,059
Group's shareholdings RER R 35.78% 35.78%
Group's share of net assets attributable to AEERLEBER ER
equity holders (Note (i) FEAZEEZFE W) 2,291,945 1,865,645
Shareholders’ loan RERER 3,095,063 3,095,063
Carrying amount FREE 5,387,008 4,960,708
Note: 5T -
(i) The effective share of profits of the Group from each of the () AEBEFRBEverwell CityREBFMAL I
subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong of Everwell City remains NEWBAB 2 BREGEERFERNY

at approximately 29.9%. 29.9%°

218 GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

9. Amount due from an intermediate holding 9. FEINHFREIERATZFIE
company
The amount is unsecured, interest-free, repayable on ZAEAEIRE RE - REREENRES
demand and trading in nature. The Company will demand ME - ARBERNEERE+ZEAREK
repayment within twelve months from the balance sheet B o
date.

10.Accounts receivable 10. FEUNFRIE
An ageing analysis of accounts receivable as at the end of the PREREFEER > BUGRIEZ BREC DU T !

reporting year is as follows:

2023 2022
Balance Percentage Balance Percentage
“EER Bt KER Bt
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
BT T % BT T %
Current BIEA 5,118 82.2 2,546 38.9
Less than 30 days BHEVR=+H
past due 982 15.8 2,804 42.9
31 to 60 days past due BH=+—HZ
~1H 39 0.6 587 9.0
611090 days pastdue  #EAN+—HZE
A+H 1 0.1 10 0.1
Over 90 days past due AR A+H 83 1.3 595 9.1
6,223 100.0 6,542 100.0
Allowance for impairment J8 {8 1 (44) (560)
Total HEEt 6,179 5,982
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

10.Accounts receivable (Continued) 10. RN FERIE (4B
Below is an ageing analysis of accounts receivable (net MTARIREHRAEEREREIRRE -
of allowance for impairment) that are past due as at the WERIE GORRBERE) ZERER DT -

reporting date but not impaired:

2023 2022
—EC=F T fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Less than 30 days past due mH N =+H 975 2,804
31 to 60 days past due BE=+—HZENRTH 38 587
61 to 90 days past due BN+ —HEA+TH - 10
Over 90 days past due B A+H 48 35
Total accounts receivable past due BB RIRE 2 U IB4E 28
but not impaired 1,061 3,436
Accounts receivable past due represent balances that the BEiaHA 2 FEWGRIETE AN & B AR IR A A Bt
Group considered not in default based on past experience. RIRELN 2 48R - BRABUEIENEER
For the credit risk management of the accounts receivable, BREIR > sE2RIMIEE27(d) o
please refer to Note 27(d).
The movements in the allowance for impairment during the FRREEEZEHNT
year are as follows:
2023 2022
“ETCF BT TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T AT TT
At 1 January w—E—H 560 310
(Reversal)/impairment provision made BEfEH (L) SREEE (39) 250
Accounts written off as uncollectible s AW Bl miEEpI AR B (477) -
At 31 December R+ZHB=+—H 44 560
For the financial risk management on credit risk, refer to BRAGERBNMBRRER F2RWE

Note 27(d). 27(d)e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

11.Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 11 TA{T & B « & R EHMEKTIE

As at 31 December 2023, the balance represents mainly the RIEZ=F+"B=+—H #HIE
utility and management fee deposits of HK$3,580,000 (as at #AKEREEE£3,580,00087T (R=Z
31 December 2022: HK$3,572,000) and rent-free receivables & +”"HA=+—H :3,572,000575T) &
of HK$11,048,000 (as at 31 December 2022: HK$17,897,000). R FAFEURERIET1,048,000/8 7T (T __4

+—B=+—08 : 178970003 7T) °

For the financial risk management on credit risk, refer to BRAGERBNMBRERER F2RWE
Note 27(d). 27(d)e

12.Deferred tax 12, 3RIEFR IR
Deferred tax are calculated in full on temporary differences FIERIBRA B AN YR ERER MG
under the liability method. The following are the deferred B o M XHIAFE RBFFEPAMERIREL
tax assets (deferred income tax liabilities) recognised and MIBEE CREFFSHER) REEF) :

movements thereon during the current and prior years:

Accelerated

tax

depreciation

IR IEITES

HK$'000

BT T

At 1 January 2022 W2 —_F#—HF—H (13,332)
Charged to profit for the year AEEBERAIOE (4,763)
At 31 December 2022 RZ_E__F+_-_A=+—H (18,095)
Charged to profit for the year KEEBEBAIER (42)
At 31 December 2023 N _E=_F+"/F=+—H (18,137)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MB AR E ()

12.Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and they
relate to the same tax authority. The following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
consolidated balance sheet:

2. JEFETRIA (B8

TEMIBE E RIBIEFMSRMBENE S AN
HATHER BN IA S ERHRN AR IE S
& B[R —MF%RAERE R T LIRS o X
TEREBERHEBRETE JTRRGEEEE
ISIEE

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T AT IT

Deferred tax asset FERIEE E 104 104
Deferred income tax liabilities IRIEFRISIARE (18,241) (18,199)
(18,137) (18,095)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The
Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$32,264,000 (2022:
HK$28,604,000) to carry forward against future taxable
income and the expiry dates of these tax losses are shown as
follows:

EERAE 2 MIBHEEMERZMIEN &

OJREE ﬁLﬂijE/@“u%%’%%u;KfE:fﬁﬂ%LL

RIBEES SEMEE c ANEE A] A8 A EHR

RIRFERRUAIRIE 2 AR IRIEREES

32,264,000/ 7T (ZZ "4 : 28,604,000%
70) RZERIESEZ EmB T

2023 2022

“ET=F BT TF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T AHEF T

After the fifth year ELF®E 32,264 28,604
32,264 28,604

The Group has not recognised such tax losses and deferred
tax assets of HK$5,324,000 (2022: HK$4,720,000) as the
realisation of the related tax benefit is not probable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

13. REFHEER AT ZE™M

13.Loans from an intermediate holding company

In November 2022, China Great Wall AMC (International)
Holdings Company Limited (“Great Wall International”) an
intermediate holding company, had agreed to modify and
restructure certain existing term loan with accumulated
accrued interest and provide a new term loan in principal
amount of HK$4,382,000,000 for one year with fixed interest
rate of 5% per annum, and was repayable by November 2023.

In November 2023, Great Wall International and the Company
reached an agreement to modify and restructure certain
terms of the term loan. The new term loan has a principal
amount of HK$4,470,000,000 for one year with interest rate
at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus 2% per annum.
The new term loan is denominated in HK$, unsecured and is
repayable by November 2024.

In February 2022, Great Wall International agreed to provide a
new term loan in the principal amount of HK$901,657,000 for
one year with interest rate at Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate plus 1.4% per annum and was repayable in February
2023.

In February 2023, after the partial repayment of the term loan
of HK$1,657,000, Great Wall International and the Company
reached an agreement to modify and restructure certain
terms of the term loan. The revised term loan (the “New Term
Loan”) has a principal amount of HK$900,000,000 for one
year with interest rate at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
plus 1.913% per annum. The New Term Loan is denominated
in HK$, unsecured and is repayable by February 2024.

The Directors of the Company consider the loans are on
normal commercial terms. The carrying values of the loans
approximate their fair values.

RIZEZZF+—F PREZERASFEE
MEE @) ZERERAR (RIFERE) B
BIRBNREMAETRECHERR RS
FESHR B MiRE—FEHN—FTHER
s %874,382,000,000787T > B E FEF XA
5% WER-E-=F+—HEE.

RIZBZ=F+—8  RUBEREALQE)E
PRk LUEN R B E B E MBI E TF
R T E HAE TRAY A 8H 734,470,000,00078
7o A FRERSBARIRTREERE
FZ2% o M EBERMLUBTTEHE > EIKA
WAER_Z_MFE+—BERRE-

WZBZ_GZR RAEEERRMA—
SN —FEHREMN > K% EH4901,657,000
B FRXRREBRITEEREF M
14% WAR_ZE_=F_HER-

A TEC—FTR FEEBESDTEHER
1,657,000/8 7t » RINEIPREAATIZEM 7
& B R EATHERNE TR L
EBEIEHER (MTHER) NASRES
900,000,000/87c BHI—5F » FHIXASHE
SRITEI R EFIZRNN1.913% ° FTE A E UL
BTsHE BRI T AR S _ME_A

8o

AP EFR AT ERT L —REERR
SJ1 - EMZAREEHE AT ERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

14.0ther payables and accrued liabilities 14. HtE(TRIE R BT &IE
2023 2022
—ET=F o = i =
HK$'000 HK$000
BET T BT T
Interest payable FESF] R 38,637 8,791
Deposits received from tenants B ZE 26,827 26,417
Other payables and accrued expenses HhEARIB R EE R 10,942 12,961
Rental received in advance FEURFE & 3,280 3,795
Others HA1th 1,598 1,746
81,284 53,710
Represented by: EX TIPS
Non-current portion JERENER D 8,682 -
Current portion TRENER 72,602 53,710
81,284 53,710
15.Share capital 15. IR A<
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
“EC=H+"HB=+—H —EIF+ZR=+—H
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
5524 &% (R &%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Authorised: ERE -
Ordinary shares of SREECI0ETZ
HK$0.10 each EiER 5,000,000,000 500,000 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREUE -
Ordinary shares of SREECI0ETY
HK$0.10 each ZERG 1,567,745,596 156,775 1,567,745,596 156,775
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

16.Reserves

(a) Group

Movements of the Group’s reserves for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 161.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the excess
of the nominal value of the shares of subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the Company’s Shares issued
in exchange during the Group reorganisation in 1990, less

dividend distributions.

The Group’s other reserves consist of the following

16. (15
(a) &~&£H

TERBES_=FARTE_F+HA
=+—BHLEFEZ#EBEEHFERZINE
10 B2 iremEERA

KREBZBABKRDIE-NNEFLERE
ERBANBAR 2RO EEBLARAT
BT MR EE ) BFRR B DK ZE
R

AEEEMEFEEETEMNED

components:
Asset
revaluation Translation
reserve reserve Total
BESMHHEE ER 4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T

Balance as at 1 January 2022 RIBEZ_F

—R—B#&eR 334,065 1,157 335,222
Other comprehensive income Hhz2mEUWKA
Currency translation difference on RERERELEZ

consolidation b = EE = (1,534) (1,534)

Total comprehensive income 2FUW AR = (1,534) (1,534)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 R 4F

+ZRB=+—H

ek 334,065 (877) 333,688
Balance as at 1 January 2023 RIEZ=F

—R—BH#eR 334,065 (377) 333,688
Other comprehensive income HhZ2mEmUWKA
Currency translation difference on HRERERELEZ

consolidation ERELE - (243) (243)

Total comprehensive income 2EIRALEEE - (243) (243)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 A B =4F

= [l =

4R 334,065 (620) 333,445

RIIRGIERBRAE “TE_=FERSE 225



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MB AR E ()

16.Reserves (Continued) 16. = (&
(b) Company (b) AT
Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
& An e BARER REEE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2022 iy = B = 50,382 588,719 (560,919) 78,182
Loss for the year 2FEIE - - (10,123) (10,123)
At 31 December 2022 R_E__F+-B=+—H 50,382 588,719 (571,042) 68,059
At 1January 2023 RZIEZ=%—F—H 50,382 588,719 (571,042) 68,059
Loss for the year PEEFE - - (184,987) (184,987)
At 31 December 2023 RZIZEZ=F+"H=+—H 50,382 588,719 (756,029) (116,928)

Loss for the year of the Company mainly comes from
finance cost of HK$227,345,000 (2022: HK$141,146,000),
legal and professional fees of HK$3,025,000 (2022:
HK$4,088,000), rental and utilities expense of HK$258,000
(2022: HK$329,000) and staff costs of HK$9,064,000 (2022:
HK$9,895,000).

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result
of the Group reorganisation in 1990 and represents the
difference between the nominal value of the Company’s
Shares so allotted and the consolidated net asset value
of the acquired subsidiaries and associate less dividends
distribution. Under Bermuda law, the contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.

In addition, the Company’s share premium of HK$50,382,000
(2022: HK$50,382,000) can be distributed as fully paid-
up bonus shares or applied towards eliminating the
accumulated losses of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

17. Staff costs 17. ET A
2023 2022
—ET=F TECF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT HEFTT
Staff costs BT/ (BIFESME)
(including directors’ remuneration)
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - FHeRIE4 8,863 11,762
Defined contribution plan (note) RE SRS (5D 359 409
Directors fee ko 923 890
10,145 13,061
Note:  No forfeited contributions to defined contribution retirement e B2 =K °"F+A

plan have been applied by the Group to reduce its existing
level of contributions for the year ended 31 December 2023

= t+—HLEEE xEEHEFHHER
W B9 57 E AR IR ET BRI AR > DABR MR

and 2022. HIFFHHKTF-
(a) Five highest paid individuals (@) Afimz=EtiAL
Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid FR> AfiRE A T2 MEsF 585U
individuals during the year are set out below: IS¢
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T AT TT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R RIEREN & 5,900 6,739
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B HR 331 350
Bonuses paid and payable B RENTEA 444 486
6,675 7575
The remuneration of the five (2022: five) highest paid Al CEIZE A REFMALZM
individuals fell within the following bands: ENFH7EE -
2023 2022
= S - =
HKS$nil - HK$1,000,000 F 75— 1,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001&75— 1,500,000 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001t —2,000,000E 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017875—2,500,0007 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 75 —3,500,00078 7t = =
5 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

17. Staff costs (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The success of the Group hinges on the performance and
commitment of our employees. As the Group continues to
grow, the Group's compensation philosophy is designed to
provide employees with the opportunity to excel and grow,
while aligning with our business strategies and values. The
Group's remuneration policy aims to recognise outstanding
performance, retain and attract key talents and ensure
alignment with the interests of our businesses, and thereby
enhancing shareholder value.

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is
set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2023:

17. BT s (&)

€))

(b)

i AL (&

AEBZAHEE T 2 RAKKESEE
B AEAREEXBEEER AEBZH
MEPBIES A EERMEEE R A E RN
W BEFIBEF RIS R EERAEE
e AREBZHMBREESEELZES
R RERRAEEZ NS W REAER
EBMm—B0 MR RREE

EERITEERINE
BEERITEARS 85N T ¢

BE_E_=—F+-A=+—HILEE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking:

AEEES BRATARSENELREE) ExoEkziE :

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director’s other
services in
Remuneration connection
paid or with the
Employer's receivable  management
Estimated contributionto  inrespectof  of the affairs
moneyvalue  aretirement accepting  of the Company
Discretionary Housing of other benefit officeas orits subsidiary
Name ez Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits scheme director  undertaking Total
NEFER
FAFHE
WEARSEH
Bl GERREA  HEMES
HfthiER|RY RUEN  EEERA Esfs
& b 9] AN HREE  HHEREE  HENER REEEE e E At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BB BT AT BB AT AT BB AT
Non-executive Director FHTES
Yu Xiangqing REE = = = = = = = = =
Independent Non-executive BUukaiTEs
Directors
Song Ming RE = 180 - - - - - - 180
Sun Mingchun HAE - 180 - - - - - - 180
LiuYan 2 - 180 - - - - - - 180
Executive Directors HER
Wang Hai I - 200 - - - - - - 200
XuYongle (note (j (1) RKE W0 (1) - - - - - - - - -
Huang Wei (note (1 (2) BT () (2) - 183 - - - - - - 183
- 923 - - - - - - 923
Note: M5t

No director received any emolument from the Group as an inducement
to join or leave the Group or compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

17. Staff costs (Continued) 17. ETHiZs (&)

(b) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration  (b) =&HR{THAEEIMNE (@&
(Continued)

Note:(Continued) {Es Rt
() On 1 February 2023, the following changes are effective: () UTEER_ZE_=F"F—B4%™W.:

(1) Mr. Xu Yongle was resigned as an Executive Director, the () RKBELFHIEATNITES
Chief Executive Officer, member of the Remuneration THEH FTNEE B RIXE
Committee and the Authorised Representatives of the e
Company.

(2) Mr. Huang Wei was appointed as an Executive Director, 2 ERLCEERTARABHITE
the Chief Executive Officer, member of the Remuneration ETHARH TN EEEME KRR
Committee and the Authorised Representatives of the TR
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

17. Staff costs (Continued) 17. ETHiZs (&)

(b) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration  (b) EEKR{THEEINE @&
(Continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is REERATBHEH 2 BNEE T © (@
set out below: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022: BE_ZTT"HF+_A=+—HIHFE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking:
HREEE EBRATASSHRBAREN) ExNARRZHE
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director’s other
services in
Remuneration connection
paid or with the
Employer’s receivable  management
Estimated  contribution to inrespectof  of the affairs
money value aretirement accepting  of the Company
Discretionary Housing of other benefit officeas  orits subsidiary
Name e Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits scheme director undertaking Total
NEFER
FAFHH
HWBARZEH
BIH HERZEA  HEHRS
HAERI BAER  EREX Efig

ik fie BT RN EEBER HEIROERR RS FElEE st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BB BB BT BB BT BT BB BB BETT
Non-executive Director FanER
Yu Xiangqing REE = = = = = = = = =
Independent Non-executive BUEniTES
Directors
Song Ming R - 180 - - - - - - 180
Sun Mingchun AR - 180 - - - - - - 180
LiuYan 2% - 180 - - - - - - 180
Executive Directors BiTES
Wang Hai B35 = 200 = = = = = - 200
XuYongle T - 150 - - - - - - 150
. 80 . . = . . 2 890
Note: MIEE -
No director received any emolument from the Group as an inducement B E BN AEEIWEER NS EA DA BB
to join or leave the Group or compensation for loss of office. FAREENEBISEABREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

17. Staff costs (Continued)

(b) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration
(Continued)

The Director’s fee per annum of each of the independent
non-executive Directors of HK$180,000 (2022: HK$180,000)
is fixed by the Board of Directors pursuant to the authority
granted by the Shareholders at the Company’s annual
general meeting. Each non-executive Director, including
independent non-executive Director, serving on the Board
Committees does not receive any additional fee (2022: Nil).

The Directors’ remunerations are determined with reference
to directors’ remunerations paid by other companies in Hong
Kong.

18.0ther operating expenses

Other operating expenses represent the following;:

17. ETHiZs (&)
(b) EERITBLEEME @

BB IERITER 2 FEEE1EE180,0008
7T (CZ -4 1 180,000870) HEESIRE
RENRAABREBERSRT 2 ESIFE
E-RHEEERETZERZBMUIFNITE
= (BEBIUIFNTEDSR FZUWREEAEEIN
WeE (CEZZF | o

EEME2REBEM EHARMTES
P=TmEEE

18. HthA< =2

HAEERHImAT

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Staff costs (Note 17) BT Wat17) 10,145 13,061
Legal and professional fee ERREXER 4,08 5,612
Asset management fee EEEIEE 6,174 8174
Leasing fee HEE 1,027 1,094
Telecommunication expenses BEHX 486 940
Others HAth 12,703 15,990
34,643 42,771
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MB AR E ()

18.0ther operating expenses (Continued) 18. Hfth#A&Z &R (48)

Asset management fee and leasing fee represent the fee
charged by an independent third party for managing one
of the investment properties and for entering into new and
renewed leases with tenants respectively.

The remuneration of the Directors and the chief executives is
included in the staff costs (Note 17).

Auditor’s remuneration (included in the legal and
professional fee) for the current year amounted to
HK$1,300,000 (2022: HK$1,300,000).

HEEEE RSB S SR EE
b TEHR R LR AR P AT S O R AT
FRAUERE B R o

BERTEAERNFN A TRA (st
17) ©

NEEZEENNE GIALEREEER) A
1,300,000 7T (T~ — 4 : 1.300,000387T) ©

19.Net finance cost 19. A TSR AR R
2023 2022
== BT F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT
Finance cost/(income) AR (A)
— Interest expense on the loans from an —REFEERRABZERZ
intermediate holding company (Note 73) MBS #z£13) 282,093 165,603
- Interest expenses on lease liabilities —HEaENESH = 12
— Interest income from bank —IR1TH BURA (2,504) (1,693)
279,589 163,922
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

20.Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of

20. Frigiix

16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for (

the year. The PRC corporate income tax rate is 25% (2022:
25%). The subsidiaries operating in the PRC are loss making
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 and are

e

FrSIIE 225% (

KWM

e

A

BBNISIRTUFE At RN E A 1216.5%
F 1 16.5%) ML - PEIEE
F126%) ot
NMBARNBE_ S _=FR_F
T+ R=1+—HILFERSER &

not subject to PRC corporate income tax. BRSPS
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT TT
Current income tax BRAERFR1SHR
- Hong Kong profits tax —&HENER 5,160 2,911
— Over provision in prior year — P FEBEEE (20) (404)
Deferred income tax EIEPTISIR
— Deferred tax expense (Note 12) —IRIEFRIERE S (B1aE712) 42 4,763
5,182 7,270

The taxation on the profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rates
applicable to the places of operation of the Company and its

subsidiaries as follows:

SRETSMAIBFIFTEE 2 MBRBRERAR
AR R EM B AR EHEBRARE S BT
EEZEmMEERRAMRARE sFIBUT

2023 2022

“ECCF BT TF

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Profit before income tax FRETSIRATEF 290,032 324,852
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% B E165% (CE "5 .

(2022:16.5%) 16.5%) 5t& 47,855 53,601
Income not subject to taxation BERBUA (77,652) (78,393)
Tax losses not recognised RIESRZ NIBREIE 604 101
Expenses not deductible for REETELRIBINR 2

taxation purposes 34,395 32,365
Over provision in prior year T EBEREE (20) (404)
Income tax expense FriSRes 5,182 7,270
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MB AR E ()

21.Dividends

The Board has resolved not to declare any interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2022 and 2023 or
to recommend any final dividend for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.

22.Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended
31 December 2023 of HK$284,850,000 (profit attributable
to shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2022:
HK$317,582,000) and the weighted average of 1,567,745,596
shares in issue (2022: 1,567,745,596 shares in issue) during
the year.

Diluted earnings per share was the same as basic earnings
per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding for the year ended 31 December 2023 (for the
year ended 31 December 2022: Nil).
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SEF
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=+—HIEFEREESLZ &RF)284,850,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

23.Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

Flows

(@) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated

from operations:

23. 455 HE

MERME

(a) ERFEKEEEZINEHRE

2023 2022
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT T
Operating profit RERH 143,321 23,148
Fair value (gain)/loss on investment REYENTE Kam)
properties 518 6 (74,533) 35,031
Depreciation and impairment ERRIE 5 6,937 7,005
Loss on write off of property, plant and WEEY) = IR R E
equipment 518 5 8 -
Exchange gain PE R & A (119) (1,402)
Increase in accounts receivable FEWRIEE T (197) (3,277)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, ANER - Es REMEW
deposits and other receivables FIERL (80 8,288 (1,280)
Decrease in amounts due FEU B E A B FIER D
from associates - 209
Decrease in amount due from FEW A 1R A Bl RRIE R
an intermediate holding company 9 1,129
(Decrease)/increase in other payables HMENRIERESEE
and accrued liabilities CRiZL) /18 (2,272) 1,809
Cash generated from operations KEEEZRE 81,442 62,372
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (b) IREKRIREEE
2023 2022
—E= - =
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cash at bank and in hand RITARFHERE 125,601 154,564
Short-term bank deposits with original FRHEA =B U TR RRT
maturity of less than three months =ER 106,922 55,097
232,523 209,661
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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23.Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash B.ixalREeRERMEE @B
Flows (Continued)

(c) Net debt reconciliation (c) FEEHIE
This section sets out the movements in net debt for each of KEETIZFTR AR F B EEE) -

the periods presented.

Loansfroman  Amount due to
intermediate anintermediate  Total liabilities
Lease holding holding ~ from financing
liabilities company* company activities
REFHE FEfS ey
ERAT ERAE RMEEY

HE&AE WER FE BEeE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
AT BT AT BT
As at 1January 2022 RZE__&-F—H (1,820) (5,267480) (190) (5,269,490)
Cash flow Réng 1,832 244,467 (872) 25,427
Other non-cash movement HitERE2% (12 (165,603) . (165,615)
Asat 31 December 2022 R-_EB__F+_A=+—A . (5,188,616) (1,062) (5,189,678)
Asat 1January 2023 RZE_=%#-A—-H = (5,188,616) (1,062) (5,189,678)
Cash flow Reng - 62,072 (5,648) 56,424
Other non-cash movement HitEREEH - (282,093) - (282,093)
As at 31 December 2023 R-EB_ZF+-A=1+—-H - (5,408,637) (67100  (5415347)
* Interest payable (included in other payables and accrued * HRHEERRERHFMESEBEENMALRE
liabilities) are included for the purpose of reconciliation of THE GtAEMBIRIBRETE®) ©
liabilities from financing activities.
24.Capital risk management 24, B EEEIER
The Group's primary objective when managing capital is to AEEEESEABEERRERTERS
safeguard the Group's ability to continue its businesses as a BENFHERESHER  IEMEEENEES
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for A SRR (ol Ko A HE A an AR RA A TR AR
Shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. o
The Group structures its capital with due consideration to AERKEEZRERMBEBIREHERG
risk. The Group manages and adjusts its capital structure 1B AEERFLEBR T2 BIERIBMEE
in the light of the changes in economic conditions and risk Z BB HEIERAREE R R
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain WRPBEHERRE AEREAERMN TR
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the RZREESRE PREBLEAABRKRM %
amount of dividends paid to Shareholders, repurchase TR IIE NS R D ERR 0

Shares of the Company from Shareholders, issue new Shares,
or increase or reduce borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

24.Capital risk management (Continued)

For the purpose of calculating the net debt-to-capital ratio,
the Group defines net debt as total debt (which includes the
loans from an intermediate holding company and amount
due to an intermediate holding company (2022: loans
from an intermediate holding company and amount due
to an intermediate holding company)) less cash and bank
balances, and capital as all components of equity. The Group
monitors capital on the basis of the net debt-to-capital ratio.

The net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2023 was as

follows:

BRRERERE (&

A BEFEREERLEXMES ZK%@%‘}%%
BEEAEHER (BEREFHEERA

ZERREMPEIERARRIE & ::
F I REPREERAT 2 B P REE
RABIIE) BIRE RIR TR MERTEER
RHEDZ IR AERREFEE
EAREREEIEE AR

KRB =ZF+"A=+—RZFEEEX
EERynT -

2023 2022

—E=5F B

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT BT

Total borrowings 5,376,710 5,180,887
Less: cash and cash equivalents /UZ fﬁ%&fﬁﬁfﬁ (232,523) (209,661)
Net debt ==L 5,144,187 4,971,226
Total equity R 4,001,546 3,716,939
Total capital HEER 9,145,733 8,688,165
Net debt-to-capital ratio FEBEEARLLE 56.2% 57.2%

The slight decrease in debt-to-capital ratio is mainly due
to the increase in shareholders funds as a result of the fair
value increase of the investment properties.

25.Capital commitments

BEERLERMETEDEIZRNKREY S
NHEENERRRE SRR

25. B
2023 2022
TEBT=F BT F
HK$°000 HK$'000

BEFT  EMTR

Contracted, but not provided for

— Capital expenditures on investment

properties

—&é%%z 5 AR

640 700
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MB AR E ()

26.Balance sheet of the Company 26. K ABBEEER
2023 2022
—ET=F el = =
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B3 BT BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ERE EYS Gy 2,937 3,575
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZKE 4,550,165 4,557,261
4,553,102 4,560,836
Current assets MHEE
Prepayments, deposits and other ANER BTk
receivables HhpE U= IE 1,094 747
Cash and cash equivalents BERIREEE 137,647 72,274
138,741 73,021
Total assets WEE 4,691,843 4,633,857
Current liabilities mEaR
Loan from an intermediate holding REFEERAT ZER
company 4,470,000 4,278,169
Amounts due to subsidiaries M B AR FIE 141,007 119,673
Other payable and accrued expenses HERIE & EST & B 40,989 11,181
4,651,996 4,409,023
Total liabilities mamd 4,651,996 4,409,023
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves BERKHEE
Share capital A&7 156,775 156,775
Reserves G 16(b) (116,928) 68,059
Total equity Mt 39,847 224,834
Total equity and liabilities mEnRaE 4,691,843 4,633,857

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 19 February 2024 and was signed on its

behalf.

Mr. Wang Hai
EBRE
Chairman

ES

Mr. Huang Wei
(i bve
Director

5=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

27. Financial risk management

27. TRAE R ETE

Categories of financial instruments ERTAEDEE
2023 2022
—EI=F BT F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT IT
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: BEENAGTE ERMEE ©
— Accounts receivable —FEWFRIE 6,179 5,982
— Deposits and other receivables — e REMEIERIE 14,628 21,469
- Amount due from an intermediate holding ~ — WA REIZR AT FIE
company 162 171
— Cash and bank balances —IH& RIRITAEER 232,523 209,661
253,492 237,283
Financial liabilities TREaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: BEENATE SREE -
— Other payables and accrued liabilities —HthENRIEKRE AR 78,004 49,915
- Loans from an intermediate holding —RBEPEERABZEM
company 5,370,000 5,179,825
- Amount due to an intermediate holding —FES R REER A BFRIE
company 6,710 1,062
5,454,714 5,230,802

The Group’s major financial instruments include accounts
receivable, deposits and other receivables, amounts due
from associates, amount due from an intermediate holding
company, cash and bank balances, other payables and
accrued liabilities, loans from an intermediate holding
company and amount due to an intermediate holding
company. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
particularly liquidity and credit risks. Where appropriate, the
Group’s risk management policies seek to minimise potential
adverse effects of these risks on the financial performance
of the Group. The policies for managing these risks are
summarised below.

FAERTESHT AOERKRIE TR
HANFEUWGRIA ~ R E R B R0E B
BIHER A BRIA IR RIRTTHER ~ HAthE
RERESEE REFEERABZE
FR BN RRHERABHRIE TR T AFIE
& BRI EEPIRER

FEBZEGENZSESHEAR  55hI2R
HET R EEFTRER AEEZ AREERKR
REARBERR N SREZFARAE
EREVBREZEBECTEEARERERMB &
5 R EEBERETIN T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

&5 0 B ok W Ak

(%)

27. Financial risk management (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk arises from cash
balances placed with authorised financial institutions,
variable-rate loans from an intermediate holding company
which generate interest income and incur interest expense
for the Group. The Group manages its interest rate risk
for cash balances by placing such balances on various
maturities and interest rate terms.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had loans from an
intermediate holding company of HK$5,370,000,000 (2022:
HK$5,179,825,000). It is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group's profit for the year and total equity by approximately
HK$51,986,000 (2022: HK$48,097,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to the interest-
bearing financial instruments in existence at that date.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial
liabilities. The Group’s objective in managing this risk is to
maintain a balance between the continuity and the flexibility
of funding through the use of bank loans and overdraft, if
necessary, and the loan from group companies.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s financial liabilities at the balance
sheet date, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates as at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The balance includes the accrued
interest for the loans from an intermediate holding company.
For details, please refer to Note 13.
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27 ﬁﬂﬂﬂ &IE (n\ﬁ
(@) IWERHFIEEBE

(b)

FEEZRERARRRRE TR
RIS 2 TR ASER 2R B EPF'W“J%“"TZ/#
BER HAREEELN BWAKSIZF
giiu% REBBEBRZFEHFUTREL
A EFRE N EIRHIRSER AR
g o

ATEC=FE+ A=+ —R AERAEK
B IR AT 2 B715,370,000,0008 7T (Z
2= S 5179825000/%75) RIS TE
ZIERT  FEEEEE
J:Fr/"FEMOOTI%,%EH\ PHREREERF)

KaREEE L 18 NN4951,986,0005 7T (Z &
::E : 48,097,000‘}%773) °

FIBRE SRR REBENEER
B4 WERARZARTEZARERMIR

MREE TR
nPEERIEAEENETEEREEE

Rz EHREERE Y AR AEEEEZ
Bz BRDEBERIRTEMNES

RESBEEEETEMN 2 TH (HRE) Kk
BEERTZEMR-

TRITNGEEHAEREHEBEZGH TS
AHARREFIS  DERRENRITIRZIRERE
(BREKASNFNEAEZFENMT HE

AFEHE AEREEEH 2R hAEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

27. Financial risk management (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

27 ﬁﬂﬂﬂ &IE (n\ﬁ
(b) RENEZRE @)

Other payables and Loans from an intermediate
accrued liabilities holding company*

HtERTIERE &R REFEERARZER
2023 2022 2023 2022
—ZZ= BT pm—— ZBICE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB BETFT BT
Within 1 year or on demand —ERGRER 30,685 41124 5,430,928 5,384,301
More than 1 but less than 2 years BE—FEDRmE 7,674 - - -
More than 2 but less than 5 years BEMFELRRE 1,008 - - -
More than 5 years BARE = - - -
Total undiscounted cash flows RERBEERENE 39,367 {1124 5,430,928 5,384,301
Carrying amount REE 39,367 41124 5,408,637 5,188,616

* Interest payable (included in other payables and accrued
liabilities) are included for the purpose of reconciliation.

(c) Currency risk

Currency risk arises on account of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the functional
currency. There is no non-monetary exposure on the Group.

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group
are denominated predominantly in HK$. The Group’s only
significant exposure to foreign exchange risk arises from its
cash at bank in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and cash at bank in United
States Dollars (“US$”).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash at bank in RMB
of HK$92,000 (2022: HK$1,265,000) and cash at bank in US$
of HK$19,934,000 (2022: HK$31,796,000).

If the RMB had strengthened/weakened by 10% against
HK$ with all other variables held constant, it would increase/
decrease the pre-tax profit for the year by HK$9,000 (2022:
HK$127,000). As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does not
expect any significant movement in the US$/HK$ exchange
rate.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in exchange rate had occurred at
the balance sheet date.

()

* HRHEERENETARORE GTAEMEN
MIEREStRE)

BRI EUINEERLUINE B HEZE
KEERBENRE -AEBTEIFEHER
B o

FEBZEHEERESMAERHIEEUAT
SHE - ANEMMEIMNERT 2 M—F AR
BEUARRE (AR sHEZRITREM
BT ((5m) sHEZSRITHRE -

N_E_=F+"A=+—H> zl&%lﬁu
ANRHHEZ IR1TIR$92,00087T CE -
£ 11,265,000 7T) RIUETHEZ RITIR
19,934,000/ 7 (ZZ 4 : 31,796,000/
70) ©

fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ“%& RS ZBERT MA

RBTHE,B2E10% Eﬁqﬁﬁﬁmum
%IJH%tDD/,m 09,0008 (2=
127,000787T) © A E T TN » zl&%l
e ETRBTERAGLBEEMEAE
@JO

PSR ED T RREXEHENRGEEH
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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27. Financial risk management (Continued)
(d) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk arises mainly from its deposits with
banks, accounts receivable and other receivables and
deposits.

Bank deposits are mainly placed with high-credit-quality
financial institutions. The credit quality of bank deposits
can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if
available) as follows:

27. TR ERERE (&

(d) EERE

FEBZEERBREEREHRTER B
WRRIR LU Bt FEWGRR IR A ARt o

RITEREEEHN ERREFNSERER
W IRITERNEEER Y 2RI IR
E&5T4 0A) 57

2023 2022

“ET=F BT F

% %

% %

AA- AA- 31.0 44.9
A+ A+ 51.7 26.9
A A 8.3 10.6
BBB BBB 9.0 17.6
100.0 100.0

The Group manages its credit risk associated with accounts
receivable through the application of credit approvals and
credit ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

27. TR ERERE (B
(d) EERERE @&

27. Financial risk management (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of credit exposures to tenants, management
conducts credit evaluations on prospective tenants before
lease agreements are entered into with tenants. The Group
also has policies in place to ensure that rental security
deposits are required from tenants prior to commencement
of leases. It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade receivable to ensure that adequate
provision for impairment losses is made for irrecoverable
amounts.

As at 31 December 2023, the total accounts receivable are
from 34 customers (2022: 42 customers) only.

MEFHNEERRNS  EEEERBFE]
VARG EEE P ETERN G
AERETREHIEBR > IR RE R R ER
WaRIABMIE S RE S - HIFRA HfthEiE
T2 AR (R EREN R SR T2 AR UR [D B HA (S 75 o
ItE5h > AEEE RS SR E 5 EUERRBY
pJU Bl 58 - LR RS P UR Bl 2B 51 2
SORVIRLERSIR R o

R _E_=F+"_B=+—8 'BERKX
BERBE=TORER CE"F O+
BER)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

27. TR ERERE (&

(d) EERE (&)

27. Financial risk management (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information. Indicators
including actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the tenants’ ability
to meet its obligations and if changes in the payment status
of tenants is noted. A significant increase in credit risk is
defined by management as any contractual payment which is
more than 30 days past due. Any contractual payment which
is more than 90 days past due is considered credit impaired.

The Group considers that accounts receivable is financial
instrument that have not exposed to a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition (“stage 1”). The Group
has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines
the expected credit losses by individual assessment. During
the year ended 31 December 2023, the amounts of reversal
of impairment loss of HK$39,000 (2022: impairment loss of
HK$250,000) on accounts receivable was recognised.

As at 31 December 2023, the accounts receivable subjected
to significant increase in credit risk is limited. The impairment
of accounts receivable, if any, that is in stage 2 and 3 are
immaterial to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GaMBHEmE (8)

27. Financial risk management (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(e)

The Group considers that deposits and other receivables are
financial instruments that have not exposed to a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition (“stage 1”) and
considers the probability of default of deposits and other
receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 to be close to
zero as the counterparties have strong capacity to meet their
contractual obligations in the near term. As a result, no loss
allowance has been recognised based on 12-month ECL as
any such impairment would be insignificant to the Group.

No significant changes to estimating techniques or
assumptions were made during the reporting period.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are
set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Fair value estimation

The Group classifies fair value measurements using a fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1).

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (Level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).

The directors consider that the carrying amount of the
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values. Such fair values have been
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis.

27. & RbE

"SQ:IE (II\E

d) EERE (&

(e)

AEERARS REMBKRTRIE ABY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

28.Subsidiaries and associates

28. B AT K& AT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and the
Group’s material associates as at 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022 are as follows:

g ZE i o o e Kl T = Ve 2 i =
+-A=1t—H xR TINETERB AT K
REBWERBEATEBNOT -

Subsidiaries M AT
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of
registration and operations  issued/registered
Company (Kind of legal entity) share capital Proportion held Nature of business
ML EMREENE
NGIEL CEELZEER) BE#1T EMEAEE AR EHME
Direct Indirect
B iE3
Great Wall Pan Asia Hong Kong Ordinary HK$25,560,000 S 100% Asset management services
Asset Management Limited (limited liability company)
RHRGEEEEBRA &% (BRRAE) 1 8%25,560,00078 7T EEBERE
Lyton Investment Limited The Commonwealth of Ordinary US$2 S 100% Property holding
The Bahamas/Hong Kong
(limited liability company)
B EHANE 58 BER2ET MERH
(BRRAE)
Macheer Properties Limited The British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 S 100% Property holding
Hong Kong (limited liability
company)
RBETRHE /B8 BERIET MERH
(BRRAE)
Nanchao Yau Tong Limited The British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 = 100% Property holding
Hong Kong (limited liability
company)
RBETRHE /B8 BERIET MERH
(BRRAE)
Sunny Bright Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 = 100% Property holding
Limited (limited liability company)
MAEERARAR &5 (BRAE) EBER2ET MERE
Sunny Success Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 S 100% Property holding
Limited (limited liability company)
MARERERAR &5 (BRAE) EER2ET MERH
Ray Glory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 = 100% Property holding
(limited liability company)
RIEERAE &5 (BRAE) EBERIAET MERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

28.Subsidiaries and associates (Continued) 28.fiiB AT Kt E AT (@)
Associates BERE
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of
registration and operations  issued/registered Percentage of equity
Company (Kind of legal entity) share capital attributable to the Group Nature of business
AL MR EEE
REVTE CEELEER) BT EMEAEE FEERGRAEDL EBUE
Dymocks Franchise Systems Hong Kong Ordinary HK$7700,000 45% Bookshop operation
(China) Limited* (limited liability company)
& (BRAF) E48A%7,700,0008 7T EEEE
Everwell City Limited* The British Virgin Islands Ordinary HK$10,001 35.78% Investment holding

(limited liability company)
RBEAREE BRAR) BEK1000187T

#  The financial statements of these company were not audited by
BDO Limited or the member firms of BDO Limited.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company and
associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the Directors,
principally or materially affected the results of the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries and associates would, in
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

S EER

* RERBZUGRERALIFAEBIUEER
BEMEHBMERADHNETBILGEERS
SHMEHABRAB ZHMB AT EZ

EFERD LREIIZARBNBRB A
ERZHEATDHAERFRNREE TR
BARE WhEEEEEFEEKLH -
EERD HIHEMMBAR ZFEEHE
EFrRRIEED TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e MB AR E ()

29.Related party transactions 29. BB X 5
As at the balance sheet date, the Directors regard Great Wall B H » EEHGreat Wall Pan Asia (BVI)
Pan Asia (BVI) Holding Limited as the immediate holding Holding LimitedA AR AT 2 BIFERAE) &
company of the Company, Great Wall International as an WER AR AT Z AEZER AT MPEE
intermediate holding company of the Company and GWAMCC WMBERARABZ REERAT]

as the ultimate holding company of the Company.

(a) Transactions with GWAMCC and its group of (@) HHERMEERERBATIZRS
subsidiaries
Significant transactions with GWAMCC and its group of HAEREEMENBAR ZEARZU
subsidiaries are as follow: B
2023 2022
—ET=F TETTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Lease of investment properties to an HMEREYETHEERAE
intermediate holding company
- Rental income —HEWHA 14,714 14,714
Loans from an intermediate holding company Z& B HRIZR AT 2 B
- Interest expense (Note 13) —MERX (Hs£13) 282,093 165,603

248 GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

GaMBHEmE (8)

29.Related party transactions (Continued)

(a) Transactions with GWAMCC and its group of

29.REEt 535 5 (48)

(@) AFERBEERENBATZRS

subsidiaries (Continued) (@
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT TT
Amount due from an intermediate holding FEUN R REERG A BIFRIE
company 162 171
Loans from an intermediate holding company Z& B HRIZR AT 2 B
~ Loan payable —FEIER 5,370,000 5,179,825
— Interest payable —FELFIE 38,637 8,791
Amount due to an intermediate holding FE R EIER A B FIE
company 6,710 1,062
(b) Key management personnel compensation (b) TEEEAEZME
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T AHEF T
Salaries and other short-term e R EMEEAESER
employee benefits 2,138 2,269
Post-employment benefits BIREET 18 -
2,156 2,269
30.Subsequent events 30. AR H1E
There is no significant subsequent event after the reporting RIS HAE I ESE AMRESEIE
period.
31.Approval of the consolidated financial 1R EMBIRRZHE
statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved by the KiZEHBERREN ZEZWRFZA+NH
Board of Directors on 19 February 2024. EEEEH &
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
o 4F Bt s i

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA KRR T B

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=+-HLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
(in HK$ millions, unless otherwise stated)  (BEATT: BRBAEREIN “BC=E BT —E—F ZECEE “2—NE
OPERATING RESULTS F ]
Revenue Wrga 122 21 120 130 168
Adjusted operating profit/(loss)*** MRS RA/ (1) v 68 58 44 (38) 70
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment BEMELNTERS/ (518
properties 75 (35) 97 (171 169
Operating profit/(loss) WEERRN / (518) 143 23 141 (208) 239
Share of profits of associates FEEBE A B RA 426 466 774 58 427
Income tax expense FrisiBEs (5) ) 8) (8) (6)
Net profit /(loss) attributable to Shareholders B EIGF &/ (§518) 285 318 760 (320) 487
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK SREER
Adjusted operating profit /(loss) SRCEELERN/ (BB
per share (in HK cents) (&1L 437 3.68 275 (2.42) 446
Basic earnings/(loss) per share REARR,/ (BB (B
(in HK cents) 18.17 20.26 48.46 (20.38) 31.06
Diluted adjusted operating profit/(loss) SRETCRELERT/
per share (in HK cents) (&518) (B 437 3.68 275 (2.42) 446
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share SREERT /(58 (Bl
(in HK cents) 18.17 20.26 48.46 (20.38) 31.06
Dividend per share (in HK cents) SRKE (Bl = = = - -
Net asset value per share (in HK$) SREEZE (B 2.55 237 217 1,68 1.89
FINANCIAL POSITION BN
Property, plant and equipment %% R R E 510 517 524 532 632
Total assets mEE 9,480 8,970 8,727 7,839 8,032
Loans from an intermediate holding REFEERABZER
company (5,370) (5,180) (4,750) (3,848) (3,848)
Loan from a non-controlling Shareholder ~ RE—AIEEHIMREZ ER = - - - -
Total liabilities waE (5,479) (5,253) (5,326) (5,198) (6,073)
Net assets attributable to Shareholders ~ RERELEEFE 4,002 3717 3,401 2,641 2,959
Number of Shares in issue BETRHEUEB 1,567,745,596  1,567745506 1567745596  1,567745596  1567745,596
KEY RATIOS EEdukd
Adjusted operating profit/(loss) to revenue A BEITEEF,/ (518)
R LR 56% 48% 37% -29% 42%
Return on average equity THRALHRE 7.38% 8.92% 2515% -11.41% 1793%
Return on average total assets THREERIRE 3.09% 3.59% 917% -4.03% 6.26%
Gearing EEGHELE 56.2% 57.2% 56.5% 63.2% 60.7%
Current assets to current liabilities TEBEEHLERBEE 5% 5% 7% 25% 399%

*** Adjusted operating profit/(loss) is defined as operating profit/ — *** KBELERF]  (Bi18) REARTEMBA
(loss) before other income and fair value gain/(loss) on investment REEMEATENRT (B8 2RKERA
properties. (#538) °
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In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following glossaries shall have the following meanings:

RAERER > BXESBMREN TIFEEREENTERE

“Board”
===

“Bye-Laws”
NSO

“China” or “PRC”
MR

“Company”

/NS

“Corporate Governance Code”
M= ER<TRL

“Director(s)”
&=

“Great Wall International”

MRIEIR

“Grou pu, “vve”, or“our”

M2 [ 3 T3

“GWAMCC”

MEREEE]

“HKS”
=5

*  Foridentification purpose only

* (EHES

the board of directors of the Company
KRBEFE

the Bye-Laws of the Company, as amended from time to time
P/NSIF S NS S A AN

the People’s Republic of China
FREE A RHME

Great Wall Pan Asia Holdings Limited, an exempted company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, the issued Shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 583)
REBRTERERAT — XN BREZMALNEREBRA
8 HERTRM IR TRk L BRI U5E © 583)

the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing
Rules

EHRRRIMERCI PR BRI (X BB TR)

(a) director(s) of the Company
KABESR

China Great Wall AMC (International) Holdings Company Limited,
a company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong with limited
liability and a controlling Shareholder of the Company

FEEREE @R ERERAT —KIRBRE B ARG LAY
BRRABIRARB ZIERKRE

the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time
KRB REARZNBAS

China Great Wall Asset Management Co., Ltd., a financial
conglomerate engaged in a broad range of integrated financial
services and an ultimate controlling Shareholder of the Company
TERBEEEERMNEBRAS —BRSEEZFESRBRBzE
MERKRARNT ZREERRKER

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BEEEST
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] %

“Hong Kong”
r&8)

“Latest Practicable Date”
REERA{THR

“Listing Rules”
FEmRA

“Main Board”
=4

“Memorandum of Association and

Bye-Laws”
HABEE AN R AT HHE
“Model Code”

s

“SFC”

SNBSS
MBS E )

“SFO”

58 55 R ARG 1R
“Share(s)”

TB& A7

“Shareholder(s)”
MRZ R

“Stock Exchange”
THS 32 P

“Us$”

=S

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
hEEBRITHE

20 March 2024
“BOME=A"+H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(as amended from time to time)

Br3ZPrEE s LT ARA (EARBHERD)

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the
Stock Exchange which is independent of and operated in parallel
with the GEM of the Stock Exchange

R PTSE R F R Z P (R EIERRE™ ) - HIEIC I BA B XX F
GEMIL1TE(F

the Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company, as
amended from time to time

RABERFES] 2 B ERRE R AT

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules

EHRRRIMERCIFT BRI L E T AERETRSFZZRESTAD

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
BERSKREEHERELER

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time)

BBEOFENERZFRAERM (ETEHERT BRI UM SR
(E3

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company
KABIRAPEREECI0E T B

holder(s) of Share(s) from time to time

AR ZIRMDFE A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEMERZAARAT

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of
America
En ENREREEEEE
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M Ef IR TR IRAE)

GREAT WALL PAN ASIA HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(REREZMURILZBRAR)
(Stock Code REA 155 : 583)

HEFIREBB129ERRITH L2118
21st Floor, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong
www.gwpaholdings.com

* For identification purpose only
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